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Profile

Reliance Communications Limited is a part of the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani
Group.

Reliance Communications is India's largest integrated fully converged communications service
provider in the private sector with an individual, enterprise and carrier customer base of over 30
million.

Reliance Communications is one of the top two operators in the Indian wireless
market, the fastest qrowing wireless market in the world.

Reliance Communications is one of the largest wealth creator with market capitalisation
of over Rs.1,00,000 crore.

Reliance Communications has the largest capacity network in the country, the
most future-ready integrated and converqged network that can support even forthcoming
3G, 4G telephony and broadband services.

More than half of the world's population connects with each other on the Reliance
Network.

Every third call that comes in India is carried on Reliance's Network.

Reliance Communications is the preferred network of over one million customers
in USA, UK, Canada, Australia and New Zealand.

Mission: Excellence in Communication initiatives

To attain global best practices and become a world-class communication service
provider — quided by its purpose to move towards greater degree of sophistication
and maturity.

To work with vigour, dedication and innovation to achieve excellence in service,
quality, reliability, safety and customer care as the ultimate qoal.

To earn the trust and confidence of all stakeholders, exceeding their expectations
and make the Company a respected household name.

To consistently achieve high growth with the highest levels of productivity.
To be a technology driven, efficient and financially sound organisation.
To contribute towards community development and nation building.

To be a responsible corporate citizen nurturing human values and concern for
society, the environment and above all, the people.

To promote a work culture that fosters individual growth, team spirit and creativity
to overcome challenges and attain goals.

To encouraqe ideas, talent and value systems.

To uphold the quiding principles of trust, integrity and transparency in all aspects
of interactions and dealings.

This report is printed on paper manufactured with more than 75 per ceRieBé@F¥re.
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Reliance Communications Limited

Letter to Shareowners

“Think big, think fast, think ahead.
Ideas are no one's monopoly.”

- Dhirubhai H. Ambani

My dear fellow shareowners,

It gives me great pleasure to share with you the highlights of our Company's performance during the 15 month period ended
31 March, 2007.

This has been a period of record operational and financial achievments for us, and enormous value creation for all our stakeholders.

Our Company made its debut on the two leading stock exchanges of India, namely, the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and the
National Stock Exchange of India Limited on 6 March, 2006, with an opening price of over Rs. 35,000 crore (US$ 8,120.64 million).

On 2" February, 2007, our market capitalisation touched Rs. 1,00,000 crore (US$ 23,201.86 million), making us the first
Company in India to cross this milestone within the very first year of listing.

This achievement also ranked us among Asia's first five most valuable telecom companies.

I am delighted that, in this short span of time, we have created record wealth of more than Rs. 60,000 crore (USS$ 13,921.11
million) for our 2 million shareholders.

Our dramatic journey over the past 15 month is not just a reflection of our inherent strength and potential as a business, but also
of the resounding vote of confidence in our future from each one of you - our valued investors and shareowners. Your support has
been crucial in helping us restructure our businesses, and seamlessly integrate and align the interest of all stakeholders.

Dear shareowners, India today stands at a historic juncture. We live in a time when the young are reaching higher, dreaming bigger
and demanding more - eaqger to push the boundaries of hope and possibility.

New India shows the impatience of youth, the desire for real and rapid transformation - for world class products and services and for
a quality of life that is second to none.

Our Company, which is an integral part of one of India's top three business houses, the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group,
embodies the essential ethos of our young nation - the new resurgent India of the 21 century.

Our qoal is not just to build a great company for all our stakeholders but a great future for our country - to give millions of our fellow
citizens the power to shape their own destiny, the means to realize their true and diverse potential.

Performance Review

Our Company is India's larqest integrated fully converged communications service provider in the private sector with over 30 million
individual, enterprise, and carrier customers in India and across the world.

Over the past year, we have demonstrated the qualities of strength, vision and clarity of purpose, which are needed to emerge as
a front-ranking global telecom and IT infrastructure player.

Profitability has shown a consistent upward trend throughout the year, culminating with record performance in the three months
ended 31 March, 2007, when our Company crossed the unique milestone earning of over Rs. 1,000 crore (US$ 232 million) of
net profit in a single quarter — only the fifth company in the country to achieve this distinction.

The highlights of our stronq financial performance on a consolidated basis for the 15 month period ended 31t March, 2007 are:
e Total Revenue of Rs. 17,440.25 crore (USS 4,046.46 million)

e Earnings before Interest, Depreciation/Amortisation and other items of Rs. 6,692.81 crore (US$ 1,552.86 million)

af, Profit after Tax of Rs. 3,526.43 crore (USS$ 818.20 million)

er Share of Rs. 17.56 (basic) and Rs. 16.71 (diluted)

s of Rs. 56,525.43 crore (USS 13,114.94 million)

of Rs. 22,931 crore (US$ 5,320 million) - one of India's top three companies on this crucial parameter of financial
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Reliance Communications Limited

Letter to Shareowners (Contd...)

This record financial performance enabled us to recommend a maiden dividend in the very first year after listing - the first private
sector telecom company in the country to do so.

Platform for Growth

Our CDMA wireless service operates across the country, while the GSM wireless service operates in 8 licensed service areas (Circles)
of Eastern and Central India. Our wireless network covers over 10,000 towns and 3,00,000 villages across India, providing coverage
to over 60% of the Country's population. This is the largest wireless network in India in terms of coverage and capacity. In addition
to our wireless network, over 5,00,000 office, commercial, retail, and multi-dwelling residential buildings are directly connected to
our 20,000 route kilometers intra-city fiber optic network. Our national inter-city long distance network is the largest next
generation network in India, with over 80,000 route kilometers of ducted fibre optic cables. This domestic network is seamlessly
integrated with our international network of over 65,000 route kilometers, the largest privately owned, all IP-enabled global
network spanning major developed and emerging markets.

Our retail presence in the shape of 1,650 company-owned and operated Reliance World stores across 700 cities in India, serves as
the front office interface for our customers. Our customer service is further supported by our own 6,000 seat contact centre facility.

Way Forward

There has been a structural shift in the Indian economy over the past few years. The pace of growth has accelerated to a new level
(over 8 per cent per annum) and there have been major productivity gains across a range of industries and services.

The ensuing economic momentum has given rise to new and rising levels of income and prosperity. This has brought about a sea
change in consumer preferences and life styles, opening up tremendous new opportunities in the telecom sector.

While India is now widely acknowledged as the world's fastest growing telecom market, it still enjoys only around 20 per cent tele-
density (wireline plus wireless), with nearly 70 per cent of households unable to access any wireline service. The prospects for
growth remain as robust as ever.

To ride this enormous boom and retain our strong competitive advantage, we have launched a whole new range of products and
services - from feature-rich low-end handsets to agqressive and innovative tariff plans. These path-breaking initiatives will not only
broaden our subscriber base but also offer our millions of customers real choice in both CDMA and GSM networks.

Our Company will receive significant support from the USO Fund for setting up and managing infrastructure sites, and for providing
mobile services in specified rural and remote areas of the country, having successfully bid in a tender floated for the purpose by the
Department of Telecommunications.

While we address the growing needs of our domestic customer base, we remain as committed to the cause of our global foot print,
having embarked on a huge network-expansion plan through FLAG Telecom by commissioning the 12,357 route kilometers
FALCON cable system that connects India and Middle Eastern countries with the FLAG Global Network.

The advent of broadband has revolutionised back office functions across the economy. As a leader in the converged telecom space,
the stage is set for us to drive this process of change, and to capture the market with our unique network and IT infrastructure
facilities, bundled value added services and strong project management.

Our Commitment

As a member of the Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani Group, our Company draws its inspiration and ideals from the life and leqacy
of our legendary founder, the Late Shri Dhirubhai H. Ambani.

In line with Dhirubhai's vision, we remain committed to building Reliance Communications into a World Class Service Provider, known

for its standards of quality, operational performance and efficiency and admired for its record of consistently creating value for all
stakeholders.

I seek your continued support in taking our company to ever higher orbits of growth, success and innovation.
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Notice

Notice is hereby given that the third Annual General Meeting of
the Members of Reliance Communications Limited will be
held on Tuesday, the 17% day of July 2007 at 11.00 a.m. at
Birla Matushri Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg,
Mumbai 400 020, to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1.

To consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet as at
315 March, 2007, Profit and Loss Account for the fifteen
months period ended on that date and the Reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors' thereon.

To declare dividend on equity shares.

To appoint Auditors and to fix their remuneration and in
this reqgard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or
without modification(s), the following resolution as an
Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered
Accountants and M/s. BSR & Co, Chartered Accountants,
be and are hereby appointed as the Auditors of the
Company, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual
General Meeting until the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting of the Company, on such remuneration
as may be fixed by the Board of Directors."

Special Business

4.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 257
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 1956 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force) Shri Anil D.
Ambani, who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 260 of
the Companies Act, 1956, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation in
terms of the provisions of Article 46 of the Articles of
Association of the Company."

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
i |cat|on(s the following Resolution as an Ordinary

THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 257
all q er applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
(including any statutory modification(s) or

re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Prof. J.
Ramachandran, who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section
260 of the Companies Act, 1956, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retirement
by rotation in terms of the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company."

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modifications, the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 257
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 1956 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) Shri S. P.
Talwar, who was appointed as an Additional Director of
the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 260 of
the Companies Act, 1956, be and is hereby appointed as
Director of the Company, liable to retirement by rotation
in terms of the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company."

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 257
and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 1956 (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)
Shri Deepak Shourie, who was appointed as an Additional
Director of the Company pursuant to the provisions of Section
260 of the Companies Act, 1956, be and is hereby
appointed as Director of the Company, liable to retirement
by rotation in terms of the provisions of the Articles of
Association of the Company."

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred
to as "the Board" which term shall be deemed to include
any Committee, which the Board may constitute for this
purpose), be and is hereby authorised, in accordance with
Section 293(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 (including
any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force) and the Articles of Association of the
Company, to borrow any sum or sums of money (including
non fund based facilities) from time to time at their discretion,
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Reliance Communications Limited

Notice (Contd...)

for the purpose of the business of the Company, from any
one or more banks, financial institutions and other persons,
firms, bodies corporate, notwithstanding that the monies
to be borrowed together with the monies already borrowed
by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained
from the Company's Bankers in the ordinary course of
business) may, at any time, exceed up to three times of
the then paid-up capital of the Company and its free
reserves (that is to say reserves not set apart for any specific
purpose) and that the Board be and is hereby empowered
and authorised to arrange or fix the terms and conditions
of all such monies to be borrowed from time to time as to

Notes

An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of
the Companies Act, 1956, relating to the Special Business
to be transacted at the meeting is annexed hereto.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual
General Meeting (the Meeting) is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll, instead of himself
and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company.
The instrument appointing proxy should, however, be
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not
later than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified
copy of the Board Resolution authorising their representative
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

Members/proxies should fill-in the attendance slip for
attending the Metting. Members who hold shares in
dematerialised form are requested to write their Client ID
and DP ID number and those who hold shares in physical
form are requested to write their folio number in the
attendance slip for attending the meeting to facilitate
identification of membership at the meeting. Members are
also requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the
Meeting.

In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and
the Explanatory Statement are open for inspection at the
Registered Office of the Company on all working days
except Saturday between 11.00 a.m. and 1.00 p.m. up
to the date of the Annual General Meeting.

The Company has notified closure of Register of Members
the Share Transfer Books from Saturday, the 7% July,
Tuesday, the 17% July, 2007 (both days inclusive)
ining the names of members eligible for dividend,
. on equity shares for the year ended 31 March,
respect of shares held in electronic form, the
ill be paid on the basis of particulars of beneficial
ip furnished by the Depositories for this purpose.

interest, repayment, security or otherwise as they may, in
their absolute discretion, think fit."

By Order of the Board of Directors

Hasit Shukla
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

H Block, 1 Floor

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City
Navi Mumbai 400 710.

30% April, 2007

Shareholders holding shares in electronic form are hereby
informed that bank particulars registered against their
respective depository accounts will be used by the Company
for payment of the dividend. The Company or its Registrars
will not act on any request received directly from the
shareholders holding shares in electronic form for any change
of bank particulars or bank mandate. Such changes are to
be advised only to the Depository Participant by the
shareholders.

Shareholders holding shares in physical form are requested
to advise any change of address immediately to the
Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Karvy
Computershare Private Limited. Shareholders holding shares
in electronic form must send the advice about change in
address to their respective Depository Participants and not
to the Company/Registrar.

The Dividend on Equity Shares, if declared at the Annual
General Meeting will be paid on or after 18" July, 2007.

. Members may please note that the dividend warrant shall

be payable at the designated branches of the bank for an
initial period of three months only. Thereafter, the dividend
warrant on revalidation is payable on at limited centers/
branches of the bank. The Members are, therefore, advised
to encash dividend warrant within the initial validity
period.

. Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform

M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited immediately on:

a. the change in the residential status on return to India
for permanent settlement.

b. the particulars of the bank account maintained in India
with complete name, branch, account type, account
number and address of the bank, if not furnished earlier.

. Appointment of Directors: At the ensuing Annual General

Meeting, Shri Anil D. Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran,
Shri S. P. Talwar and Shri Deepak Shourie seek appointment
as Directors. The details pertaining to these Directors required
to be provided pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing
agreement are furnished in the Corporate Governance Report

published elsewhere in the annual report.
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Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 173(2) of the Companies Act, 1956 to the accompanying Notice dated

30 April, 2007.

Item Nos. 4 to 7

The Board of Directors of the Company (“The Board"), at its
meeting held on 7™ February, 2006 had, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 260 of the Companies Act, 1956 ("the
Act") and Article 48 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
appointed Shri Anil D. Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran and
Shri S. P. Talwar as Additional Directors of the Company.
Shri Deepak Shourie was appointed as an Additional Director by
the Board at its meeting held on 30" April, 2006.

In terms of the provisions of Section 260 of the Act, Shri Anil D.
Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran, Shri S. P. Talwar and Shri Deepak
Shourie will hold the Office up to the date of this Annual
General Meeting.

The Company has received notice in writing from a member
along with deposit of Rs. 500 proposing the candidature of
Shri Anil D. Ambani, as a Director not being liable to retire by
rotation. The Company has also received notices in writing from
a member (along with deposits of Rs. 500 for each director)
proposing the candidature of Prof. J. Ramachandran, Shri S. P.
Talwar and Shri Deepak Shourie for the office of Directors of the
Company liable to retirement by rotation under provisions of
Section 257 of the Act.

Brief resume of these Directors, nature of their expertise in
specific functional areas, names of companies in which they
hold directorships, number of shares held in the Company and
memberships/ chairmanships of Board Committees, as stipulated
under Clause 49 of the listing agreement with the Stock
Exchanges in India, are provided in Report on Corporate
Governance forming part of the Annual Report.

The Board accordingly recommend the ordinary resolutions set

out at item Nos. 4 to 7 of the accompanying Notice for the
approval of the Members.

Shri Anil D. Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran, Shri S. P. Talwar and
Shri Deepak Shourie may be deemed to be concerned or interested
in the resolutions relating to their respective appointment.

Item No. 8

In terms of the provisions of Section 293(1)(d) of the Act, the
Board of the Company, cannot except with the consent of the
Company in general meeting, borrow moneys, apart from
temporary loans obtained from the company's bankers in the
ordinary course of business, in excess of aggreqgate of the paid
up capital and its free reserves that is to say reserves not set
apart for any specific purpose.

At present, the Board has powers for borrowing amount up to
Rs. 10,000 crore over and above the paid-up capital and free
reserve of the Company. The proposed resolution for enhancing
the borrowing limit is for expansion in business operations and
the future growth plans of the Company.

The Board accordingly recommend the ordinary resolution set
out at item No. 8 of the accompanying Notice for the approval
of the Members.

None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned
or interested in the said resolution.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Hasit Shukla
Company Secretary

Registered Office:

H Block, 1t Floor

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City
Navi Mumbai 400 710.

30% April, 2007
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Reliance Communications Limited

Directors' Report

Dear Shareowners,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the third Annual Report and the audited accounts for the fifteen month period ended
31t March, 2007, which is the first year of the Company after its restructuring, alignment of telecom businesses and listing of
equity shares.

Financial results

The current financial year of the Company was for a period of fifteen month from 1< January, 2006 to 315t March, 2007. The
previous financial year was for nine month from 15t April, 2005 to 315t December, 2005. The performance of the Company for the
said period is summarised below:

Fifteen Months ended
31t March, 2007

Nine Months ended
31 December, 2005

Particulars (Rs. in crore)  USS in million* (Rs. in crore) UssS in million*
Total income 11,761.91 2 728.98 6.47 1.50
Gross profit before depreciation, amortisation
and exceptional items 4,280.87 993.24 11.59 2.69
Less: a. Depreciation and amortisation 1.836.12 426.01 2.74 0.64
b. Exceptional items and other
adjustments 23.90 5.55 — —
Profit before tax 2,420.85 561.68 8.85 2.05
Less: Provision for -
Current tax 0.27 0.06 2.57 0.60
Fringe benefit tax 11.73 2.72 — —
Deferred tax — — 0.63 0.15
Profit after tax 2,408.85 558.90 5.65 1.31
Add : Balance brought forward from previous year 5.65 1.31 — —
Profit available for appropriation 2,414.50 560.21 5.65 1.31
Appropriations:
Proposed dividend on equity shares 102.23 23.72 — —
Tax on dividend 17.37 4.03 — —
Balance carried to balance sheet 2,294.90 532.46 5.65 1.31

*Rs. 43.10 = USS 1

Your Company reqistered a profit after tax of Rs. 2,408.85 crore
for the period under review in its first year of listing of its equity
shares.

The subscriber base of your Company was 25.24 million as on
315 March, 2007.

The Company operates pan-India across the full spectrum of
wireless, wireline, national long distance, international, voice,
data, video and internet based communications services under
various business units orqganised into three strategic customer-
facing business units; Wireless, Global and Broadband. These
strateqic business units are supported by fully inteqrated, state-
of-the-art network operation platform and by the largest retail
distribution and customer services facilities. The Company also

p hrough its subsidiary, a global submarine cable network

Annual General Meeting, will be paid to (i) those Equity
Shareholders whose names appear in the Register of Members
of the Company after giving effect to all valid share transfers in
physical form lodged with the Company on or before 6% July,
2007 and (ii) to those members whose particulars as beneficial
owners are furnished for this purpose, by the Depositories, viz.
National Securities Depository Limited and Central Depository
Services (India) Limited.

Management discussion and analysis

Management discussion and analysis of the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company for the period under
review as required under Clause 49 of the listing agreement
with the Stock Exchanges, is given as a separate statement
forming part of the Annual Report.

Change of name

During the period under review, the name of the Company was
changed from Reliance Communication Ventures Limited to
Reliance Communications Limited with effect from 7% June,
2006.
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Directors' Report (Contd...)

Alignment of capital structure

On effectuation of the demerqger of inter-alia
Telecommunications Undertaking of Reliance Industries Limited
("RIL") and prior to the transfer of control and management of
the Company to Shri Anil D. Ambani, in terms of the Scheme
of Arrangement, the Company held a minority interest in the
telecommunications business of the Reliance Group by virtue of
its less than 50% shareholding in the key operating companies,
including Reliance Infocomm Limited, Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited and Reliance Telecom Limited. The control
of this business was however vested in the promoters who were
the majority shareholders of these companies. Therefore,
immediate steps were taken to ensure that the ownership
structure of the telecom business was restructured in such a
manner that the interests of the promoters and the public
shareholders of the Company were aligned and the Company
itself carried on the telecom business being the owner of all
parts thereof.

Accordingly, in terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement ("the Scheme") Reliance Infocomm Limited,
Ambani Enterprises Private Limited, Reliance Business
Management Private Limited, Formax Commercial Private
Limited, Reliance Communications Technologies Limited, Reliance
Software Solutions Private Limited, Reliance Communications
Solutions Private Limited and Panther Consultants Private Limited
amalgamated with the Company and Network division of
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited was demerged
to the Company. As a result of the above, all of the assets and
liabilities of the telecom business carried on by Reliance Infocomm
Limited became the assets and liabilities of the Company and
Reliance Infocomm Limited stood dissolved without winding-
up. Consequently, the Company was required to write-off by
debit to its Profit and Loss Account the book value of the
investments in Reliance Infocomm Limited, being the investments
received on demerger from RIL. An amount equal to the Net
Book Value of the assets and investments received on demerger,
including the investments in Reliance Infocomm Limited, were
part of the General Reserve of the Company which arose on
receipt of the net assets on the demerger. Consequently, on the
write-off of the book value of the investments, an equivalent
amount has been withdrawn from the said General Reserve.

These transactions were approved by the Hon'ble High Court of
Judicature at Bombay forming part of the Scheme as sanctioned
by the High Court and have, in accordance with the said approval,
been appropriately, reflected in the Profit and Loss Account of
the Company.

Amalgamation and Arrangement
(a) Scheme of arrangement with Reliance Industries Limited

our Company was vested with the Telecommunications
king of Reliance Industries Limited ("Demerged
") pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement
r Scheme") under Sections 391 to 394 of the
Act, 1956 as approved by the Hon'ble High
Judicature at Bombay vide orders dated
mber, 2005 with effect from 1<t September, 2005.

(b)

(c)

The telecommunications undertaking, constituted inter-alia,
investments in Reliance Infocomm Limited, Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited and Reliance
Telecom Limited.

In terms of the said Scheme, 122,31,30,422
equity shares of the Company were issued and
alloted to the shareholders of the Demerged Company
(except to the Specified Shareholders) in the ratio
of one equity share each of Rs. 5 of the Company
for every one equity share of Rs. 10 held in the
Demerged Company.

The equity shares of the Company so issued were listed
and admitted for trading on Bombay Stock Exchange
Limited ("BSE") and National Stock Exchange of India
Limited ("NSE") with effect from 6% March, 2006. The
Global Depositary Receipts (GDRs) of the Company were
also listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.

Scheme of amalgamation and arrangement involving
reorganisation of group telecom business

As stated above, the Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement (Scheme) for the amalgamation of Reliance
Infocomm Limited, Ambani Enterprises Private Limited,
Reliance Business Management Private Limited, Formax
Commercial Private Limited, Reliance Communications
Technologies Limited, Reliance Software Solutions Private
Limited, Reliance Communications Solutions Private Limited
and Panther Consultants Private Limited ("Transferor
Companies") and demerger of the Network division of the
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited with the
Company, as approved by the Hon'ble High Court of
Judicature at Bombay and the Hon'ble High Court of
Gujarat at Ahmedabad, vide orders dated 21: July, 2006
and 18" July, 2006 respectively became effective on
12" September, 2006.

In terms of the said Scheme, the Company issued and
allotted 82,14,84,568 equity shares of Rs. 5 each to the
promoter group being the shareholders of the transferor
companies. Further, as an integral part of the said Scheme,
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance
Telecom Limited, Flag Telecom Group Limited Reliance
Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited, Reliable Internet
Services Limited, Campion Properties Private Limited and
their respective subsidiaries including subsidiaries of erstwhile
Reliance Infocomm Limited became wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company.

Scheme of arrangement for transfer of Passive Infrastructure

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement between the
Company, Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL) and Reliance
Telecom Infrastructure Limited (RTIL), subsidiaries of the
Company and their respective shareholders and creditors,
as sanctioned by the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at
Bombay vide order dated 16% March, 2007, the passive
infrastructure of the Company and RTL was demerged and
vested into RTIL, with effect from 10" April, 2007.
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(d) Reorganisation of subsidiaries

During the year, the group structure involving various
subsidiaries of the Company was reorqanised in terms of
the various Schemes under Section 391 to 394 of the
Companies Act, 1956, as sanctioned by the High Courts of
applicable jurisdictions. Consequently, Synerqy Infocomm
Solutions Private Limited, Rajasthan Network Private Limited
and Assam Network Private Limited amalgamated with
Synergy Entrepreneur Solutions Private Limited (SESPL)
and Reliance Next Generation Technology Private Limited
amalgamated with Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited.
Further, SESPL and Reliance Infoinvestments Limited are
proposed to be amalgamated with Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliable Internet
Services Limited is proposed to be amalgamated with
Reliance Telecom Limited.

Issue of foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCBs)

Pursuant to the approval accorded by the members through
postal ballot on 31t March, 2006, the Company raised:

(a) USS 500 million in March 2006, through an issue of Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds in foreign currency due in 2011.
The FCCBs have a maturity period of 5 years and 1 day
and are listed at Singapore Stock Exchange. The FCCBs, if
fully converted into equity shares, will result in increase of
capital of the Company by 4,61,57,943 equity shares.
The said FCCBs are convertible by Bondholders into equity
shares or Global Depository Shares (GDSs) at any time on
or after 19" June, 2006 upto the close of the business on
15t May, 2011.

(b) USS 1 billion in February 2007 through an issue of Zero
Coupon Convertible Bonds in foreign currency due in 2012.
The FCCBs have a maturity period of 5 years and 1 day
and are listed at Singapore Stock Exchange. The FCCBs, if
fully converted into equity shares, will result in increase of
capital of the Company by 6,67,09,012 equity shares.
The said Bonds are convertible by Bondholders into equity
shares or GDSs at any time on or after 9 April, 2007 upto
the close of the business on 18" February, 2012.

Subsidiary companies

Upon Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement, coming into
effect, inter alia for merger of eight companies and de-merger
of Network Division of Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited vested with the Company, all the subsidiaries of erstwhile
Reliance Infocomm Limited, Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure
Private Limited, Reliable Internet Services Limited and Campion
Properties Private Limited incluidng the subsidiaries of Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Telecom Limited
and Flag Telecom Group Limited became the subsidiaries of the

ring the,period under review, Paradox Studios Limited,
s adse tal World Limited and NIS Sparta Limited
subsidiaries of the Company and Gateway
Pte. Limited, Reliance Communications
Pte. Limited, Reliance Communications

(Hongkong) Limited, Reliance Communications (New
Zealand) Pte. Limited, Reliance Communication (Australia)
Pty. Limited. RCOM Malaysia SDN.BHD, Synerqy Enterpreneur
Solutions Private Limited and Reliance Next Generation
Technology Private Limited became subsidiaries of the
Company.

Pursuant to the approvals granted by the Central Government
under Section 212(8) of the Companies Act, 1956, copies of
balance sheet, profit and loss account, reports of the board of
directors and auditors of the subsidiaries have not been attached
with the Balance Sheet of the Company. These documents will
be made available upon request by any member of the
Company interested in obtaining the same.

As directed by the Central Government, the financial data of
the subsidiaries have been furnished as separate statement under
'Details of Subsidiaries' forming part of the Annual Report. Further,
pursuant to Accounting Standard (AS -21) issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, consolidated financial
statements presented by the Company in this Annual Report
includes financial information of the subsidiaries.

Fixed deposits

The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits during the
period under review.

Directors

During the period under review, Shri Gautam Doshi, Shri Sandeep
Tandon and Shri L. V. Merchant ceased to be the directors of
the Company.

Shri Anil D. Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran, Shri S. P. Talwar
and Shri Deepak Shourie were appointed as additional directors
in terms of Section 260 of the Act. They hold office up to the
date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Company
has received notices in writing from a member proposing the
candidature of Shri Anil D. Ambani, as Director not liable to
retire by rotation, Prof. J. Ramachandran, Shri S. P. Talwar and
Shri Deepak Shourie for the office of Directors, liable to retirement
by rotation.

Brief resume of the Directors proposed to be appointed, nature
of their expertise in specific functional areas and names of
companies in which they hold directiorship and membership/
chairmanships of Board Committees, as stipulated under Clause
49 of the listing agreements with the Stock Exchanges in India,
are provided in the Report of Corporate Governance forming
part of the Annual Report.

Directors' responsibility statement

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 217(2AA) of

the Act, with respect to Directors' Responsibility statement,

it is hereby confirmed that:

(i) in the preparation of the accounts for fifteen month
period ended 31t March, 2007, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed and that
there are no material departures from the same;

(i) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
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estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the fifteen month period ended 31 March,
2007 and of the profit of the Company for the period
ended that date;

(iii) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safequarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting fraud and other irreqularities; and

(iv) the Directors have prepared the accounts for fifteen month
period ended 31 March, 2007 on a 'going concern' basis.

Consolidated financial statements

In accordance with Accounting Standard AS-21 on Consolidated
Financial Statements read with Accounting Standard AS-23 on
Accounting for Investments in Associates, the Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements are provided in the Annual Report. These
statements have been prepared on the basis of financial
statements received from subsidiary and associates companies,
as approved by their respective boards.

Auditors

M/s. Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants and M/s. BSR
& Co., Chartered Accountants, Auditors of the Company, hold
office upto the conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
The Company has received letters from them to the effect that
their appointments if made, would be within the prescribed
limits under Section 224 (1B) of the Companies Act, 1956 and
that they are not disqualified for such appointment within the
meaning of Section 226 of the Companies Act, 1956.

Auditors' Report

The notes on Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report are
self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
comments.

Particulars of employees

In terms of the provisions of Section 217 (2A) of the Act, read
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975,
names and other particulars of employees are required to be
set out in the Annexure to the Directors' Report. However, as
per the provisions of Section 219(1)(b)(iv) of the Act, the Annual
Report is being sent to all the members of the Company
excluding the aforesaid information. Any member interested in
obtaining such particulars may write to the Company Secretary
at the Registered Office of the Company.

Conservation of enerqy, technology absorption and foreign

exchange earnings and outgo

Particulars required to be furnished under the Companies

(Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of Board of Directors)

Rules, 1988 are as under :-

(1) Part A and B pertaining to conservation of energy and
technology absorption are not applicable to the Company.

(2) Total foreign exchange earnings and outgo for the financial
year is as follows:

(a) Total Foreign Exchange earnings : Rs. 1,687.71 crore
: Rs. 2,236.63 crore

(c) Activities relating to exports; initiatives taken to increase
export; development of new export markets for
products and services; and export plans:

(b) Total Foreign Exchange outgo

The Company has taken various initiatives for
development of export markets for its telecom services
in the countries outside India to increase its foreign
exchange earnings.

Corporate governance

As per Clause 49 of the listing agreement with the Stock
Exchanges, a separate section on Corporate Governance forms
part of the Annual Report.

A Certificate from the Auditors of the Company confirming compliance
with conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated under the
Clause 49 of the listing agreement is annexed to this Report.

Acknowledgement:

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for
the co-operation and support received from Shareholders,
Bankers, Department of Telecommunications, Government of
India, Requlatory Bodies, Customers and other business
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commitment displayed by all employees of the Company
resulting in successful performance during the period under review.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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Anil D. Ambani
Chairman

Mumbai
30% April, 2007
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Forward looking statements

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations describing the
Company's objectives, expectations or predictions may be forward
looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and
requlations. Forward-looking statements are based on certain
assumptions and expectations of future events. The Company
cannot qguarantee that these assumptions and expectations are
accurate or will be realised. The Company assumes no
responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise forward-looking
statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments,
information or events. Actual results may differ materially from
those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could
influence the Company's operations include cost of inter
connection charges, determination of tariff and such other charges
and levies by the requlatory authority, changes in government
requlations, tax laws, economic developments within and outside
the country and such other factors.

The following discussions on our financial condition and results
of operations should be read together with our audited
consolidated financial statements and the notes to those
statements included in the Annual Report. The following
discussions are based on our audited consolidated financial
statements for the 15 month period ended 31t March, 2007,
which have been prepared in accordance with Indian GAAP,
and on information available from other financial records of the
Company and its subsidiaries. All references to a particular financial
period / year are to the period ended 315 March, 2007, which
is the first period of operations, pursuant to the vesting of
Telecommunications Undertaking with the Company and
Restructuring of Telecom businesses. The most significant
accounting conventions and principles of consolidation used by
us, and the accounting policies followed by us in the preparation
of our financial statements, are extracted from our consolidated
financial statements and set out in this section.

Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all
references herein to "we", "us", "our", "the Company", "Reliance",
"RCOM" or "Reliance Communications" are to Reliance
Communications Limited and its subsidiaries.

Overall review

We are India's largest integrated fully converged communications
service provider in the private sector with an individual, enterprise
and carrier customer base of over 30 million, out of which 28
million were wireless customers representing a market share of
17.4% of the Indian wireless market.

Reliance Communications Limited was incorporated on 15% July,
2004, under the Companies Act, 1956 as a private limited
company in the name of Reliance Infrastructure Developers
Private Limited. Subsequently, the Company changed its status
to a_public llmlted on 25% July, 2005 and Changed its name to

interests in the telecommunications companies formerly
controlled by Reliance Industries Limited. The equity shares of
the Company were listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.
and the National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. with effect from
6™ March, 2006.

The Company restructured the telecom businesses by realigning
the economic ownership of various businesses into the Company.
Under a Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement which
became effective from 12% September, 2006, inter alia, Reliance
Infocomm Limited amalgamated with the Company and
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Telecom
Limited, Flag Telecom Group Limited, Reliance Infocomm
Infrastructure Private Limited, Reliable Internet Services Limited
and Campion Properties Limited became wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company, making it a fully transparent and
inteqgrated telecom operator.

In order to further enhance shareholder value, the Company
has also initiated demerger and amalgamation processes among
its subsidiary companies, the details of which are mentioned in
the Directors' Report.

Industry Structure and Requlatory Developments
Industry structure

In March 1999, the Government announced the New
Telecommunications Policy, 1999 ("NTP 1999"), which
permitted Fixed Service Providers (FSP) and Cellular Mobile
Telephone Service Providers (CMTS) to migrate from a fixed
licence fee regime to a revenue sharing arrangement and an
extension of the initial license term from 10 to 20 years. It also
permitted unlimited competition in fixed line services. The
Government also permitted the entry of an additional private
mobile service provider in all the telecom circles.

In October 1999, the Department of Telecommunications
("DoT") was bifurcated into two departments: the DoT, which
performs the role of licensor and policy maker, and the
Department of Telecom Services, which was to function as the
service provider. The service provider was corporatised in October
2000 as a new entity with the name Bharat Sanchar Nigam
Limited (BSNL), which provides telecommunication services in
the entire country except in Delhi and Mumbai, where Mahanagar
Telephone Nigam Limited (MTNL) is the Government-controlled
service provider. In August 2000, the Government announced
the terms of the policy for liberalization of national long distance
services, initiating unlimited competition in these services.
Subsequently, licences were awarded by the Government to
the selected bidders in mobile services.

In January 2001, based on the recommendation of Telecom
Requlatory Authority of India (TRAI), the Government issued
quidelines to permit fixed line service providers to provide limited
mobility services using Wireless in Local Loop ("WLL") technology,
within the Short Distance Charging Area (SDCA), in which the
subscriber is registered. In October 2003, TRAI recommended
to the Government that basic service providers providing limited
mobility services using WLL technology pay a specified amount
as an additional entry fee for such services.

In November 2003, an addendum to NTP 1999 was issued to
include the following cateqories of licences for telecommunication
services:
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e A unified licence for telecommunication services, permitting
the licensee to provide all telecommunication/telegraph
services covering various geographical areas using any
technology; and

e A licence for unified access (fixed line and mobile) services,
or a unified access services licence ("UAS Licence").
permitting the licensee to provide basic and/or mobile
services using any technology in a defined service area.

There is no limitation on the number of UAS Licences that can
be granted in any circle although availability of spectrum will
limit the number of service providers who propose to provide
wireless services.

The Government, through Press Note 5 (2005 Series), dated
3 November, 2005 raised the foreign direct investment limit
applicable to the telecommunications sector from 49% to 74%
(held directly or indirectly), subject to compliance with certain
conditions. The Government of India issued Press Note 3 (2007
Series) dated 19 April, 2007 whereby Press Note 5 (2005
Series) was superseded. All telecom service providers are required
to submit unconditional compliance report within 3 months from
date of issue of Press Note 3 (2007 Series).

Requlatory developments

Revision in Access Deficit Charges (ADC): On 1% March, 2006,
TRAI amended rules for charging ADC in the following manner:

a) Reduction in the rates of ADC per minute on International
Long Distance (ILD) outgoing and incoming calls;

b) There is no ADC on per minute basis on domestic calls;

c) ADC at the rate of 1.5% was payable by all Licensees,
Unified Access Service License (UASL), National Long
Distance (NLD) and ILD on their Adjusted Gross Revenue
(AGR). UASL / Basic Service Operators (BSOs) retain ADC
as percentage of AGR of wireline subscribers.

ADC was further reduced by TRAI from 15t April, 2007 as
follows:

e ADC on outqoing ILD calls was abolished:;

e The rate on ILD incoming calls was reduced from Rs. 1.60
per minute to Re. 1 per minute; and

e ADC as percentage of AGR was reduced from 1.50% to
0.75% of AGR on UASL, NLD and ILD licenses.

Call forwarding: Department of Telecommunication (DoT) has
allowed call forwarding within local area from 15% Auqust, 2006.

Microwave spectrum payment on AGR basis: DoT was charging
microwave spectrum payments on link basis to Code Division
Multiple Access (CDMA) operators. However, from 3 November,

wards, DoT has revised the payment mode from link
'?Tf)’e.g, ntage of AGR basis.

ort charges: TRAI has issued a new requlation
which are being paid to incumbents MTNL and
order has resulted in a reduction of 29% of
he order is effective from 1 April, 2007.

Roaming charges: TRAI has reduced the roaming charges with
effect from 15% February, 2007 vide its 44" amendment of
Telecom Tariff Order dated 24% January, 2007. The charges
have been reduced to the extent of 56%. Under the revised
charges no rental can be charged for the roaming services.
Outqoing call charges have been fixed at Rs. 1.40 per minute
and Rs. 2.40 per minute for local and long distance calls
respectively. Incoming call charges have been fixed at Rs. 1.75
per minute. This will have some impact on the revenues which
the Company feels will be offset by an increase in the volume
of roaming minutes.

IPLC reselling: DoT had allowed reselling of International Private
Leased Circuit (IPLC) bandwidth in November 2006. TRAI made
its recommendations on the terms and conditions of the reselling
on 23" March, 2007. DoT has yet to take a final decision on
the issue.

Recommendation on 3G spectrum and broadband wireless
access spectrum: TRAI has given its recommendations on 3G
spectrum and broadband wireless access spectrum for allocation
among GSM and CDMA operators in respective frequencies.
The trial use of 1900 MHz -1910 MHz band for CDMA and
GSM operators has commenced in parts of the country. For
broadband wireless access services, TRAL has recommended
licensing of WIMAX services in the 3.3 GHz band. Policy
quidelines on these recommendations are awaited from DoT.

Telecom Sector Ombudsman: The service providers associations,
viz. Cellular Operators Association of India (COAI) and Association
of Unified Service Providers of India (AUSPI) have taken a self
initiative for setting up of an Office of Telecom Sector
Ombudsman (TSO). The office will look into the grievances and
complaints of customers. All service providers will share the
cost. Initially, the office has been set up centrally in New Delhi.
The Office of the TSO will be headed by the former Chairman
of TDSAT (Telecom Dispute Settlement Appellate Tribunal),
Mr. Justice D. P. Wadhwa.

Subscriber verification: The Department of Telecom had issued

a circular on 22™ November, 2006, which had mandated that

service providers should verify their subscriber base by 31°t March,

2007.

Key Developments in the Company

Wireless business

With a view to enhance market penetration, the Company

embarked upon the following initiatives.

e Increasing the build-up of our proprietary “Classic” brand
handsets in the mobile segment;

e Increased focus on colour mobile handsets; and

e Massive drive to increase rural telephony services through
fixed wireless phones (FWPs).

Handsets

The Company continued to participate in the growing Indian

mobile market, with introduction of a variety of handsets under

our proprietary "Classic" brand and a clear shift of focus to promote
colour phones. This is in line with our strateqy of building an
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indigenous handset brand, for increasing customer engagement,
while the colour phones would target customers in the mid to
high-end segments.

Reliance SIM based handsets introduced earlier are rapidly gaining
popularity among subscribers. A structured handset upqgrade
programme, viz. the Rainbow Offer, has received encouraging
response.

Mobile operations

We continued to be aggressive with innovative offers in both the
postpaid and the prepaid mobile segments. Our One-India
Tariff Plans set the pace for innovation. We increased our activity
with frequent targeted promotions, consistent with our approach
of providing value for money with a range of transparent plans
to meet the needs of all consumers.

Fixed Wireless Phone (FWP) operations

The Fixed Wireless Phone operations were driven primarily
through rural telephony on the prepaid platform. In our post
paid FWP business, steps were taken successfully to improve
quality of acquisitions and reduce churn.

Broadband business

Broadband business continues to maintain the position of premium
inteqrated solutions provider for top corporates. Broadband has
maintained its leadership in Centrex, Virtual Private Network
(VPN) and Internet Data Centre (IDC) products. Broadband has
introduced pro-active innovative services assurance model of
"TechCheck" for its top-line customers. Customers have rated
Broadband products and services at a very high customer
satisfaction and delight rating. Broadband has obtained ISO
27001:2005 Certification (an Information Security Management
System Standard) for its Business IT Systems in March 2007.

The Company's Broadband segqment grew significantly during
the period, in the midst of agqressive competition from many
other telecom service providers. Our Broadband business has
increased its share of wallet from top corporates for their data
business.

The Company's Broadband segment has created leadership status
in key products developed and offered during this period. New
products launched in the period included Global Conferencing,
Universal Toll Free 1-800, Video Conferencing, Audio
Conferencing, Personal Digital Assistant (PDA) with Win Mobile,
High Availability Leased Line etc.

Global business
Long distance voice services

The Company continues to occupy leadership position in the
international long distance voice segment with 40% market
share for inbound international voice traffic to India and is
carrying about 6 billion international minutes annually.

any offers all traditional wholesale long distance
, viz, carriage of international calls to and from
onal carriage within India, international transit
naqged voice services for contact centers.

hore subsidiaries, the Company also offers virtual
alling services in USA, Canada, UK, Australia and

New Zealand. The Company also offers voice content services
to its retail customers in USA, Canada and Australia and is
extending this to other countries.

Global data services (including FLAG Telecom)

The Company continues to be leading provider of international
connectivity and data services to telecom operators, content
providers and internet communities around the globe. Bandwidth
demand is increasing due to largescale, widespread usage of
many bandwidth intensive applications that did not even exist
a few years ago. The Company expects most of high value
qrowth to be from India, the Middle East and Asia especially
with the rollout of Broadband Internet, WIMAX and IPTV.

The Company launched new initiative of Value Added Services
and rolled out products including Global Ethernet, Global MPLS
VPN and Managed Services.

FLAG Telecom commissioned FALCON which is the first terabit
private cable system connecting India and the Middle East to
the rest of the world. The FLAG Global Network became the
world's largest privately owned, all IP-enabled cable system
with the commissioning of the FALCON cable system. FALCON
is the single largest private investment in a cable system to
have been initiated since the year 2000.

Mobile data and content services

The Company has consistently achieved significant growth in
mobile data and content services. With tariff rates for voice
services constantly under downward pressure, we have been
successful in seeking out new non-voice services to boost
revenues, improve profitability, and help in reducing churn of
subscribers.

The Company continued to populate the market with data
capable ("Reliance Mobile World") handsets at the entry level.
The Company introduced a new version of Reliance Mobile
World service optimized for entry level handsets. This new version
of Reliance Mobile World has helped the Company to maintain
its momentum in growing mobile data and content usage. The
Company ended the period with the highest penetration of
usage for such services in the country, with over 15 million
unigue users of Reliance Mobile World, Reliance MyTunes (Caller
Ringback tones), DIAL 1234 voice interactive services and SMS
content services.

Infrastructure sharing for mobile services

Universal Services Obligation Fund Administrator conducted a
tender for sharing of infrastructure in order to provide mobile
services in rural and remote areas of the country. The Company
won 5,118 towers out of 7,871 towers in the bidding process
for active infrastructure, i.e. BTS, backhaul, battery and power
plant. This is the highest number of towers won by any operator
relating to active infrastructure. Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL),
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, also won 3,844
towers for subsidy related to active infrastructure. RTL won all
the towers where it was present. In addition, Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited, another wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, won 482 towers for subsidy related
to passive infrastructure.
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Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities

Telecom market: The Indian telecom market is currently
among the fastest qrowing telecom markets in the world.
India's mobile subscriber base was over 161.30 million as
at 31t March, 2007. There has been rapid growth in the
industry following several initiatives undertaken by TRAI
and DoT. In addition, the tele-density of mobile (CDMA
and GSM) and fixed line subscribers, or the number of
telephone connections in use for every 100 individuals in
an area, in India has increased significantly since 2001.
Despite this growth, India's tele-density is still significantly
lower than the global average, indicating that India has
considerable potential for growth as compared to more
developed markets.

Telecom technology: The telecom services industry is
characterised by rapid technological change and significant
capital requirements. For example, integrated "WiFi" and
"WIMAX" technology, which allows for voice and data
transfer, has now been tested. Handsets enabled with such
technoloqy have been developed and are being made
available.

Pan-India network: The Company is among the few players
in India with a pan-India network comprising over 80,000
route kilometres of ducted fibre optic cables in intercity
backbone and over 20,000 route kilometres of ducted
fibre optic cables installed in the leading cities in India.
Pan-India coverage enables the Company to provide
seamless roaming services, provide innovative plans like the
Onelndia tariff plan, and connect the offices of corporate
customers across the country for enterprise solutions.

Integrated communications service provider: The Company
together with its intermediary subsidiaries is India's largest
integrated communications service provider in the private
sector with an individual, enterprise and carrier customer
base of over 30 million. The Company is also a leading
player in the international lonq distance voice market with
an estimated market share of over 40% for ILD inbound
India traffic, carrying about 6 billion international minutes
annually. As at 315t March, 2007, the Company had 1.1
million customers for its Reliance India Call service in
developed markets like the USA, Canada, UK, Australia
and New Zealand.

Recognised and trusted telecom brand: Each product and
service offered by the Group bears the "Reliance” brand.
The strength of the Reliance brand in the telecom sector is
further reinforced by its integration with the brand
architecture of the Reliance ADA Group, one of the foremost
business groups in India.

» \lt currently derives substantial revenues from its
usiness and global business (which includes

business have been the fastest growing segment and the
Company expects that revenues from the broadband
business will also increase in future.

Inteqrated network and innovative product offerings: The
extensive nature of the inteqrated and innovative network
rolled out by the Company. which is one of the most
advanced and extensive networks in India, provides vital
advantages. First, it is the basis for an integrated telecom
approach providing a full suite of telecom services ranging
from wireless to wireline, including voice, data and
broadband. Second, the network provides affordable and
high quality services based on technological leadership. Third,
the advanced, integrated technological backbone enables
the Company to offer innovative communication products
and solutions catering to evolving customer needs. The
Company has introduced a variety of value-added services
involving transmission of data together with voice traffic
and plans to increase the proportion of its revenues derived
from such services.

Extensive distribution network: The Company has one of
the most extensive distribution and service networks amongst
all telecom players in India, consisting of nearly 2,000
Reliance World and Reliance Communications outlets
throughout India equipped to sell wireless handsets and
service packages, customer service centres with multi-
lingual capabilities that have over 6,000 agents and over
3 lakh retail outlets selling recharges (of which approximately
90 per cent are electronic recharge enabled). The Company
also has over 3,000 ATMs for electronic recharge of vouchers.

Threats

The Indian telecommunications industry is highly competitive
with most circles having six or seven wireless operators
using GSM and CDMA technology and it is expected to
further intensify. Increasing competition is likely to put greater
pressure on handset prices and service charges, but which
will in turn lead to further expansion of the Indian wireless
communications market. For NLD segment and ILD
segment, licenses to provide these services have been allotted
to a number of new players. These new entrants are likely
to penetrate into the market using aggressive pricing as an
entry strateqy. Thus revenues from these services may come
under pressure. Increase in usage is likely to mitigate this
risk.

Mobile Number Portability ("MNP"), which allows subscribers
to switch their wireless service provider while retaining their
number, is expected to increase the competition and
thereby increase the subscriber churn across the industry.
MNP may be implemented at some time though this will
also provide a greater opportunity to our Company to target
customers of other service providers.

Carrier Access Code ("CAC") enables subscribers to choose
their long distance service provider. Currently subscribers do
not have the ability to choose their long distance service
provider and have to route their lonq distance calls through
the NLD and ILD network with whom the service provider
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has an interconnect agreement. With the implementation
of CAC, the competition in NLD and ILD segments is
expected to increase as even long distance operators, with
no last mile access, will be able to offer their carrier network
to the end users. TRAI has initiated industry level discussion
on the implementation of CAC but currently there is no
visibility on the likely date of its implementation.

Financial Performance - Overview
Results of operations

The Audited Consolidated Financial Results are given for the
period of 15 month commencing from 1¢ January, 2006 to
371t March, 2007. This is the first reporting period of consolidated
operations of the Company; therefore the previous year's figures
are not comparable.

Revenues and operating expenses

The Company earned total revenues of Rs. 17,440.25 crore
(USS 4,046.46 million) in its maiden period of operation post
listing of equity shares on Indian bourses. The net profit after
tax recorded by the Company was Rs. 3,526.43 crore (USS
818.19 million). The Company incurred total operating expenses
of Rs. 10,812.12 crore (USS$ 2,508.61 million).

Operating profit before finance charges, depreciation and
amortisation, exceptional items and provision against fixed
assets (EBITDA)

The Company earned EBITDA of Rs. 6,692.81 crore (USS$
1,552.85 million). The EBITDA margin for the period under
review is 38.38%.

Financial charges

Net finance charges were Rs. 64.68 crore (USS 15 million).
This was net of positive foreign currency conversion adjustments
and treasury incomes.

Depreciation and amortisation

Total of such charges was Rs. 2,919.28 crore (USS 677.32
million).

Profit before tax

The profit before tax was Rs. 3,599.53 crore (US$ 835.15
million). The provision for taxes was Rs. 73.10 crore (US$ 16.96
million). The net profit after tax was Rs. 3,526.43 crore (US$
818.19 million).

Balance sheet

As at 31 March, 2007, the Company had total assets of
Rs. 56,525.43 crore (USS 13,114.94 million). Stakeholders
equity was Rs. 22,930.65 crore (USS$ 5,320.41 million), while
net debt (excluding cash and cash equivalents) was Rs. 1,824
crore (USS 423.20 million), giving a net debt to equity ratio of
0.09 times.

Seqment Wise Performance
Segment

Luring @ﬂ period, the Company added 10.98 million
lessdedistomers (net additions). The GSM customer base
105% and the CDMA customer base grew by

60% during the period under review. As at 31t March,
2007, the Company had 28 million wireless customers on
its network. During the period under review, the Company
launched innovative promotions for bundled talk-time and
a wider range of colour handsets that contributed to the
Company's strong customer acquisition.

The Company also introduced a range of “Classic" branded
phones, which are manufactured in China and Korea
exclusively to the Company's own specifications. Within
two months of its introduction, Classic has already become
the number 2 best selling handset brand in India. The
Company is selling Classic handsets at a rate of nearly
1 million per month. With the Classic brand handset, the
Company has been able to bring down the price of the
lowest entry level CDMA handset. The Company's churn
rate in the period ended 31t March, 2007 continued to
move downwards at 1.9%. The Company has successfully
completed the customer verification and re-verification
exercise. Arising out of this, the Company has discontinued
services to 5.6 million subscribers whose documents could
not be verified. There is no revenue implication as they
were mainly non-revenue generating subscribers. Adjustment
of the subscriber base has had a positive impact on ARPU
and productivity.

ARPU, minutes of use, revenue per minute and non-
voice revenue

The Company's overall wireless ARPU declined by 6.50%
in the period ended 31 March, 2007. The popularity of
the bundled talktime offers had some short term impact
on ARPU. The blended monthly minutes of use per
customer were 509 minutes. Revenue per minute was
stable at Re. 0.75. The tariff initiatives have helped the
Company sustain revenues per minute. Non-voice revenue
was maintained at increasing trend in non-voice ARPU.

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the period ended 31t March, 2007 were
Rs. 12,818.43 crore (US$ 2,974.11 million). EBITDA during
the period was Rs. 4,772.47 crore (US$ 1,107.30 million).
Earning before Interest and Tax during the period was Rs.
2,737.21 crore (USS 635.08 million).

Global Segment
Minutes of use - ILD and NLD operations

Operations in ILD and NLD maintained consistent traffic
growth rates, in-line with the growth of the overall market.
ILD minutes of use annually were 6 billion. NLD minutes
of use annually were 17.6 billion. The Company maintained
its leadership position for ILD inbound India traffic with a
market share of around 40%. Inbound settlement rates
reduced further during the period, partly as a result of
increased competition, partly due to reduction in termination
charges (ADC). While continuing to grow the business, the
focus has been on containing reduction in settlement rates
and maintaining margins. During the period, Reliance India
Call and Reliance Global Call achieved a milestone of 1.1
million international customers in developed markets like
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US, Canada, UK, Australia and New Zealand. Reliance
India Call continued to be the largest retail service with
over 40% market share in USA for India Calling. The
Company also grew its presence in the international transit
and hubbing segment. While the Company launched
innovative managed contact centre services, it is also in the
process of developing new revenue streams higher on the
value chain, particularly for retail business.

NLD voice market grew at healthy rate of 50%. The
Company maintained a market share of around 20% of
NLD traffic. Several new licensees are readying for launch
and pressure on NLD carriage rates is expected to increase.
However, in the period under review, the Company was
able to maintain price levels and significantly increased
volume of traffic carried for external customers.

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the period ended 31t March, 2007 were
Rs. 7,050.79 crore (USS$ 1,635.91 million). Earning before
Interest and Tax during the period was Rs. 861.61 crore
(USS 199.90 million).

3. Broadband Segment
Customer base

With a three fold increase in network coverage during the
period, the customer acquisition has picked up rapid
momentum and net additions in the wireline segment has
grown around 200% during the period. As at 31 March,
2007, the Company has added 620,000 customer circuits,
including approximately 568,000 voice lines and 52,000
enterprise data circuits.

Network coverage

Network coverage as at 31t March, 2007 crossed a
landmark fiqure of 489,000 buildings, representing
significant growth. The Company focused on directly
connecting buildings in the Top 40 cities in India, as a result
of which on-net revenues increased significantly. By using
turnkey contractors and leveraging the existing fiber optic
cables in the ground, the Company has further accelerated
the network roll out. As the Company's broadband business
is currently serving mainly enterprises, the revenue per line
reflects the total portfolio of services and solutions being
delivered to its customers. Our revenue per line has remained
well above industry averages, on account of our mainly
enterprise customer base and our successful cross-sell of
services to our customers.

Revenues and profit

Revenues for the period ended 31 March, 2007 were
Rs. 1312.98 crore (USS 304.63 million). Earning before
rest and Tax during the period was Rs. 349.90 crore
1.18 million).

unications Infrastructure Limited

unications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL) was

n 17% July, 1997. RCIL holds A Cateqory ISP
P-I reqistration for providing telecommunication

infrastructure services such as dark fibre optic cable network to
the Company, engages in the procurement of mobile and fixed
wireless handsets (primarily on the CDMA technology for the
Company) and provides internet data centre services to customers
in India, with over 200,000 square feet of multi-location
internet data centre facilities.

RCIL also provides wireless multimedia services through "Reliance
Mobile World", a wireless data application platform offering more
than 150 applications and wireless internet access services through
“"Reliance Net Connect".

Reliance Telecom Limited

Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL) was incorporated on 1° March,
1994 as the first telecom company promoted by the Reliance
Group. RTL holds licences for providing wireless services in seven
telecom Circles covering 15 States of India. RTL currently
operates in Madhya Pradesh, West Bengal, Himachal Pradesh,
Orissa, Bihar, Assam and Northeast with the licences issued in
December 1995. The Group also acquired another telecom
company named Reliable Internet Services Ltd. (RISL), which
has commenced Cellular Mobile Telephone Service ("CMTS") in
Kolkata Metro Circle as the fourth operator in March 2005.
RTL and RISL are wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Revenues and operating expenses

RTL earned total revenues of Rs. 874.19 crore (USS 202.82
million). The Company incurred total operating expenses of
Rs. 480.97 crore (US$ 111.59 million) as compared to
Rs. 330.91 crore (US$ 76.11 million) in the previous year.

EBITDA

RTL earned EBITDA of Rs. 393.22 crore (USS 91.23 million)
The EBITDA margin for the year under review is about 45% as
compared to about 50% in the previous year. The decrease in
operating margin is mainly on account of drop in ARPU and
increase in BTS site related expenses and connectivity costs.

Net Profit

The net profit after tax recorded by RTL was Rs. 211.26 crore
(USS 49.01 million) as compared to Rs. 39 crore (USS 9.04
million) in the previous year.

Balance sheet

As at 31t March, 2007, RTL had total assets of Rs. 1958.69
crore (USS 454.45 million). Shareholders equity was Rs. 320.18
crore (USS 74.28 million).

FLAG Telecom Group Limited

FLAG Telecom Group Limited (FLAG), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, is a leading provider of international network
transport and data services to the world's leading
telecommunications operators, content providers and internet
service providers.

FLAG owns and operates the largest private submarine cable
system in the World, directly connecting more than 40 countries
from the East coast of the United States, to Europe, the Middle
East, India, South and East Asia, through to Japan. FLAG Global
Network provides unique connectivity between the world's largest
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telecommunications market in developed countries and the world's
fastest growing telecommunications markets in developing
countries. FLAG Global Network provides on-net global
connectivity to key business centres in India, Asia, Europe, the
Middle East and the USA.

IRUs, leased circuits, internet bandwidth, managed data
services

The Company enhanced its market share in Middle East and Intra
Asia. FLAG won major contracts from existing customers
comprising leading service providers in China, Korea, Taiwan and
the Middle East.

Outlook

The Company is very well positioned to capitalise on growth
opportunities in the converged Indian telecom market and with
inteqgrated composite telecom infrastructure setup, the Company
will be able to leverage its strengths in all the operating Circles
and across business qroups. The Company's strength and
leadership is inspired by:

e Enriched human resources and talent repository;

e  Growth potential and with track record of ability to penetrate
into the market with cutting edqe;

e  Expansion of network and covering the untapped rural areas;
e  Optimum utilisation of future technology compliant assets;

e International presence with owned submarine network and
qateways.

The Company has consistently demonstrated its leadership with
several 'Reliance Firsts' and introduction of many innovative
products, services leading to enhanced customer delight.

Risks and concerns

1. Some of the licences are subject to requlatory compliance
and subject to targets and conditions.

The rules and requlations, issued by the government and
requlatory authorities, having jurisdiction over the Company's
operations and licenses, schedules and obligations require it
to meet specified conditions, network build-out
requirements. However, the Company does not perceive
any default on this account.

2. Rapid technological changes may increase competition and
render the Company's technologies, products or services
obsolete.

The telecommunication services industry is characterised
by rapid technological change and significant capital
requirements. However, the Company is constantly assessing
such changes in the technologies and taking immediate
action whenever necessitated.

Company's ability to deliver services may be interrupted

. errupa
s, fl@gds, power loss, telecommunications failures,

and natural disasters. The Company has adequate safequards
to address redundancy failures.

4. The Company may be adversely affected by changes in
tariff structures for services.

The Company is subject to requlations on its tariff structures.
There is no assurance that the Company's business, financial
condition and result of operations will not be materially
affected by any qgovernment mandated or other tarrif
adjustments in future.

5. The Company faces significant and intense competition in
its markets, which could result in decreases in current and
potential customers, revenues and profitability.

The Company faces significant competition in its markets.
In particular, competition is expected to intensify among
providers of mobile telecommunication services, and this
will continue to drive prices for services and handsets lower.

Adequacy of internal control

The Company has built adequate systems of internal controls
towards achieving efficiency and effectiveness in operations,
optimum utilisation of resources, and effective monitoring thereof
as well as compliance with all applicable laws.

The internal control mechanism comprises a well-defined
orqanization structure, documented policy quidelines, pre-
determined authority levels and processes.

The procurement and operational maintenance activities are
planned well in advance to avoid any possible risk of late delivery
of materials, delay in attending to maintenance needs, etc.
The Company, on a reqular basis, stores and maintains all the
relevant data and information as a back up, to avoid any possible
risk of losing important business data.

The management audit team undertakes extensive checks and
reviews through external firms of chartered accountants, who
provide independent and professional observations, and the said
team co-ordinates and follows up for corrective and preventive
actions. A qualified and independent audit committee of the
Board, reviews major internal audit reports, and the adequacy
of internal controls.

Human resource and employees relations

The Company has built a team of highly qualified and competent
professionals to meet the emerging business challenges and
market competition. To inculcate an orientation of high
performance, the Company has formally introduced a
"Performance Management System" under which employees
are awarded points for their significant contribution and high
performance. The Company has developed an environment of
harmonious and cordial relations with its employees. The
Company had 21,894 employees on consolidated basis as at
315t March, 2007.

Achievements in information technology

The Company's focus on Information Technology (IT) is
demonstrated by more than 4,200 man-years of rich experience
across various domains, with about 20% of IT leaders having
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more than 10 years of experience. The IT team's innovation
and delivery continues to win recognition for its ability to use
information technology for enabling and enhancing business value.

The key accolades won by the Company include the following:

e 2006 CIO 100 Award by CIO Magazine - a well respected
IT Industry magazine.

e SAP Best Run Business Club Award from SAP for the
1=t implementation of SAP Materials Data Management
module in India.

e "largest Enterprise-Wide Business Intelligence Deployment
in India" Award by Business Objects.

e The Company's website recognized as one of the top 12
web sites using the "Best Practices” overall in the 'India
Online 2006' study of the top 121 highly popular websites
in India, by JuxtConsult, May 2006

During the period, the Company continued to invest in IT to
increase efficiency, scale, availability and uptime of all mission
and business critical systems. Notable achievements include
handling the acquisition of over 150,000 wireless customers

Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance

To.

The Members of

Reliance Communications Limited

(formerly, Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance by Reliance Communications Limited (formerly,
Reliance Communication Ventures Limited) (‘the Company') for
the fifteen month period ended on 31t March, 2007, as
stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said
Company with Stock Exchanges in India.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the
responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited
to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof,
adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, we certify

per day, processing over 600,000 contact centre calls per day,
extending electronic recharge facilites to handle over 2 million
transactions per day.

Capitalising on the robust foundations already laid, the Company
will continue investments into IT to drive the vision of managing
scale and growth to newer heights. Special emphasis will be
qiven to the following areas:

e Enhancement of all back office operations like HR
management, supply chain, financial processes to rise to
the level of world class standards;

e Implement disaster recovery processes for business continuity
management to recover out of catastrophic situations;

e  (Continued emphasis on design and implementation of control
systems that enable the Company to deliver benchmark
level quality in the area of information risk management;

e  Special emphasis to introduce customer self service and
introduction of new products and value added solutions for
services like IPTV and DTH.

that the Company has complied with the conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Clause 49
of the above mentioned Listing Agreement.

We further state that such compliance is neither an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh D. Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No: 45882

Natrajan Ramkrishna
Partner
Membership No: 32815

Mumbai
30 April 2007

TRUECORY )

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY
OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT



825

Reliance Communications Limited

Corporate Governance Report

Reliance Communications Limited has established a tradition of
the highest standards of corporate governance principles and
best practices. Reliance Communications Limited is committed
to introduce corporate governance practices in tandem with
domestic and international developments to position itself to
conform to the best qovernance practices. The Company takes
feedback into account in its periodic reviews of the gquidelines to
ensure their continuing relevance, effectiveness and responsiveness
to the needs of local and international investors and all other
stakeholders.

The Company adopted the "Reliance Anil Dhirubhai Ambani
Group - Corporate Governance Policies and Code of Conduct”,
which framed a set of systems, processes and principles
conforming to the international standards.

Our qovernance philosophy

The Company's philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages
the attainment of the highest levels of transparency,
accountability and equity, in all facets of its operations, and in
all its interactions with its stakeholders, including shareholders,
employees, the government, lenders and the society. The
Company believes that all its operations and actions must serve
the underlying goal of enhancing overall shareholder value,
over a sustained period of time. In our commitment to practice
sound governance principles, we are guided by the following
core principles.

1. Transparency

To maintain the highest standards of transparency in all
aspects of our interactions and dealings.

2. Disclosures
To ensure timely dissemination of all price sensitive
information and matters of interest to our stakeholders.
3. Accountability
To demonstrate highest levels of personal responsibility and
continually affirm that employees are responsible to
themselves for the pursuit of excellence.
4. Compliances
To comply with all the laws and requlations as applicable
to the Company.
5. Ethical Conduct
To conduct the affairs of the Company in an ethical manner.
6. Stakeholders' Interests
To promote the interests of all stakeholders including of

Customers, Shareholders, Employees, Lenders, Vendors and
of the Society.
Governance practices beyond requlatory requirements
Our governance practices go beyond the statutory and requlatory
requirements. Our endeavour is to follow the spirit of good
than mere compliance with the conditions specified
uthorities. With this objective, we have formulated,
llowing policy documents :

commitments

o

et out and adopted policy document on ‘values
mitments' of the Company. We believe that any

business conduct can be ethical only when it rests on the
nine core values of honesty, integrity, respect, fairness,
purposefulness, trust, responsibility, citizenship and caring.
Code of ethics

Our policy document on 'Code of Ethics' in essence, is that
each employee should conduct the Company's business in
a way that upholds its values and commitments and
compliances with applicable laws in @ manner that excludes
consideration of direct or indirect personal advantage/ gains.
Business policy

Our Business Policy contains the policy on the following:
Fair Market Practices

Inside Information

Financial, Records and Accounting Integrity

External Communication

Work Ethics

Personal Conduct

Health, Safety and Environment

Quality

Separation of the Board's supervisory role from the
executive management

In line with the best global practices, we have adopted
the policy of separating the Board's supervisory role from
the executive management and splitting the posts of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

Prohibition of insider trading policy

The Company endeavours to preserve the confidentiality
of un-published price sensitive information and prevent
misuse of such information. The Company is committed to
transparency and fairness in dealing with all stakeholders
and ensuring adherence to all laws and regulations.

Prevention of sexual harassment

Our policy on Prevention of sexual harassment aims at
promoting a productive work environment and protects
individual rights agqainst sexual harassment.

Whistle blower policy

Our Whistle Blower policy encourages disclosure in good
faith of any wrongful conduct on a matter of general
concern and protects the whistle blower from any adverse
personnel action.

Environment policy

The Company is environmental compliant, preserves and
promotes clean environment activities.

Risk management

Our risk management procedures ensure that the
management controls various business related risks through
means of a properly defined framework.

Boardroom practices
i. Board charter

The Board of Directors have adopted a comprehensive
board charter. The charter has set out matters relating
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to board composition, scope and functions of the board
and its committees, etc.

i. Tenure of independent directors

Tenure of independent directors on the board of the
Company shall not extend beyond nine years, subject
to their re-appointment on retirement by rotation as
per statutory provisions.

ii. Meeting of independent directors with operating
team

The independent directors of the Company meet in
executive sessions with the operating teams in each
of the respective areas, on a reqular basis as they
deem necessary. These executive session discussions
may include topics such as, operating policies and
procedures; risk management strategies; measures to
improve efficiencies; performance and compensation;
strategic issues for board consideration; flow of
information to directors; management progression and
succession and others as the independent directors may
determine. During these executive sessions, the
independent directors have access to members of
management and other advisors, as the independent
directors may determine and deem fit.

iv. = Commitment of directors

The board meeting dates for the entire financial year
are scheduled in the beginning of the year and an
annual calendar of meetings of the board and its
committees is circulated to the directors. This enables
the directors to plan their commitments and facilitates
attendance of all directors at the meetings of the
board and its committees, which normally extends
over the entire appointed day.

K. Governance practices being followed to promote the
interests of our stakeholders

We have in the recent past introduced several trend setting

governance practices to improve stakeholder satisfaction,

some of the major ones being -

i.  Customers:
We have taken various customer centric initiatives, which
give omni services to our subscribers at all times. We
also have captive contact centers having one of the
largest facilities accommodating about 6,000 seats
on round the clock shift basis. In addition to this we
have provided various on line measures on Reliance
World platform which also give ready access to the
customers. Our customers can view and pay their bills
online and manage their account information online.

i. Employees:

We have a dedicated employee service portal
which offers various online services and facilities

nd past salaries, income-tax computations,
&Attendance  and leave management
dﬂt reimbursement, goal setting with relevant

Performance Management System together with
Key Performance Areas, Individual Contrubutions
Areas and Core Responsibilities, potential
assessment module, performance evaluation
system, feedback mechanism, reward and
recognition policy, grievance redressal system, exit
interviews, training and development module, etc.,
all of which collectively lead to enhance employee
engagement.

e As ameans of providing accelerated career growth
to high performing talent, we have a pilot program
of assessment centers, wherein employees who
have demonstrated performance are put through
a rigorous assessment program for higher role.

e We have institutionalised a leadership
development process, linked to Reliance DNA and
leadership competencies, which identify high
potential talent on a periodic basis and provide
necessary learning interventions to up skill them
to take on larger responsibilities and roles.

ii. ~Shareholders : The Company through its Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent has presence in major cities of
the Country for prompt services and resolution of the
queries of the Shareholders.

iv. Lenders : The Company has been prompt in honoring
all debt obligations to its lenders.

v.  Society : The Company, in keeping with its Corporate
Social Responsibility (CSR) policy, focuses on healthcare,
education, training and other social initiatives.

Compliance with the code and rules of Luxembourqg Stock
Exchange and Singapore Stock Exchange

The Global Depository Receipts (GDRs) issued by the Company
are listed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (LSE). The
Company had also issued Zero Coupon Foreign Currency
Convertible Bonds, which are listed at Singapore Stock Exchange
(SGX). The Company has reviewed the code on corporate
qovernance of LSE and SGX, though the same are not applicable
to the Company. However, the Company's corporate governance
practices substantially conform to these codes and rules.

Compliance with Clause 49 of the listing agreement
The Company is fully compliant with the mandatory requirements

of Clause 49 of the listing agreement formulated by Securities
and Exchange Board of India (SEBI).

We present our report on compliance of governance conditions
specified in Clause 49 of the listing agreement with effect from
6% March, 2006, the date of listing of the Company's Shares
on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE) and the National
Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE).

[.  Board of Directors
1. Board composition - Board strength and representation

The existing strenqgth of the Board of Directors of the
Company is four. All the directors, including the Chairman
are non - executive directors. Of the non-executive directors,
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only Shri Anil D. Ambani, being the promoter, is non-
independent, while all other directors are independent.

The directors on the Board are experienced, competent
and highly renowned persons from their respective fields.
The independent directors take active part at the Board
and Committee meetings, which add value to the decision
making process of the Board of Directors.

The composition of the Board of Directors is in conformity
with the Corporate Governance requirements. The
composition and the cateqory of directors on the Board of
the Company are as under:

Category Particulars of the directors

Promoter non executive
non-independent director @ Shri Anil D. Ambani, Chairman

Independent directors e Prof. J. Ramachandran
e Shri S. P. Talwar

e Shri Deepak Shourie

The Company has appointed Shri Hasit Shukla, Company
Secretary as the Manager of the Company in terms of the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for a period of five
years with effect from 8% February, 2006.

Conduct of board proceedings

The day to day business is conducted by the executives
and the business heads of the Company under the direction
of the Board led by the Chairman. The Board holds five to
six meetings every year to review and discuss the
performance of the Company, its future plans, strategies
and other pertinent issues relating to the Company.

The Board performs the following specific functions in
addition to oversee the business and the management:

e review, monitor and approve major financial and
business strategies and corporate actions

® assess critical risks facing by the company - review
options for their mitigation

e provide counsel on the selection, evaluation,
development and compensation of senior management

e ensure that processes are in place for maintaining the
integrity of
- the Company
- the financial statements
- compliance with law
- relationships with all the stakeholders

e delegation of appropriate authority to the senior
executives of the Company for effective management
of operations

Board meetings

Since the listing of equity shares of the Company on 6%
March, 2006, the Board held 9 meetings during 2006-
07 on 12% March, 2006, 21 March, 2006, 30* April,
2006, 314 July, 2006, 30" October, 2006, 10" December
2006, 10" January, 2007, 31 January, 2007 and 9"
February, 2007. The maximum time gap between any
two meetings was 91 days and the minimum gap was 8
days.

Attendance of directors

The details of attendance of directors at the Board meetings,
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the number of
companies and committees, where they are a director/
member are given below :-

Name of Number Number
director®

Attendance
of Board of Board at the last
meetings meetings AGM held on (including

Committee(s)
membership
(including RCOM)?

Number of
directorships

held attended® 24.01.2006 RCOM)C Membership Chairmanship
Shri Anil D. Ambani 9 9 N.A. 7 4 -
Prof. J. Ramachandran 9 7 N.A. 6 8 5
Shri S, P. Talwar 9 9 N.A. 10 9 3
Shri Deepak Shourie 7 4 N.A. 1 2 -

Notes:

a Al directors except Shri Deepak Shourie, were appointed with effect from 7™ February, 2006. Shri Deepak Shourie was

appointed with effect from 30" April, 2006.

of the directors is related to any other director.

Board meetings held after the date of listing only considered i.e. after 6™ March, 2006.

bers of directorships excluding directorship in foreign Company, alternate directorships, Companies reqistered under
fon 25 of the Companies Act, 1956 and private companies.

ittee includes Shareholders' / Investors' Grievance Committee and Audit Committee.
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f. None of the directors has any business relationship
with the Company.

q.  None of the directors received any loans and advances
from the Company during the year.

h. In accordance with Clause 49 of the listing agreement,
the committee membership given above pertains to
Audit Committee, the Shareholders/Investors Grievance
Committee and excludes the other functional
committees viz. the Investment Committee, the
Allotment Committee and the Employees Stock Option
Scheme Committee.

5. Membership of board committees

No director holds membership of more than 10
committees of Boards nor is any director Chairman
of more than 5 Committees of Boards.

6. Details of directors

The abbreviated resumes of all directors are furnished
hereunder:

Shri Anil D. Ambani

Regarded as one of the foremost corporate leaders
of contemporary India, Shri Anil D. Ambani, 48, isthe
Chairman of all listed companies of the Reliance ADA
Group, namely, Reliance Communications Limited, Reliance
Capital Limited, Reliance Enerqy Limited and Reliance
Natural Resources Limited.

He is also the President of the Dhirubhai Ambani Institute of
Information and Communications Technology.

An MBA from the Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania, Shri Ambani is credited with pioneering several
financial innovations in the Indian capital markets. He
spearheaded the country's first forays into overseas capital markets
with international public offerings of global depositary receipts,
convertibles and bonds. Under his Chairmanship, the constituent
companies of the Reliance ADA Group have raised nearly USS$S
3 billion from global financial markets in a period of less than
15 month.

Shri Ambani has been associated with a number of prestigious
academic institutions in India and abroad. He is currently a
member of:

e \Wharton Board of Overseers, The Wharton School, USA

e Board of Governors, Indian Institute of Management (IIM),
Ahmedabad

e Board of Governors, Indian Institute of Technology (IIT),
Kanpur

e  Executive Board, Indian School of Business (ISB), Hyderabad

2004, Shri Ambani was elected as an Independent

Bf.the Rajya Sabha - Upper House, Parliament of India,

ipn K& 'chose to resign voluntarily on 25% March, 2006.
L ]

Businessman of the Year' in a poll conducted
Times of India - TNS, December 2006.

e Voted the 'Best role model' among business leaders
in the bi-annual Mood of the Nation poll conducted
by India Today magazine, Auqust 2006.

e (Conferred 'the CEO of the Year 2004' in the Platts
Global Enerqgy Awards

e (Conferred 'The Entrepreneur of the Decade Award'
by the Bombay Management Association, October
2002.

e Awarded the First Wharton Indian Alumni Award by
the Wharton India Economic Forum (WIEF) in recognition
of his contribution to the establishment of Reliance
as a qlobal leader in many of its business areas,
December 20071.

e Selected by Asiaweek magazine for its list of ‘Leaders
of the Millennium in Business and Finance' and was
introduced as the only ‘new hero' in Business and Finance
from India, June 1999.

Prof. J. Ramachandran

Prof. J. Ramachandran, Director (49) is the Chair Professor of
Business Policy at the Indian Institute of Management,
Bangalore. He is a qualified Chartered Accountant and Cost
Accountant and has obtained his doctorate from the Indian
Institute of Management, Ahmedabad.

He is also a director of Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited, Sasken Communication Technologies Limited, Indus
League Clothing Limited, Redington (India) Limited and Bhoruka
Power Corporation Limited.

Shri S. P. Talwar

Shri S.P. Talwar, Director (68) is a former Deputy Governor of
Reserve Bank of India. He is also former Chairman-cum-
Managing Director of Bank of Baroda, Union Bank of India and
Oriental Bank of Commerce. He is graduate in Arts and Law.
He is also qualified as CAIIB. He has vast experience in financial
services sector in the country. He is also director of Vemagiri
Power Generation Limited, Crompton Greaves Limited, Reliance
Capital Trustee Co. Limited, Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Asset Construction Company
Limited, Reliance General Insurance Company Limited, Videocon
Industries Limited and Housing Development Infrastructure
Limited.
Shri Deepak Shourie
Shri Deepak Shourie, Director (58) is Bachelor of Arts in
Economics with Honours and has more than 37 years' exposure
with an emphasis on media, consumer goods, and corporate
affairs. He presently holds the position of Executive Vice President
and Managing Director of Discovery Communications India. He
is also on the Board of Indian Broadcasting Foundation.
7. Insurance coverage
The Company has obtained Directors and Officers liability
insurance coverage in respect of any legal action that might
be initiated aqainst Directors.
II.  Audit Committee
In terms of Clause 49 of the listing agreement as well as
Section 292A of the Companies Act, 1956, the Board at
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its meeting held on 8" February, 2006 constituted the
Audit Committee comprising Shri Anil D. Ambani, Prof. J.
Ramachandran and Shri S. P. Talwar. Shri Deepak Shourie
has been appointed as member of the Committee with
effect from 30% April, 2006, being the date of his
appointment as Director.

The Audit Committee is chaired by Prof. J. Ramachandran,
who has wide experience on accounting, financial, business
policies and taxation issues. All the other members of the
Committee are financially literate.

Shri Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee, inter alia advises the management
on the areas where systems, processes, measures for
controlling and monitoring revenue assurance internal audit
can be improved. The minutes of the meetings of the
Audit Committee are placed before the Board. The terms
of reference of the Audit Committee are in accordance
with all the items listed in Clause 49(I1)(D) and (E) of the
listing agreement as follows:

i Overseeing of the Company's financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial information
to ensure that the financial information is
correct, sufficient and credible.

i Recommending the appointment, reappointment
and replacement/removal of statutory auditor
and fixation of audit fee

i Approving payment for any other services by
statutory auditors

iv. Reviewing with management the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board,
focusing primarily on;

a. Matters required to be included in the
Director's Responsibility Statement included
in the report of the Board of Directors

b. Any changes in accounting policies and practices

c. Major accounting entries based on exercise
of judgement by management

d. Qualifications in draft audit report.

e. Significant adjustments arising out of audit.

f. Compliance with listing and other leqal
requirements concerning financial statements

g. Any related party transactions

v Reviewing with the management the quarterly
financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

vi  Reviewing with the management, the performance
of the external and internal auditors, the adequacy

internal control systems.

lewing the adequacy of internal audit function,

ing the structure of the internal audit

tment, staffing and seniority of the official
ing the department, reporting structure
erage and frequency of internal audit.

The

viii

Xi

xii

xiii

Xiv

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up thereon.

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations
by the internal auditors into matters where
there is suspected fraud or irreqularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material
nature and reporting the matter to the board.

Discussion with statutory auditors before the
audit commences about nature and scope of
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain
any area of concern.

To look into the reasons for substantial defaults
in the payment to the depositors, debentureholders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared
dividends) and creditors.

To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower

mechanism.

Carrying out all other functions as is mentioned

in the terms of reference of the Audit committee.

Review the following information:

a. Management Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations;

b. Internal audit reports relating to internal
control weaknesses;

c. Management letters / letters of internal
control weaknesses issued by statutory /
internal auditors;

d. Statement of significant related party transactions;
and

e. The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of the Chief internal auditor.

Audit Committee has the following powers:

to investigate any activity within its terms
of reference.

to seek any information from any employee.
to obtain outside legal and professional advice.

to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

Attendance at the meetings of the Audit Committee
held during 2006-2007.

The Audit Committee held its meetings on 30™ April,
2006, 31°t July, 2006, 30" October, 2006 and 30%"
January, 2007. The maximum gqap between any two

meetings was 91 days.

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure  attended
of the director

Shri Anil D. Ambani 4 4

Prof. J. Ramachandran 4 3

Shri S. P. Talwar 4 4

Shri Deepak Shourie 3 1

The meeting considered all the points in terms of its reference
at periodic intervals.
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III. Nomination / Remuneration Committee

The nomination/remuneration Committee of the Board is
constituted to formulate from time to time (a) process for
selection and appointment of new directors and succession
plans; and (b) recommend to the Board from time to time,
a compensation structure for directors and a manager.
Presently, the Company has no executive director.

The nomination/remuneration Committee comprises of four
directors i.e. Shri Anil D Ambani, Prof. J. Ramachandran,
Shri S. P. Talwar and Shri Deepak Shourie. Shri Deepak
Shourie has been appointed as a member of the Committee
with effect from 30" April, 2006, being the date of his
appointment as director. Prof. J. Ramachandran is the
Chairman of the Committee. During the period, the
nomination/remuneration Committee met on 371t July,
2006 and 9% February, 2007. All the members of

nomination/remuneration Committee attended the said
meetings except Prof. J. Ramachandran, who attended
the meeting held on 9% February, 2007 only.

Shri Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the nomination/remuneration Committee.

All directors, being non executive, are paid sitting fees for
attending the meetings of the Board and its committees.
The non executive directors are also proposed to be
remunerated by way of Commission not exceeding Rs. 44
crore for the year commencing 15t April, 2006 to 315t March,
2007 as may be decided by the nomination/remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company,
within the overall limits of the profits as approved by the
Central Government in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act, 1956.

Details of remuneration paid to the non - executive directors are given below:

(Rs. in lacs)

Name Remuneration * Sitting fees Commission Total
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

Shri Anil D. Ambani, Chairman Nil 4.80 - 4.80
Prof. J. Ramachandran, Director Nil 3.00 - 3.00
Shri S. P. Talwar, Director Nil 5.00 - 5.00
Shri Deepak Shourie, Director Nil 1.80 - 1.80

* Attendance at meetings considered w.e.f. 6" March, 2006.

Notes:-

(1) The Company has so far not issued any stock options to its Directors.

(2) There were no other pecuniary relationships or transactions of non-executive directors vis-a-vis the Company.

Equity shares held by directors

Number of equity shares held by the non-executive directors in
the Company as on 31 March, 2007 are as follows:

Shri Anil D. Ambani, Chairman - 18,59,171 equity shares,
Prof. J. Ramachandran - 482 equity shares, Shri S. P. Talwar —
Nil and Shri Deepak Shourie — 2000 equity shares
Managerial remuneration policy

The nomination/remuneration Committee determines and
recommends to the Board, the compensation of the Directors
and the Manager. The key components of the Company's
Remuneration Policy are:

e  Compensation will be a major driver of performance.

e (Compensation will be competitive and benchmarked with
a select group of companies from the service sector.

e Compensation will be transparent, fair and simple to
ister.

-

"
pafisation will be fully legal and tax compliant.
L]

[ ]

Th mbe§ ad, through Postal Ballot on 31t March, 2006,

S o apprpval and permissions as may be required, approved
&h

ommissions to non executive directors, who are

not in the full time employment, upto the limits laid down
under the provisions of Section 309(4) of the Companies Act,
1956, computed in the manner specified in the Act, or such
other limit as approved by the Central Government, for a period
of 5 years from the financial year commencing 1< April, 2006.
The Company has obtained approval from the Central
Government vide letter No. 12/256/2007-CL.VII dated
19% April, 2007 for payment of commission to non executive
directors upto a limit of 3% of the profits of the Company each
year for a period of 5 years from the financial year commencing
1t April, 2006.

Criteria for making payments to non-executive directors

The remuneration to non executive directors is benchmarked
with the relevant market and performance oriented balanced
between financial and sectored market comparative scales,
aligned to Corporate goals, role assumed and number of
meetings attended.

IV. Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievances Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted
Shareholders/ Investors Grievances Committee comprising
Prof. J. Ramachandran as the Chairman and Shri Anil D. Ambani,

26
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Shri S. P. Talwar and Shri Deepak Shourie as the members.
Shri Deepak Shourie has been appointed as a member of
the Committee with effect from 30™ April, 2006, being
the date of his appointment as director.

The Company has appointed M/s. Karvy Computershare
Private Limited, Hyderabad to act as the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company. The Committee deals
with matters relating to transfer/ transmission of shares,
issue of duplicate share certificates, review of shares
dematerialised and all other related matters. The Committee
also monitors redressal of investors' grievances. Particulars
of investors grievances received and redressed are furnished
in the Investor Information Section of this Report.

Shri Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievances Committee. He
also acts as the Compliance officer of the Company.

During the period, the Shareholders'/ Investors' Grievances
Committee held its meetings on 30™ April, 2006, 31 July,
2006, 30% October, 2006 and 30% January, 2007. The
maximum gap between any two meetings was 91 days.

The total number of complaints received and replied to
the satisfaction of shareholders during the period under review
were 270. There were no complaint pending as on 31
March, 2007.

VI. General body meetings

Members Meetings held Meetings
during the tenure  attended
of the director

Shri Anil D. Ambani 4 4

Prof. J. Ramachandran 4 3

Shri S. P. Talwar 4 4

Shri Deepak Shourie 4 1

The meeting considered all the points in terms of its reference
at periodic intervals.

V. Employees Stock Option Scheme (ESOS) Compensation
Committee

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 10" January,
2007, constituted a Employees Stock Option Compensation
Committee of the Directors of the Company to supervise
and administer the employees stock option scheme of the
Company.

The ESOS Compensation Committee comprises of Prof. J.
Ramachandran as Chairman and Shri S. P. Talwar and Shri
Deepak Shourie as the Members.

Shri Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary
to the ESOS Compensation Committee.

One meeting of the ESOS Committee was held during the
year on 10" January, 2007. During the period under review,
no stock options were issued by the Company.

The Company was incorporated on 15% July, 2004. Prior to listing on 6% March, 2006, the Company held its last two Annual

General Meetings as under :

Year Date Venue Time Special Resolutions
passed

2005 24" January, 2006 4% Floor, Maker Chambers 1V, 3.00 p.m None

(9 months) (2 AGM) 222, Nariman Point, Mumbai 400 021

2004-2005  22™ July, 2005 3 Floor, Reliance Energy Centre, 3.00 p.m None

(1% AGM)

Santa Cruz (E), Mumbai - 400 055

Extraordinary General Meeting

During the period, the Company had held an Extraordinary
General Meeting on 3 June, 2006 for passing following special
resolutions.

1. Sponsored Global Depositary Receipts/American Depositary
Receipts.

2. Change of Name of the Company.

Court convened Meeting

During the period, the Company held two Court Convened
Meetings of the shareholders as per the directions of the Hon'ble
High Court of Judicature at Bombay as follows:-

erCourt Convened Meeting of the shareholders held on

Limited, Reliance Communications Technologies Limited,
Reliance Software Solutions Private Limited, Reliance
Communications Solutions Private Limited and Panther
Consultants Private Limited with the Company and
demerger of Network division of Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited.

The said meeting was chaired by Justice M.H. Kania, Former
Chief Justice of India. The said Scheme after approval of
the shareholders was also approved by the Hon'ble High
Court of Gujarat and Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at
Bombay and made effective from 12% September, 2006.

(b) The Court Convened Meeting of the shareholders held on
27 January, 2007 at 11.30 a.m. to pass the resolution
approving the Scheme of Arrangement inter alia between
the Company, Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL) and Reliance
Telecom Infrastructure Limited (RTIL), subsidiaries of the
Company for de-merger of passive Infrastructure division to
RTIL.
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The said meeting was chaired by Justice M.H. Kania, Former Chief Justice of India. The said Scheme after approval of the

shareholders was also approved by the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay and made effective from 10" April, 2007.
VII. Postal Ballot

During the period, the Company had conducted two postal ballots on 20™ February, 2006 and 28% November, 2006 as

required under the Companies (Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001. Shri Anil Lohia, Chartered Accountant was

appointed as the Scrutinizer for overseeing the Postal Ballot process. All the resolutions were passed with the requisite majority
details of which are as follows:

Date of declaration
of result of postal

Particulars of special resolutions Percentage of votes

cast in favour of

Ballot resolution
31 March, 2006 a. Increase in Authorised Share Capital and Alteration of Articles of 92.26
Association of the Company
b. Issue of Securities under Employees Stock Option Scheme 99.92
c. Payment of commission to non-executive directors 99.73
d. Raising of resources through issue of securities in the international markets 82.47
e. Increase in limits for FII Investment 99.94
f. Shifting of Registered office of the Company from the State of 99.90
Maharashtra to the State of Goa.
8" January, 2007 a. Alteration of Memorandum of Association by adding Clause VI after the 99.99
existing Clause V in the Memorandum of Association of the Company
b. Alteration of Articles of Association by adding Article 90 after the existing 99.99
Article 89 in the Articles of Association of the Company.
c. Issue of securities under the Employee Stock Option Scheme 99.85
d. Issue of securities under the Employee Stock Option Scheme to the 99.84

employees and directors of the holding /subsidiary companies

The Company had complied with the procedures for Postal Ballot in terms of the provision of Section 192A of the Companies Act,

1956 as well as Companies (Passing of Resolution by Postal Ballot) Rules, 2001 and amendments thereto.

VIII. Means of communication 2. Subsidiaries
Information like quarterly financial results and media releases The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian
on significant developments in the Company as also subsidiary company and hence, it is not required to have an
presentations that have been made from time to time to independent director of the Company on the Board of such
the media, institutional investors and analysts are hosted subsidiary company. The minutes of the meeting of the
on the Company's web site and has also been submitted board of directors of subsidiary companies are placed before
to the stock exchanges on YVh'Ch the Company's equity the meeting of board of directors of the Company and the
shares, GDR .and FCCBs are listed, to enable them to put attention of the directors is drawn to all significant
them on their own web sites. The Company has published transactions and arrangements entered into by the subsidiary
its Financial Results in The Free Press Journal/ Financial companies.
Express (English) and Navshakti (Marathi). .

3. Disclosures

EDIFAR

As per the requirements of Clause 51 of the listing
aqreement with the stock exchanges, all the data relating
to quarterly financial results, shareholding pattern, etc. are
being electronically filed on the Electronic Data Information
Filing And Retrieval (EDIFAR) website of SEBI
(www.sebiedifar.nic.in) within the time frame prescribed in
this reqard.

pliance with other mandatory requirements
ent Discussion and Analysis

ent Discussion and Analysis Report forms part
ual Report and includes discussions on various

a Related Party transactions

The Company has entered into related party transactions
as set out in the Notes to Accounts, which are not
likely to have a conflict with the interest of the
Company. The details of all significant transaction
with related parties are periodically placed before
the audit committee.

b No penalty or strictures

No penalty or stricture has been imposed on the
Company by the Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other
statutory authority, on any matter related to the capital
markets, since the date of listing of equity shares i.e;
6™ March, 2006.
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c Disclosure of accounting treatment

In the preparation of financial statements,
the Company has followed the Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India to the extent applicable.

d Disclosures on risk management

The Company has laid down Risk Management
Policy defining Risk profiles involving Strategic,
Technological, Operational, Financial, Organisational,
Legal and Requlatory risks within well defined
framework. The Board periodically reviews the
business related risks.

e Code of Conduct

The Company adopted the code of conduct
and ethics for directors and senior management.
The code has been circulated to all the members
of the board and senior management and
the same has been put on the company's website
www.rcovl.com /www.reliancecommunications.co.in.
The board members and senior management
have affirmed their compliance with the code
and a declaration signed by the Manager of
the Company appointed in terms of the Companies
Act, 1956 (i.e. the CEO within the meaning of
Clause 49-V of the listing agreement) is given below:

"It is hereby declared that the Company has
obtained from all members of the board and
senior management affirmation that they have
complied with the code of conduct for directors
and senior management of the Company for
the financial year 2006-07."

Mumbai
30™ April, 2007
f  Certification by CEO and CFO

A certificate from the CEO and CFO was placed
before the Board.

¢ Review of Directors' responsibility statement

Hasit Shukla
Manager

The Board in its report have confirmed that the
financial accounts for the period ended 31t March,
2007 have been prepared as per applicable
accounting standards and policies and that sufficient
care has been taken for maintaining adequate
accounting records.

Compliance with non-mandatory requirements
Tenure of independent directors on the Board

The tenure of independent directors on the Board of the
y shall not exceed nine years in aggreqate.

n / Remuneration Committee

i has set up a Nomination / Remuneration
i details whereof are furnished at Sr. No. III of

3. Shareholder rights

The quarterly financial results including summary of
significant events of relevant period of three months are
published in newspapers and hosted on the website of the
Company.

4. Audit qualifications

The Notes on Accounts referred to in the Auditors' Report
are self explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
comments.

5. Training of Board Members

A programme has been devised to train Board members in
the business model of the Company, risk profile of the
business parameters and their responsibilities as directors.

6. Whistle blower policy

The Company has formulated a policy to prohibit managerial
personnel from taking adverse action against employees
who are disclosing in good faith alleged wrongful conduct
on matters of public concern involving violation of any law,
mismanagement, gross waste or misappropriation of public
funds, substantial and specific danger to public health and
safety or an abuse of authority. The policy also lays down
the mechanism for making enquiry in to whistle blower
complaint received by the Company.

Employees aware of any alleged wrongful conduct are
encouraged to make a disclosure to the audit committee.
Employees knowingly making false alleqations of alleged
wrongful conduct to the audit committee shall be subject
to disciplinary action. No personnel of the Company have
been denied access to the grievance redressal mechanism
and audit committee of the Board of the Company .

XI. General shareholder information

The mandatory and various additional information
of interest to investors is voluntarily furnished in
a separate section on investor information elsewhere
in this report.

Auditor's certificate on corporate governance

The Auditors Certificate on compliance of Clause 49 of the
listing agreement relating to corporate governance is annexed
to this report.

Review of qovernance practices

We have in this report attempted to present the
qgovernance practices and principles being followed at
Reliance Communications, as evolved over a period,
and as best suited to the needs of our business and
stakeholders.

Our disclosures and governance practices are continually revisited,
reviewed and revised to respond to the dynamic needs of our
business and ensure that our standards are at par with the
qlobally recognised practices of governance, so as to meet the
expectations of all our stakeholders.
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Investor Information

Annual General Meeting

The third Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held
on Tuesday, the 17% July, 2007 at 11.00 a. m. at Birla Matushri
Sabhagar, 19, Sir Vithaldas Thackersey Marg, Marine Lines,
Mumbai 400 020.

Financial year of the Company

The financial year under review of the Company was of fifteen
month period from 1% January, 2006 to 31 March, 2007.

Website: The website of the Company www.rcovl.com/
www.reliancecommunications.co.in contains a section about
Investor Relations and Media Section It carries comprehensive
database of information of interest to our investors including
on the results of the Company, dividends declared by
the Company, any price sensitive information disclosed to the
requlatory authorities from time to time, business activities
of the Company and the services rendered / facilities extended
by the Company to our investors.

Dedicated email id for investors: For the convenience of our
investors, the Company has designated an exclusive email id for
investors i.e. RCOM.investor@relianceada.com.

Compliance Officer: Shri Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary is
the Compliance Officer of the Company.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agdents

M/s Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit: Reliance Communications Limited
Plot No. 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar, Madhapur
Hyderabad 500 081

Telephone No: 040 2342 0815-8025
Facsimile No: 040 2342 0859

e-mail: praveendmr@karvy.com

Shareholders/Investors are requested to forward share transfer
documents, dematerialisation requests (through their respective
Depository Participant) and other related correspondence directly
to M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited at the above
address for speedy response.

Dividend announcement

The Board of Directors of the Company have proposed a maiden
dividend of Re. 0.50 (10%) per Equity Share of the Company
for the financial year ended 31 March, 2007, subject to the
approval by shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
(AGM). The dividend, if approved, will be paid on or after 18®
July, 2007.

Book closure dates for the purpose of dividend and AGM

To determine the entitlement of shareholders to receive the
final dividend, if any. for the financial year ended 31 March,
2007, the Reqister of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from Saturday, 7% July, 2007
c 17% July, 2007 (both days inclusive) as well as for

(i) to those members whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company, after giving effect to all valid
share transfers in physical form lodged with the Company/
Reqistrar on or before 6 July, 2007.

(i) inrespect of shares held in electronic form, to those "deemed
members" whose names appear in the statements of
beneficial ownership furnished by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) as at the end of business hours on
6 July, 2007.

Direct deposit of dividend (electronic clearing service)

Members desirous of receiving dividend by direct electronic
deposit to their bank account may authorise the Company with
their mandate. For details, kindly write to the Registrar and
Share Transfer Agents at the address mentioned above or
you may visit the Investor Relations Section at our website
www.rcovl.com/www.reliancecommunications.co.in.

Bank details for physical shareholdings

In order to provide protection against fraudulent encashment of
dividend warrants, Members are requested to provide, if not
provided earlier, their bank account numbers, bank account type,
names and addresses of bank branches, quoting folio numbers,
to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents of the Company to
enable them to incorporate the same on their dividend warrants.
This is a mandatory requirement in terms of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (SEBI) circular No. No.D&CC/FITTC/
CIR-04/2001 dated 13" November, 2001.

Bank details for electronic shareholdings

While opening Accounts with Depository Participants (DPs), you
may have given your Bank Accounts details, which will be used
by the Company for printing on dividend warrants for remittance
of dividend. SEBI vide its circular No. DCC/FITTCIR-3//2001
dated 15" October, 20071 has advised that all companies should
mandatorily use Electronic Clearing Service (ECS) facility, wherever
available. SEBI has also, vide its circular dated 13% November,
2001 referred to above, advised companies to mandatorily print
the Bank Account details furnished by the Depositories, on the
dividend warrants. This ensures that the dividend warrants, even
if lost or stolen, cannot be used for any purpose other than for
depositing the monies in the Account specified on the dividend
warrants and ensures safety for the investors. However, members
who wish to receive dividend in an Account other than the one
specified while opening the Depository Account, may notify
their DPs about any change in Bank Account Details. Members
are requested to furnish complete details of their Bank Accounts
including MICR codes of their Banks to their DPs.

Nomination facility

Individual shareholders of physical shares can nominate
any person for the shares held by them. This will save
the nominee from qoing through the lengthy process of
getting the shares later on transmitted to his/her name. For
further details, shareholders may write to the Reqistrar and
Share Transfer Agent of the Company or visit the Investor
Relations section at our website www.rcovl.com/
www.reliancecommunications.co.in.
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Share transfer system

Shareholders / Investors are requested to send share transfer
related documents directly to our Registrar and Transfer Agents
whose address is given elsewhere in this Report. The Board has
delegated powers to the executives of the Company and RTA
to approve transfers/transmission/dematerialisation/
rematerialisation. If the transfer documents are in order, the
transfer of shares is reqistered within 7 days of receipt of transfer
documents by our RTA.

Shareholding pattern as on 315t March, 2007

0dd lot shares scheme for small shareholders

In view of the difficulty experienced by the shareholders of the
Company in selling their odd lot shares in the stock market and
to mitigate the hardships caused to them, Reliance Anil Dhirubhai
Ambani Group has framed a scheme for the purchase and disposal
of odd lot equity shares at the prevailing market price. The
scheme to be launched will be available to the shareholders of
Reliance Communications Limited, who hold upto 49 shares in
physical form. The shareholders who wish to avail the above
facility can contact the RTA of the Company.

Sr. No. Description Holdings % of total holdings
1 Promoters 1,36,48,11,060 66.75
2 Foreign holdings
A. Foreign holdings - GDRs 3,59,49,089 1.76
B. Direct By Foreign Companies 9,43,388 0.05
C. Individual and Others 1,24,87,566 0.61
D. Foreign Institutional Investors 26,55,28,756 12.98
Sub-Total 31,49,08,799 15.40
3 Public Financial/ Development Institutions and Central
and State Government owned institutions holdings 8,53.21.278 4.17
Bank and Mutual Funds 4,89,82,298 2.40
5 General Public 23,05,91,555 11.28
Total 2,04,46,14,990 100.00
Notes: Smt. Kokila D. Ambani

a. The Company has issued 500,000 Zero Coupon
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of USS$S 1000
each aggreqating to USS$S 500 million. The Bonds
are convertible into Equity Shares or GDS at any
time on or after 19% June, 2006 upto close of
business 1°** May, 2011. If the Bonds were converted
at the initial conversion price, approximately 461,57,943
Equity shares would be allotted.

b. The Company has issued 10,000 Zero Coupon
Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds of US$S 100000
each aggregating to USS 1000 million. The Bonds
are convertible into Equity Shares or GDS at any
time on or after 9™ April, 2007 upto close of
business 18" February, 2012. If the Bonds were
converted at the initial conversion price, approximately
66,709,012 Equity shares would be allotted.

Group coming within the definition of group as defined in

the Monopolies and Restrictive Trade Practices Act, 1969

(54 of 1969).

The following persons constitute the Group coming within the
definition of "qroup” as defined in the Monopolies and Restrictive
ices Act, 1969 (54 of 1969), which exercises, or is
be in a position to exercise, control, directly or
the Company.

hai Ambani
mbani

Master Jai Anmol A. Ambani

Master Jai Anshul A. Ambani

Reliance Innoventures Private Limited

AAA Enterprises Private Limited

AAA Communication Private Limited

AAA Project Ventures Private Limited

AAA Power Systems (Global) Private Limited
Anadha Enterprise Private Limited

Bhavan Mercantile Private Limited

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
Sonata Investments Limited

Hansdhwani Trading Company Private Limited
Reliance Capital Limited

Reliance Limited

Reliance India Private Limited

Dhirubhai Ambani Enterprises Private Limited
K.D. Ambani Trust

AAA Industries Private Limited

Reliance Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited
AAA Global Ventures Private Limited

Ambani Industries Private Limited

AAA International Capital Private Limited
Ambani International Private Limited

AAA Business Machines Private Limited
Reliance Big Private Limited
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ADA Enterprises and Ventures Private Limited
ADAE Global Private Limited

Ikosel Investments Limited

Ashban Company Limited

Lagerwood Investments Limited

Duns Holdings Limited

Reliance Land Private Limited

Reliance Net Limited

Reliance Energy Limited

Distribution of Shareholding as on 31t March, 2007

Reliance Natural Resources Limited

Adlabs Films Limited

Reliance Energy Generation Limited

Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited

Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

Reliance Telecom Limited

The above disclosure has been made, inter alia, for the purpose
of Regqulation 3(1)(e) of the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Requlations,
1997.

No. of Equity Shares No. of Shareholders

No. of Shares % of Shareholding

1 - 500 19,21.,469
501 - 1000 34,793
1001 - 2000 12,841
2001 - 3000 3,273
3001 - 4000 1,304
4001 - 5000 855
5001 - 10000 1,207
10001 - 20000 560
Above 20000 964
Total: 19,77,266

12,45,97,958 06.09
2,47.17,448 01.21
1,79,39,327 00.88

80,89.626 00.40
45,74,379 00.22
39,116,473 00.19
84,54,940 00.41
79.67,102 00.39
1.84,43,57.737 90.21
2,04,46,14,990 100.00

Investors' grievances attended
Received from

Received during the period

Redressed during the period Pending as on 31.03.2007

Securities and Exchange Board of India 21 21 0
Stock Exchanges 31 31 0
NSDL / CDSL 19 19 0
Direct from Investors 199 199 0
Total 270 270 0
Analysis of Grievances
Particulars Numbers Percentage
Non Receipt of Annual Reports 22 8.15
Non Receipt of Dividend Warrants 16 5.93
Non credit of Shares 16 5.93
Non Receipt of Share Certificates 210 77.77
Others 6 2.22
Total 270 100.00

Investor's queries/ grievances are normally attended within a period of three days from the date of receipt thereof, except in cases
involving external agencies or compliance with longer procedural requirements specified by the authorities concerned. The queries
and grievances received correspond to 0.02% of the number of members.

Leqal proceedings

There are certain pending cases relating to disputes over title to shares, in which the Company is made a party. These cases are

however not of material in nature.

Dematerialisation of shares
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Equity capital build up

Sr. Date Particulars of issue/ cancellation No. of equity Cumulative total
No. shares (No. of shares)
1 16" July, 2004 Equity shares Rs.10 each, allotted upon incorporation 10,000 10,000
2 25% July, 2005 Issue of additional equity shares Rs.10 each 40,000 50,000
3 171%™ August, 2005  Sub division of equity shares of Rs.10 into Rs.5 per share 50,000 1.00,000
4 27" January, 2006  Allotment of equity shares pursuant to the Scheme of Arangement 122,31,30,422 122,32,30,422
5 27% January, 2006  Equity shares cancelled pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (1,00,000) 122,31,30,422
6 14" September, 2006 Allotment of equity shares pursuant to the Scheme of

Arrangement and Amalgamation 82,14,84,568 204,46,14,990

Stock exchange listings

The

Company's equity shares are actively traded on the Indian

Stock Exchanges.

A.

Stock exchanges on which the shares of the Company
are listed

National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE)

Exchange Plaza, Plot no. C/1, G Block, Bandra-Kurla
Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai 400 051

Telephone 022-2659 8235 /8236
/ 8100-8114

Facsimile 022-2659 8237 /38

e-mail cmlist@nse.co.in

Web site www.nseindia.com

GDRs of the Company are listed on

Luxembourg Stock Exchange (LSE)
Société de la Bourse de Luxembourg
11, avenue de la Porte-Neuve
L-2227 Luxembourg

Telephone (+352) 47 79 36 -1
Facsimile (+352) 47 32 98
e-mail info@bourse.lu

Web site www.bourse.lu

Depositary for GDR holders
Depositary

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas
60, Wall Street,
New York - 10005
Telephone (+1) 212 250 9100

Facsimile (+1) 212 797 0327

Stock codes

2. Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE)
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001
Telephone 022-2272 1233 / 34
Facsimile 022-2272 1919
e-mail corp.relations @bseindia.com
Web site www.bseindia.com
C. Zero percent foreign currency convertible bonds are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (SGX-ST)
2 Shenton Way, #19-00 SGX Centre 1
Singapore 068804
Telephone (+65) 6236 8888
Facsimile (+65) 6236 8888
Web site WWW.SgX.Com
The listing fees payable to BSE and NSE for 2007-08, SGX-ST
for 2007 and LSE for 2006-07 have been paid in ful by the
Company.
Custodian

Deutsche Bank AG
Mumbai Branch

222, Kodak House,
Post Box No.1142, Fort
Mumbai - 400001

Physical Electronic
ity shares) 532712 INE 330H01018
( y shares) RCOM INE 330H01018
@gap ri Stock Exchange (FCCBs USS$ 1 Billion) N.A. XS0286677447
‘_Qr Stock Exchange (FCCBs USS$ 0.5 Billion) N.A. X50249122309
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Security codes of GDRs

Master Rule 144A GDRs

Master Requlation S GDRs

CusIP
ISIN

Common Code

759457106
usS7594571060
025317530

759457205
US7594572050
025317645

Note: The GDRs are admitted to listing on the official list of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to trading on the Euro MTF
market. The Rule 144A GDRs have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of DTC, New York. The
Requlation S GDRs have been accepted for clearance and settlement through the facilities of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.
The Rule 144A GDRs have been designated as eligible for trading on PORTAL.

An Index Scrip :- Equity shares of the Company are included in S & P CNX Nifty index, CNX 100, S&P CNX500, BSE 30, BSE 100,
BSE 200, BSE 500 and Futures and Options trading.

Outstanding GDRs of the Company, conversion date and likely impact on equity

Outstanding GDRs as on 31 March, 2007 represent 3,59,49,089 equity shares constituting 1.76% of the paid-up equity share
capital of the Company.

Stock price and volume

Month Bombay Stock Exchange National Stock Exchange
High Low Volume High Low Volume
Rs. Rs. Nos. Rs. Rs. Nos.
March, 06* 339.10 27715 130057069 337.75 276.15 226322420
April, 06 324.70 270.10 55377854 324.70 269.05 110839632
May, 06 347.70 230.00 60276843 347.90 228.25 122134876
June, 06 277.40 186.40 67093256 299.00 186.10 128970897
July, 06 280.25 231.25 47340622 274.00 231.05 85225655
August, 06 311.30 254.00 36774288 311.00 253.50 66942785
September, 06 351.95 297.00 40879800 352.00 296.25 96392338
October, 06 400.00 333.85 29134382 399.80 326.00 88907164
November,06 433.35 371.15 29922112 433.00 371.35 101778277
December,06 485.00 390.00 50541207 492.45 388.20 134504283
January, 07 489.00 404.10 40390230 479.90 404.00 115998199
February,07 518.40 400.00 41321159 518.85 399.00 142306127
March, 07 445.00 371.25 47439250 448.70 372.00 139456595
*Since 6% March, 2006, being the date of listing.
Share Price Performance in comparison to broad based indices - BSE Sensex and NSE Nifty.
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Depository services

For quidance on depository services, shareholders may write to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) of the Company or
National Securities Depository Limited, Trade World, 5 Floor, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai
400 013, Telephone : (022) 2499 4200, Facsimile : (022) 2497 2993 / 2497 6351, e-mail : info@nsdl.co.in,
website : www.nsdl.com or Central Depository Services (India) Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 16 Floor, Dalal Street, Mumbai
400 023. Telephone: 022-2272 3333 Facsimile: (022) 2272 3199/2072, web site: www.cdslindia.com,
e-mail: investors@cdslindia.com

Communication to members

The Quarterly Financial Results of the Company are announced within a month of the end of the respective
quarter. The Company's Media Releases and details of significant developments are also made available on
the Company's website. These are published in leading newspapers, in addition to hosting them on the
Company's website: www.rcovl.com/ www.reliancecommunications.co.in

Policy on insider trading

The Company has formulated a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading (Code) in accordance with the gquidelines specified
under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992. The Board has appointed Shri
Hasit Shukla, Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer under the Code responsible for complying with the procedures,
monitoring adherence to the rules for the preservation of price sensitive information, pre-clearance of trade, monitoring of trades and
implementation of the Code of Conduct under the overall supervision of the Board. The Company's Code, inter alia, prohibits
purchase and/or sale of shares of the Company by an insider, while in possession of unpublished Price Sensitive Information in
relation to the Company during certain prohibited periods. The Company's Equity Code is available on the Company's website.

Secretarial audit for reconciliation of capital
The Securities and Exchange Board of India has directed vide Circular No.D&CC/ FITTC/CIR-16,/2002 dated December 31, 2002

that all issuer companies shall submit a certificate of capital integrity, reconciling the total shares held in both the depositories, viz.
NSDL and CDSL and in physical form with the total issued / paid-up capital.

The said certificate, duly certified by the Chartered Accountants is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where
the securities of the Company are listed within 30 days of the end of each quarter and the Certificate is
also placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.
Key financial reporting details for the financial year (F.Y.) 2007-08

e Unaudited Results for the first quarter ended : On or before 31t July, 2007
30%" June, 2007

e Unaudited Results for the Second quarter/ half year : On or before 31t October, 2007
ended 30% September, 2007

e Unaudited Results for the Third quarter ended . On or before 31t January, 2008
31t December, 2007

e Audited Results for the Financial Year ended : On or before 30™ June, 2008
31t March, 2008

Reqgistered office and address for correspondence © Shri Hasit Shukla

Company Secretary
Registered offce

H Block, 1°t Floor,

Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledqe City,

Navi Mumbai - 400 710

Telephone : +91 22 3038 6286

Facsimile : +91 22 3037 6622

Email . RCOM.investors@relianceada.com
Plant locations

ny is engaged in the business of providing telecommunications services and as such has no plant.

:
&
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Investor service centres of Karvy Computershare Private Limited

SL.  City/Centre STD Phone SL.  City/Centre STD Phone
No. Code No. Code
1 Aga 0562  2526660t0 63 45  Kolkata 033 24655006, 5392, 0982, 8369
2 Ahmedabad 079 26420422, 26400527, 28 46 Lucknow 0522  2236820t0 26
3 Aligarh 0571 2509106 to 08 47 Madurai 0452 2350855, 2350852 to 854
4 Allahabad 0532 2260291,2260292 48  Mangalore 0824  2492302,2496332
5 Anantapur 08554 249601, 249607, 249608 49 Mattancherry 0484  22,232432,211,229
6  Ankaleshwar 02646  243291,243292 50 Mumbai (Andheri) 022 26730799, 843,311,867
7 Aurangabad 02432 2363517,23,24,30 51  Mumbai (Fort) 022 56382666, 56381746, 1747
8  Banqalore 080 26621192,26621193 1748,1749,1750
9  Bareilly 0581 24676809, 3207699 52 Mysore 0821 2524292,2524294
10 Belgaum 0831 2402544, 2402722 53 Nadiad 0268  2563210,2563245
11 Bellry 08392  254531,254532 54 Nasik 0253 2577811,5602542
12 Bharuch 02642  225207,225208 55 Nelloe 0861 2349935, 2349936, 23499367
13 Bhavnagar 0278 2567005, 2567006 56  New Delhi 011 23324401, 23353835, 981
14 Bhimavaram 08816 231766, 67,68, 69 57  Palghat 0491 2547143,2547373
15  Bhopal 0755  3013113,3010728,3010731 58  Panjim 0832  2426870,71,72,74
16  Bhubneshwar 0674  2547531t03,531532 59  Patna 0612  2321354,55,56,57
17 Calicut 0495 2760882, 2760884 60  Pondicherry 0413 2220636, 2220640,
18 Chandigarh 0172 5071726 to 728, 61  Proddatur 08564 250822, 250823, 250824
19 Chennai 044 28151793, 94, 4781 62 Pune 020 25539547-25532078
20  Narasaraopet 08647 257501 to 503 25533795
21 Coimbatore 0422 2237501 to 506,4377211 63 Rajahmundry 0883 2434468, 2434469
2 Cuttack 0671 2335175, 3110827 64  Rajkot 0281 2239403, 2239404, 2239338
23 Dehradun 0135  2713351,2714046 65 Ranchi 0651 2330386,2330394
24 Dindigul 0451 2436077,2436177 66 Dudhi 05446 254201
25 Durgapur 0343 25863751077 67 Rourkela 0661 2510770,2510771, 2510772
2 Elury 08812 227851, 52, 54 68  Salem 0427 2335700to 705
27 Erode 0424 2225603, 225615 69  Shimoga 08182  228795,228796, 227485
28  Ghaziabad 0120 2701886,2701891 /0 Surat 0261 3017155/60.58.59
29 Gobichettipalayam 04285 226275, 226276 71 Thanjavur 04362 279407279408
30 Gorakhpur 0551  2346519,2333825 72 Theni 04546 261285,261108
31 Guntur 0863  2326681,2326686 73 Tirupathi 877 2252756
2 haldis 03224 276755 10 57 74 Tirupur 0421 2205865, 5330158
75 Trichur 0487  2,322,483,484,493,490

33 Hubli 0836 2232773,2237774 76  Trichy 0431 2798200, 2791000, 2791322
34 Hyderabad 040 23312454,23320251 77 Thiruvananthapuram 0471 2725989, 2725990, 2725991
35 Indore 0731 5069891, 5069892 78  Tumkur 0816  2261891,2261892, 2261893
36 Jaipur 0141 2375039, 99, 2363321 79 Udupi 0820 2530962, 2530963
37 Jamnagar 0288 2557862 to 65, 3299330 80  Vadodara 0265 2225325.5168, 89
38 Jamshedpur 0657 2487020.2487045 81  Vallabh-Vidhyanagar 02692 248980, 248873
39 Junagadh 0285 2624154,2624140 82  Varanasi 0542  2225365,222814

0884 2387382,2387383 83 Vijayawada 0866 2495200, 400,500

0512  2330127,2331445, 3246390 600,700,800

04565  237192,237193 84  Vishakhapatnam 0891 2752915t0 18

04324  241892,241893 85  Vishakapatnam -

0484 2310884, 2316406, 2322152 Gajuwaka 0891 2511685,2511686
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Auditors' Report

To,

The Members of

Reliance Communications Limited

(formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet of Reliance
Communications Limited (formerly Reliance Communication
Ventures Limited) (‘the Company') as at 31 March, 2007 and
also the Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow Statement
for the fifteen month period ended on that date, annexed
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2003
(‘the Order') issued by the Central Government of India in terms
of sub-section (4A) of Section 227 of the Companies Act,
1956 (‘the Act'), we enclose in the Annexure, a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in the
paragraph above, we report that:

(a) we have obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as appears from our
examination of those books;

(c) the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and Cash Flow
Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report comply
with the Accounting Standards referred to in sub-section
(30) of Section 211 of the Companies Act, 1956;

(e) on the basis of written representations received from the
directors of the Company as at 31* March, 2007 and taken
on record by the Board of Directors, we report that none
of the directors is disqualified as at 31* March, 2007 from
being appointed as a director of the Company under clause
(g) of sub-section (1) of Section 274 of the Companies
Act, 1956; and

(f) in our opinion, and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the said accounts
give the information required by the Companies Act, 1956,
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India:
(i) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of

affairs of the Company as at 31* March, 2007;

(i) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the
profit of the Company for the fifteen month period
ended on that date; and

(ii) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash
flows of the Company for the fifteen month period
ended on that date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh D. Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No: 45882

Natrajan Ramkrishna
Partner
Membership No: 32815

Mumbai
30 April 2007
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Annexure to the Auditors' Report - 31t March, 2007

With reference to the Annexure referred to in the Auditors'
Report to the Members of Reliance Communications Limited
(formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)
(‘the Company') on the financial statements for the fifteen
month period ended 31 March, 2007, we report the following:

1. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing
full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of fixed assets.

(b) We are informed that the Company physically verifies
its assets over a three year period, except for
underground fibre infrastructure and base trans-receiver
station towers. We are informed that these assets are
under continuous operational surveillance at National
Network Operating Centre and are therefore not
separately physically verified. In our opinion, this
periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
reqard to the size of the Company and the nature of
its assets. In accordance with this policy, the Company
has physically verified certain fixed assets during the
period and is in the process of reconciling the results of
such physical verification with the fixed assets register.
Management believes that differences if any, arising
out of such reconciliation are not expected to be
material.

(c) Fixed assets disposed off during the period were not
substantial and, therefore, do not affect the going
concern assumption.

2. (a) The inventory has been physically verified by
management during the current period. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

(b) The procedures for the physical verification of inventories
followed by management are reasonable and
adequate in relation to the size of the Company and
the nature of its business.

(c) The Company is maintaining proper records of inventory.
Discrepancies identified on physical verification of
inventories as compared to book records were not
material.

3. According to the information and explanations given to us,
we are of the opinion that there are no companies, firms
or other parties covered in the register required under section
301 of the Companies Act, 1956. Accordingly, paragraph
4(iii) of the Order is not applicable.

4. In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, and having regard to the
explanation that purchases of certain items of inventories

_and fixed assets are for the Company's specialised
ﬂ?e{fg&rgments for which suitable alternative sources are not
itabtey to obtain comparable quotations, there is an
internal control system commensurate with the

Company and nature of its business with reqard

rchase of inventories and fixed assets and with

the sale of services. However, the management

has informed us that certain weaknesses in information
technology general controls are being strengthened to make
these commensurate with the size and nature of business.
In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there is no continuing failure to
correct major weaknesses in the internal control system.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no contracts and
arrangements the particulars of which need to be entered
into the register maintained under section 301 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public.

In our opinion, the internal audit system of the Company
needs to be strengthened to make it commensurate with
its size and the nature of its business.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained
by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by the
Central Government for maintenance of cost records under
section 209(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 1956 in respect
of telecommunication activities and are of the opinion that
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been
made and maintained. However, we have not made a
detailed examination of the records.

(a) According to the information and explanations given
to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/accrued
in the books of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including Provident Fund, Wealth tax,
Income tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Sales tax, Entry
tax, Employees' State Insurance and other material
statutory dues have been reqularly deposited during
the period by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. As explained to us, the Company did not
have any dues on account of Excise duty and Investor
Education and Protection Fund. There were no dues
on account of cess under Section 441A of the
Companies Act, 1956 since the date from which the
aforesaid section comes into force has not yet been
notified by the Central Government. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Wealth
tax, Income tax, Service tax, Customs duty, Sales tax,
Entry tax, Employees' State Insurance and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at
31* March, 2007 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given
to us, there are no dues of Income tax, Wealth tax,
Service tax, Customs duty, Employees' State Insurance
which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute. The dues of Excise duty, Sales tax and Entry
tax as disclosed below have not been deposited by
the Company on account of disputes.
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Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Annexure to the Auditors' Report 315t March, 2007 (Contd...)

Name of the Statute

Amount
(Rs. in crore)

Nature of
the Dues

Period to which
the amount relates

Forum where
dispute is pending

The Central Excise and

Salt Act, 1944 Excise duty 3.32

Excise duty 2.08

Sales Tax Act, Delhi Sales tax 7.04
Haryana Local Areas

Development Tax Act Entry tax 413

Entry Tax Act, Uttar Pradesh Entry tax 0.13

Trade Tax Act, Uttar Pradesh Sales tax 9.57

10.53

0.24

Entry Tax Act, Madhya Entry tax 0.36

Pradesh

Entry Tax Act, Chhattisgarh Entry tax 0.12

Sales Tax Act, Orissa Sales tax 412

Entry Tax Act, Orissa Entry tax 0.02

Entry tax 0.02

Entry Tax Act, Andhra Pradesh Entry tax 0.47

2002-04 Tribunal
Tribunal

2004-05 Commissioner of Trade Tax, New Delhi

2003-04 High Court of Punjab and Haryana

2003-04 Trade Tax Tribunal, Lucknow

2004-05 Joint Commissioner (Appeals)

2005-06 Joint Commissioner (Appeals)

2003-04 Trade Tax Tribunal, Lucknow

2002-03 Deputy Commissioner of Appeals
(Commercial Taxes)

2002-03 Deputy Commissioner of Appeals
(Commercial Taxes)

2003-04 Asst. Commissioner of Commercial
taxes, Bhubaneshwar

2003-04 Asst. Commissioner of Commercial
taxes, Bhubaneshwar

2004-05 Asst. Commissioner of Commercial
taxes, Bhubaneshwar

2006-07 Writ petition filed before High Court of

Andhra Pradesh

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Company does not have any accumulated losses at
the end of the financial period and has not incurred cash
losses in the current financial period and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of dues to its bankers or debenture holders or
to any financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not granted loans and advances on the
basis of security by way of pledge of shares, debentures
and other securities.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company is not a chit fund/
nidhi/ mutual benefit fund/ society.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not dealing or trading in shares, securities,
debentures and other investments.

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the terms and conditions on which
the Company has given quarantees for loans taken by wholly
owned subsidiaries from banks or financial institutions are
not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and

Mmbanatlons given to us, the term loans taken by the

have been applied for the purpose for which
raised to the extent utilised.

i § o the information and explanations given to us
overall examlnatlon of the balance sheet of the

18.

19.

20.

21,

For Chaturvedi & Shah
Chartered Accountants

Rajesh D. Chaturvedi
Partner
Membership No: 45882

short-term basis have not been used for long-term
investment.

As stated in paragraph (5) above, there are no companies/
firms/parties covered in the register required to be maintained
under section 301 of the Companies Act, 1956.

The Company has not issued any secured debentures during
the period.

In respect of the end-use of money raised by issue of
foreign currency convertible bonds (FCCB) as disclosed in
the Schedules to the financial statements, in our opinion
and based on the information and explanations given to us
and certified by the management, the Company has utilised
an amount of Rs. 1,343 crore for purposes as stated/
specified in the offering document for the FCCB. The
unutilised money of Rs. 5,142 crore has been deposited
interest free with a wholly owned subsidiary. We are informed
by the management that these monies are held by the
subsidiary in bank deposits, etc. Refer to Schedule Q, Note
8 (iii) to the financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us,
no significant fraud on or by the Company, that causes a
material misstatement to the financial statements, has
been noticed or reported during the period.

For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Natrajan Ramkrishna
Partner
Membership No: 32815

Mumbai
30% April 2007
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2007

(Rs. in crore)

Schedule As at As at
315t March, 2007 315t December, 2005
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital A 1.022.31 0.05
Share Capital - Pending Allotment - 611.57
Reserves and Surplus B 19,503.23 14,783.42
20,525.54 15,395.04
Loan Funds
Secured Loans C 5.113.57 -
Unsecured Loans D 9,454.27 -
14,567.84 -
Deferred Tax Liability - 0.63
TOTAL 35,093.38 15,395.67
APPLICATION OF FUNDS
Fixed Assets E
Gross Block 20,625.82 198.09
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,527.37 31.85
Net Block 18,098.45 166.24
Capital Work-in-Progress 2,185.60 -
20,284.05 166.24
Investments F 5,434.43 12,074.09
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Current Assets G
Inventories 98.51 -
Sundry Debtors 802.11 -
Cash and Bank Balances 68.45 0.05
Other Current Assets 11,294.13 0.29
12,263.20 0.34
Loans and Advances H 7.843.84 3,158.62
20,107.04 3,158.96
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions I
Current Liabilities 6,309.33 1.05
Provisions 4,422.81 2.57
10,732.14 3.62
Net Current Assets 9,374.90 3,155.34
Total 35,093.38 15,395.67
Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For_Chaturvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani

Chartered Accountants

Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran

Partner Directors S. P. Talwar

Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie

Company Secretary & Manaqer Hasit Shukla
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Profit & Loss Account for the fifteen months ended 31t March, 2007

(Rs. in crore)

Schedule For fifteen For nine months
months ended ended 31
31st March 2007 December 2005
INCOME:
Service Revenue and Other Operating Income J 11,725.26 -
Other Income K 36.65 6.47
11.761.91 6.47
EXPENDITURE
Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses L 4,444.82 -
Payments to and Provisions for Employees M 684.40 1.11
Sales and General Administration Expenses N 2,119.44 0.56
7.248.66 1.67
Profit before Financial Charges, Depreciation, Amortisation,
Exceptional Items and Adjustments 4,513.25 4.80
Financial Charges (Net) 0 232.38 (6.79)
Profit before Depreciation, Amortisation, Exceptional - -
Items and Adjustments 4,280.87 11.59
Depreciation and Amortisation 2,496.64 2.74
Amount of depreciation adjusted agqainst Provision
for Business Restructuring (660.52) -
(Refer Note 4 (b)(iv) of Schedule Q)
Profit before Adjustments pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation/ - -
Arrangement, Tax, Exceptional Items 2,444.75 8.85
Exceptional Item
Customer Verification expense 23.90 -

(Refer Note 11 , Schedule Q)
Adjustments Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation/Arrangement
inter alia for Merqger of Reliance Infocomm Limited into the Company
Investments in Reliance Infocomm Limited Written Off 9,239.77 -
Equivalent Amount withdrawn from Reserve arising (not created) on
vesting inter alia of the said investments on demerger from Reliance

Industries Limited. (Refer note 4 (b) (i) of Schedule Q) (9.239.77) -
Profit Before Tax 2,420.85 8.85
Provision for
- Current Tax 0.27 2.57
- Fringe Benefit Tax 11.73 -
- Deferred Tax - 0.63
Profit After Tax m T 565
Add : Balance Brought Forward from Previous Year 5.65 -
Amount available for Appropriations 2,414.50 5.65
APPROPRIATIONS
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 102.23
Tax on Proposed Dividend 17.37 -
Balance carried to Balance Sheet 2,294.90 5.65
Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share of face value of
Rs. 5 each (in Rupees)
(Refer Note 24, Schedule Q)
- Basic 11.98 849.62
- Diluted 11.23 0.10
Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For_Chaturvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani

Chartered Accountants

Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran

Partner Directors S. P. Talwar

Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie

Company Secretary & Manaqer Hasit Shukla
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)
As at As at
31st March, 2007 31 December, 2005
SCHEDULE A
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised Capital
300,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 5 each 1,500.00 650.00
(130,00,00,000)

1,500.00 650.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
204,46,14,990 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up 1,022.31 0.05
(1,00,000)
1.022.31 0.05

Notes

1) Out of the above 130,81,10,172 equity shares are held by the Holding Company, AAA Communication Private Limited and
1.15,29,001 equity shares are held by the Ultimate Holding Company. Reliance Innoventures Private Limited.

2) Equity shares allotted as fully paid up without payment being received in cash
Number of Shares
a) Pursuant to Demerger of Telecom Undertaking of Reliance Industries Limited into the Company 122,31,30,422
b) Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (Refer note 4(b) (iii) of Schedule Q) 82,14,84,568

204,46,14,990
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)
As at As at
315t March, 2007 31 December, 2005

SCHEDULE B
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Capital Reserve 0.05 -
(Refer Note Below )
Securities Premium Account

As per last Balance Sheet - -

As per the Scheme of Amalgamation and
Arrangement (Refer Note 4 ( b )(iv), Schedule Q) 9,030.63

Less: Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds issue Expenses 35.66

Less: Premium payable on redemption of Foreign
Currency Convertible Bonds 109.90 8.885.07 -

General Reserve - 1
As per last Balance Sheet 14,777.77 14,777.77

Less: Transferred to Profit and Loss Account
(Refer Note 4 (b) (i) . Schedule Q) 9,239.77 -

5,538.00 14,777.77
General Reserve - II

As per the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement
(Refer Note 4 (b) (iv), Schedule Q) 2,812.62

Less : Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuity 27.41 2,785.21 -
Profit and Loss Account 2,294.90 5.65

19,503.23 14,783.42

Notes

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 ("the Scheme") between
Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), the Company and other three transferee companies, RIL re-organized and seqregated by way of
a demerger, its business and undertaking engaged in Coal based Enerqy Undertaking, Gas based Energy Undertaking, Financial
service Undertaking and Telecommunications Undertaking to four separate transferee companies.

As per the said Scheme, Equity Share Capital of the Company before the Scheme of Demerger of Rs. 0.05 crore (100,000 Share
of Rs. 5 each) have been cancelled and transferred to Capital Reserve account.




Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

848

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE C
SECURED LOANS
Term Loans from Financial Institutions

- Foreign Currency Loans
(Refer Note 10, Schedule Q)

Term Loans from Banks
- Rupee Loans

Note

As at
31st March, 2007

1.938.07

3,175.50

5113.57

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t December, 2005

The Company has Secured Term Loans referred to above, inter alia, by way of first pari passu mortgage / charge / assignment in
favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of Financial Institutions and Banks, on its investments, immovable, movable and
intangible assets / properties (but excluding goodwill, brand name and certain other excluded assets) including Intellectual Property
Rights, all revenues, accounts receivables both present and future and assignment of rights under specified Project Documents and

the Telecom License Agreements.

SCHEDULE D
UNSECURED LOANS
Long Term

- Foreign Currency Loans from banks
(Repayable within one year Rs. 215.62 crore )

- Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(Repayable within one year Rs. Nil )
(Refer Note 8, Schedule Q)

Short Term
From Banks

- Foreign Currency Loans

2,173.50

6.630.40

650.37

9.454.27
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Reliance Communications L
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

850

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE F
INVESTMENTS

Long Term Investments

Government and other securities

Unquoted

Trade Investments

6 years National Savings Certificate *

(Lodged with Sales Tax Department)

Rupees 45 000 (Previous period Rupees Nil)

5 1/2 years Kisan Vikas Patra *

(Lodged with Chennai Metropolitan Development Authority)
Rupees 5 000 (Previous period Rupees Nil)

In Equity Shares of Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies Unquoted, fully paid up

200,00,00,000
(90,00,00,000)
50,000

(Nil)

50,00,000

(Nil)

6,87,066

(NiD)

21,00,000

(Nil)

50 000

(Nil)

50,000

(Ni)

50,000

(Ni)

Nil
(319.,25.85,350)
1.00,000

(NiD)

*** Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited of Re 1 each *
Reliance Gateway Net Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited of Rs. 10 each *
Gateway Systems (India) Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Reliance Infoinvestments Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Reliance Infocomm Solutions Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Netizen Gujarat Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Reliance Webstore Limited of Rs. 10 each*

Reliance Infocomm Limited of Re 1 each

( Refer note 4 (b) (i) of Sch Q)
Gateway Net Trading Pte. Ltd. of USD 1 each

In Equity Shares of Subsidiary Company Unquoted, fully paid up

1,57,04,940
(70,95.130)
35,63,031
(NiD)
60,00,000
(NiD)
1,112
(NiD)

Reliance Telecom Limited of Rs 10 each *

Campion Properties Limited of Rs 10 each

Reliable Internet Services Limited of Rs 10 each *

Reliance Infocomm BV of Euro 100 each*

As at
315t March,
2007

0.01

2,507.87

1.118.80

1,036.02

7.98

2.10

0.05

0.05

0.05

0.47

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t December,
2005

2,331.00**

9,239.77**

4,673.40

11,570.77

115.83

9.04

6.00

0.63

57.05**

131.50

57.05
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
315t March, 315 December,
2007 2005
SCHEDULE F (Contd...)
In Equity Shares of Company
Unquoted, fully paid up
4,97,25,000  Warf Telecom International Private Ltd - MRf 1 each * 17.40 -
(NIL)
NIL  Reliance Energy Transmission Limited of Rs. 10 each - -
(2,700)  (Previous period: Rupees 27,000)
69,524  World Tel Holding Limited, Bermuda of USD 0.05 each 1.93 1.93**
(69,524)
5,94,000 Swan Connet Communications Private Limited (formerly known as
(NIL)  Cheetah Corporate Services Private Limited) of Rs 10 each 0.59 -
19.92 1.93

In Preference Shares of Subsidiary Companies Unquoted, fully paid up
4,50,00,000 1% Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative 444 .34 444.34**

(4,50,00,000) Preference Shares of Reliance Telecom Limited of Re.10 each
(Previous period 1% Redeemable Non Convertible Cumulative
preference shares)

2,50,010 1 % Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative 108.97 -
(NIL)  Preference Shares of US $100 each of Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited.
52 1% Redeemable Non Convertible Non Cumulative 0.30 -

(NIL)  Preference Shares of Reliance Infocomm BV of Euro 1 each
In Preference Shares, Unquoted, fully paid up

560,000 8 % Redeemable Non Cumulative Non Convertible Preference Shares
of Swan Connet Communications Private Limited (formerly known as

Cheetah Corporate Services Private Limited) of Re 1 each 56.00 -

(NIL)
609.61 444.34
5.434.43 12,074.09

*  Acquired pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement. ( Refer note 4(b) of Sch Q ).

** In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement under which telecom undertaking of Reliance Industries Limited was demerged with
the Company, equity shares of Reliance Infocomm Limited, Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Telecom
ited, World Tel Holding Limited and preference shares of Reliance Telecom Limited were received by the Company
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Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE F (Contd...)

Movements during the period - current investments purchased / received under the Scheme of Arrangement and Amalgamation

and sold.

Face Value  Particulars Nos. Cost
Rs. (Rs. in crore)
10  Prudential ICICI Institutional Liquid Plan 54,75,44,796.77 558.28
10  Reliance Liquidity Fund Cash Plan Growth Option 93.73.19,672.52 1.163.81
10  Reliance Liquidity Fund Growth Option 166,88,58,359.13 1.767.65
10  ABN Amro Cash Fund - Institutional Plan Growth 18,32,09,965.70 190.00

1,000  Standard Chartered Liquidity Manager Plus - Growth 32,56,757.40 330.46
10  Principal Cash Management Fund LO-Institutional Plan Growth 16,39.38,165.32 180.12
10  Kotak Liquid Institutional Premium Plan Growth 17,51,67,045.76 250.00
10  Kotak Long Term Floater Growth 4,50,90,968.24 50.00
10  Reliance Liquidity Fund Cash Plan Growth Option of AEPL 1.27,27,602.89 15.42

25,030 DDB from Reliance Capital 3.,21,190.00 1.548.49
10  Reliance Industries Limited 1,15,29,001.00 886.46
10  Java Green BPO Pvt. Ltd. 10,000.00 0.01
10 Java Green Pvt. Ltd. 10,000.00 0.01
10  AAA Advisory Services Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Cap Advisory Services Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Capital Finance Services Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Capital Markets Solution Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Corporate Services Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Corporation Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Facilities Solution Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Finance and Leasing Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Finance Management Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Financial Services Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10 AAA Infrastructure Consulting and Engineering Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Infrastructure Finance Management Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Infrastructure Logistics Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10 AAA Infrastructure Solutions Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Interactive Media Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Power Systems (Global) Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
10  AAA Project Finance Management Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01

AAA and Sons Enterprises Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
rx AAA Traders Private Limited 9,800.00 0.01
JPM USD Liquid Fund 24,44,00,000.00 1,086.46
JPM USD MMF 25,00,36,052.25 1.111.36
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
315t March, 2007 31 December, 2005
SCHEDULE G
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Stores and Spares 98.51 -
Sundry Debtors (Unsecured)
More than six months
Considered qood 59.44
Considered doubtful 468.34
527.78
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 468.34
59.44
Others
Considered qood 742.67
Considered doubtful 93.89
836.56
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 93.89
742.67 802.11 -
The above includes debts due from subsidiaries
Rs 221.93 crore (Previous period Rs. Nil )
Includes due from Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited Rs. 14.72 crore (Previous period Nil ) ( Maximum
Outstanding during the period 49.89 crore), Company Under
the Same Management as per Sec 370 (1B) of the Companies
Act 1956 w.e.f. 10" January, 2007
Cash and Bank Balances:
Cash on hand (Rs. 15,095) - -
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 12.82 0.05
In Current Accounts with Other Banks * 0.07 -
In Export Earnings in Foreign Currency Accounts with
Scheduled Banks 15.19 -
Fixed Deposits with Banks
Fixed Deposits in Rupees with Scheduled Banks in India 0.01 -
cludes Rupees 77 00O the receipt of which
40.36 -
68.45 0.05
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Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
31t March, 2007 31* December, 2005
SCHEDULE G (Contd...)
Other Current Assets
Interest Accrued on Investments and Loans 197.94 -
Deposits 11,096.19 0.29
11,294.13 0.29
(Includes inter corporate deposits with Reliance
Infoinvestment Limited ( RIIL ) Rs. 10 181.46 crore
(Previous period Nil ), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the company repayable on demand.) P -
12,263.20 0.34

* Includes balances with non - scheduled banks as follows:
(Rs. in crore)

Maximum Balance
at any time during

the period
As at As at 2006 - 07 2005 - 06
315t March, 2007 31 December, 2005
Muncipal Co - operative Bank 0.05 - 0.30 -
Deutsche Bank, Singapore - - 2,236.76 -
Barclays PLC , London 40.36 - 2,213.75 -
JP Morgan Chase Bank, New York 0.02 - 2.61 -
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
31t March, 2007 31% December, 2005

SCHEDULE H

LOANS AND ADVANCES

(Unsecured and Considered good - Unless otherwise stated)

Loans to Wholly Owned Subsidiary Companies 5,561.78 -

(Includes due from Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited Rs. 1,504.59 crore (Previous period Nil ) ( Maximum
outstanding during the period Rs. 1,504.59 crore), Company
Under the Same Management, as per Sec 370 (1B) of the
Companies Act 1956, w.e.f. 10" January, 2007)

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Considered good 2,279.76
Considered Doubtful 4.50
2,284.26
Less Provision for Doubtful Advances 4.50 2.279.76 3,158.62*

(Includes due from Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited Rs. 739.63 crore (Previous period Rs. 31.42 crore),
Company Under the Same Management, as per Sec 370 (1B)
of the Companies Act 1956, from 10" January, 2007)

(Includes Subsidy receivable Rs. 286.98 crore (previous period Nil))

Balance with Customs, Central Excise Authorities, etc 2.30 -

7.843.84 3.158.62

* Advances include loans recoverable of Rs. 3100.00 crore and interest receivable of Rs. 6.77 crore from Reliance Power Ventures
Limited, a Company under the same management.
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
315t March, 2007 31% December, 2005
SCHEDULE I
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities:
Sundry Creditors - Small Scale Industries * 2.78 -
Sundry Creditors - Others ** 2,521.65 -
Due to Subsidiary Companies 1.496.77 -
Interest Accrued but not due on Loans 36.72 -
Unearned Income 872.04 -
(Includes Subsidy deferred Rs. 201.53 crore
(previous period Nil ))
Other Liabilities 1.379.37 1.05
6,309.33 1.05
Provisions
Provision for Disputed Claims and Others 1,837.43 -
Provision for Commission to Non Executive Directors 44.00
Provision for Business Restructuring 2,310.95 -
(Refer Note No.4 b (iv) of Sch.Q)
Provision for Wealth Tax 0.47 -
Provision for Income Tax 7.04 2.57
Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 21.98 -
Provision for Retirement Benefits 81.34 -
Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 102.23 -
Tax on Proposed Dividend 17.37 -
4,422.81 2.57
TOTAL 10,732.14 3.62

*  Small Scale Industrial Undertakings, to whom amounts are due, have been determined based on information available with the
Company and are as follows:

Ana Pinto Graphics, Sangat Printers, Amreesh Neon Pvt Ltd, DB Power Electronics, Jaipan Industries, Nectar Prints, Ratilal &
Sons, S R Sandaw & Sons, Spectrum Scan Pvt Ltd, Unique Photo Offsets, Selvon Instruments Pvt Ltd, Selvon Industries, Gupta
Electric & Machinery Store, K.B. Power Care Pvt Ltd., Bhagyashree Industries, Fine Packaging Company, Finecab Wires & Cables
Pvt Ltd., Super Nova, Mahalaxmi Vidyut Udyoq, Bhaqya Industries, Anand Udyoq, Mesh Prints, Kanika Digital Prints Pvt Ltd,
Cope Industries, Jeras Engineering Enterprises, Jeras Galvanising Industries, Studio Digital, Bal Machine Tools, Darsana Offset
Printers, Digital Designs, OBM Printing Works, Friends Engineers, Kailas Fabricators, Memphis Printing & Publishing (P) Ltd,
Sreenarayana Offset Press, Anupam Fibrotech, Shantheri Cards and Offset Printers, Premier controls, Deepanjan Telecables Pvt
b India, KK Spun Pipes, S Antool & Co. Pvt. Ltd.
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in crore)

For fifteen months For nine months
ended 31+ ended 31+
March, 2007 December, 2005
SCHEDULE )
SERVICE REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Service Revenue 12,484.91
Less: Service Tax 1,031.04
11.453.87 -
Other Operating Income -Subsidy 271.39 -
11,725.26 -
SCHEDULE K
OTHER INCOME
Profit on Sale of Investments 21.78 -
Rent Received 10.75 4.19
Miscellaneous Income 412 2.28
36.65 6.47
SCHEDULE L
ACCESS CHARGES, LICENSE FEES AND NETWORK EXPENSES
Access Charges 2,611.40 -
License Fees 982.24 -
Rent, Rates and Taxes 87.76 -
Network Repairs and Mainteinance 219.32 -
Stores and Spares Consumed 16.48 -
Power, Fuel and Utilites 266.74 -
Other Network Operating Expenses 260.88 -
444482 -
SCHEDULE M
PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES
(Including Managerial Remuneration)
Salaries 548.25 1.1
Provision for Commission to Non Executive Directors 44.00 -
(Refer Note No.18 (i) of Schedule Q)
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund and Superannuation Fund 31.47 -
Employee Welfare and Other Amenities 60.68 -
684.40 1.1




858

Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in crore)

For fifteen months For nine months
ended 31 ended 31¢
March, 2007 December, 2005
SCHEDULE N
SALES AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Commission 452.26 -
Selling and Marketing Expenses 406.32 -
Advertisement 297.62 -
Customer Acquistion and Customer Care 243.68 -
1,399.88 -
Provision for Doubtful Debts, Loans and Advances 138.58 -
Insurance 12.71 -
Rent, Rates and Taxes 29.62 0.09
Other Repairs 20.67 0.09
Travelling Expenses 58.21 0.02
Professional Fees 105.72 0.01
Loss on Sale of Assets 5.03 -
Other General and Administrative Expenses 342.54 0.33
(Includes Rs. 0.18 crore (previous period Nil)
towards sitting fees paid to non executive Directors)
Wealth Tax 0.34 -
574.84 0.54
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note No.14 of Schedule Q) 6.14 0.02
2,119.44 0.56
SCHEDULE O
FINANCIAL CHARGES (NET)
Interest and Other Charges on Term Loans 259.50
Interest on Other Loans 150.48
409.98 -
Other Financial Cost 46.57 -
Income from investments and interest income (154.74) (6.79)
(Tax Deducted at Source Rs.0.15 crore
(Previous Period Rs. 0.23 crore))
Foreign Currency Exchange Fluctuation loss / (gain) (Net) (69.43) -
232.38 (6.79)
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE P
Significant Accounting Policies
1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles in India and the provisions of the Companies Act,1956.

2 Use of Estimates

The preparation and presentation of financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the
reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the actual results and estimates
are recognised in the period in which the results are known/materialised.

3 Fixed Assets
i) Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of modvat / cenvat less accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

i) Net charges of foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations, relating to borrowings
attributable to fixed assets acquired from a country outside India, are capitalised.

i) Expenses incurred relating to projects prior to commencement of commercial operation are considered as project development
expenditure and shown under Capital Work-in-Progress.

iv) Entry Fees paid for Telecom Licenses and Indefeasible Right of Connectivity are stated at cost for acquiring the same less
accumulated amortisation.

4 Depreciation / Amortisation

i) Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in Schedule X1V
to the Companies Act, 1956 except in case of the following assets which are depreciated as given below

a) Ducts and Cables - 18 years

b) Telecom Communication Electronic Equipment - 10 years
c) Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment - 10 years

d) Customer Premises Equipment - 3years

e) Vehicle - 5 years

i) Leasehold Land is depreciated over the period of the lease term.

i) Intangible assets, namely entry fees for Telecom Licenses and Brand License are amortised equally over the balance
period of licenses. Indefeasible Right of Connectivity and Software are amortised from the date of acquisition or
commencement of commercial services. The period of these Intangible assets is as follows:

a) Telecom Licenses - 20 years
b) Indefeasible Right of Connectivity - 15 to 20 years ( over the licence agreement period)
c) Brand License - 10 years
d) Software - 5 years
5 Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds recoverable value. An impairment loss is charged to
the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss of prior accounting
period is increased / reversed where there has been change in the estimate of recoverable amount. The recoverable value is
the higher of the assets net selling price and value in use.
6 Lease
In respect of operating leases, rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations in compliance with
the provisions of the Accounting Standard - 19 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, except for rentals
pertaining to the period up to the date of commencement of commercial operations, which are capitalised.
All assets given on finance lease are shown as receivables at an amount equal to net investment in the lease. Initial direct costs
xpensed in the year in which such costs are incurred. Income from leased assets is accounted by applying the interest rate
(ot 'mE?ca in the lease to the net investment.

G s

7@65
Ulrrent w estments are carried at lower of cost and quoted / fair value, computed investment wise. Long Term Investments
L] st

at cost. Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such decline is other than
in the opinion of the management.

B
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account (Contd...)

8 Inventories of Stores and Spares

Inventories of stores and spares are accounted for at costs, determined on weighted average basis, or net realisable value,
whichever is less.

9 Employee Retirement Benefits
Company's Contributions to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to Profit and Loss Account as incurred.

Gratuity and Leave Encashment Benefit are charged to Profit and Loss Account on the basis of actuarial valuation as at
balance sheet date.

10 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are capitalised as part of the cost of
such assets up to the commencement of commercial operations. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
period of time to qet ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the year in which they are incurred.

11 Issue Expenses and Premium on FCCB

The premium payable on redemption and issue expenses on issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds is charged to Securities
Premium Account.

12 Foreign Currency Transactions

i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of the
transaction.

i)  Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of monetary
items, which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date
of the contract is recognised as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognised over the life
of the contract.

i) Non monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

iv) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the profit
and loss account except in cases where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets from outside India in which case they are
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

13 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised as and when the services are provided on the basis of actual usage of the Company's network. Revenue
on upfront charges for services with lifetime validity and fixed validity periods of one year or more are recognised over the
estimated useful life of subscribers and specified fixed validity period, as appropriate. The estimated useful life is consistent with
estimated churn of the subscribers.

14 Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances

Provision is made in the accounts for doubtful debts and loans and advances in cases where the management considers the
debts, loans and advances, to be doubtful of recovery.

15 Miscellaneous Expenditure
Miscellaneous Expenditure is charged to the Profit and Loss Account as and when they are incurred.
16 Taxes on Income and Fringe Benefit Tax

Provision for Income Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year at current rates. Tax expense comprise
of Current Tax, Fringe Benefit Tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively enacted rates. Current tax
represents the amount of Income tax payable/recoverable in respect of the taxable income / loss for the reporting period.
Deferred tax represents the effect of timing difference between taxable income and accounting income for the reporting period
that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The deferred tax asset is recognised
and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that the assets will be realised in future. However,
where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty of realisation of assets.

17 Government Grants

idies provided by Government for providing telecom services in rural areas are recognised as Other Operating Income in
ce with the relevant terms and conditions of the scheme and agreement.

, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

involving substantial deqree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as a
ast events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised but
sed in the notes. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE Q
Notes on Accounts:

1 The previous period's figqures have been regrouped and rearranged, wherever necessary.

2 The results for the fifteen months ended 315t March, 2007 includes twelve months' operating results of erstwhile Reliance
Infocomm Limited for the period from 1 April, 2006 to 31t March, 2007, which was merged into the Company with effect
from 315t March, 2006 and hence, the figures relating to the previous period and fifteen months ended 31t March, 2007 are
not comparable.

3 Consequent to fresh Certificates of Incorporation dated 7™ June, 2006 received from the Registrar of Companies Maharashtra,
Mumbai name of the Company has been changed from Reliance Communication Ventures Limited to Reliance Communications
Limited.

4 a.

fci‘“'

ol

oo

In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (“"the Scheme") under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies
Act, 1956 sanctioned by order dated 21 July, 2006 and dated 10" August, 2006(revised) of Hon'ble High Court of
Judicature at Bombay, and the order dated 18% July, 2006 of the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat, with effective date 12%
September, 2006,

i)

iit)

iv)

v)

Ambani Enterprises Private Limited ("AEPL") ,Reliance Business Management Private Limited ("RBMPL"), Formax
Commercial Private Limited("FORMAX"), Reliance Communications Technologies Limited ("RCTL"), Reliance Software
Solutions Private Limited("RSSPL"), Reliance Communications Solutions Private Limited ("RCSPL"), hereinafter referred
as " Transferor Companies” whose core activity was holding group company shares, have been amalgamated with the
Company from the appointed date 1° January, 2006, and

Panther Consultants Private Limited (herein after referred as "PCPL" or " Transferor Companies"), whose core activity
was holding group company shares, has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date 1<t March,
2006, and

Reliance Infocomm Limited (herein after referred as "RIC" or " Transferor Companies") whose core activity was
provision of Telecommunication services, has been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date 31
March, 2006 and

Network division of the Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (“RCIL") having the telecom infrastructure,
has been demerged to the Company from the appointed date 315 March, 2006 . Consequently, with effect from
315 March, 2006, the Indefeasible Right of Connectivity agreement between RIC and RCIL has been terminated.

As an integral part of the said Scheme, Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Telecom Limited,
FLAG Telecom Group Limited and Other subsidiaries of RIC became wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company.

In accordance with the said Scheme and as per the Hon'ble High Courts' approval :

i)

it

The assets, properties, liabilities, rights and obligations of

- AEPL, RBMPL, FORMAX, RCTL, RSSPL, RCSPL have been vested in the Company with effect from 1% January, 2006
- PCPL has been vested in the Company with effect from 15 March, 2006

- RIC has been vested in the Company with effect from 31 March, 2006

- The Network Division of RCIL has been vested in the Company with effect from 31t March, 2006

and have been recorded in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme as follows:

All the assets recorded in the books of Transferor Companies and the Network Division of RCIL is recorded by the
Company at their respective fair values and all the liabilities recorded in the books of Transferor companies are
recorded by the company at their respective book values as appearing in the books of Transferor companies. Rs.9,239.77
crore representing the Investments in equity shares of RIC held by the Company, prior to amalgamation is written-
off through the Profit and Loss account of the Company and an equivalent amount for the purpose of these
accounts, has been drawn from General Reserve arising on and pursuant to Demerger of "Telecommunication
Undertaking" of Reliance Industries Limited into the Company.

The Company has issued and allotted 55,63,29,165 equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up to the equity

"‘. hareholders of AEPL and 26,51,55,403 equity shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up to the equity shareholders of

§ CPL. The same is recorded as Share Capital in the books of the Company. Upon said allotment, the paid up equity

& phare capital of the Company has increased to Rs. 1,022.31 crore divided into 204,46,14,990 equity shares of
d; Rs. 5/- each fully paid up.
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Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account (Contd...)

iv) The excess of fair value of Assets of Rs. 23,207.60 crore over the loan liabilities of Rs. 7,953.61 crore and
consideration paid in the form of allotment of Equity shares of value Rs.410.74 crore being Rs. 14,843.25 crore has
been dealt with as under:

Rs. 3,000.00 crore is credited to and held as Provision for Business Restructuring to meet the increased depreciation
cost, expenses and losses including on account of impairment or write down of assets which may be suffered by the
Company, pursuant to the Scheme or otherwise in course of its business or in carrying out such restructuring of the
operations of the Company or its Subsidiaries. During the period ended 31t March, 2007 additional depreciation on
fair valuation of assets of Rs. 660.52 crore and expenses relating to the Scheme of Rs.28.53 crore have been
adjusted aqainst the aforesaid provision.

Rs. 9,030.63 crore, representing Securities Premium shown in the books of RIC, attributable to RIC shares other than
those being cancelled under the Scheme has been credited to Securities Premium Account.

The balance of excess of Rs. 2,812.62 crore as above is shown under General Reserve II Account.

Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment, an amount of Rs. 14,843.25 crore would have been credited to
Capital Reserve as required by the Purchase Method prescribed by Accounting Standard 14 on Accounting for
Amalgamation issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

5 In terms of the scheme of arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme") between
Reliance Industries Limited (RIL), the Company and other three transferee Companies, RIL has re-organized and segregated by
way of a demerqer, its business and undertaking engaged in Coal based Enerqy Undertaking, Gas based Energy Undertaking,
Financial service Undertaking and Telecommunication Undertaking to four separate transferee Companies. All the assets and
liabilities are transferred pursuant to approval order of the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at Bombay dated 9" December,
2005 and the same has been filed with Registrar of Companies on 21t December, 2005 and the appointed date as per the
Scheme is 15t September, 2005.

As per the said Scheme:

i) In consideration of the demerger, the Company issued and allotted 122,31,30,422 Equity Shares amounting to
Rs. 611.57 crore to the shareholders of RIL (except the specified shareholders) in the ratio of one equity share of face
value of Rs. 5 each fully paid up in the Company for every one equity share of Rs. 10 each fully paid up held by the
shareholders of RIL.

i) Excess of net assets so recorded, over the amount of share capital issued amounting to Rs. 14,777.77 crore is recognized
in these financial statements, and as stipulated in the Scheme, is disclosed as a reserve with the nomenclature ‘General
Reserve I.

6 Plant and Machinery includes, Ducts, Optical Fibres and associated properties which are part of Network division amounting to
Rs. 4,125.04 crore (previous period Nil) is jointly owned with Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company.

7 Scheme of Arrangement for transfer of passive infrastructure

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement ("the Scheme") under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act 1956, as approved
by the Hon'ble High Court of Judicature in Bombay vide order dated 16™ March, 2007 (being effective from 10% April, 2007),
the Company and Reliance Telecom Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company shall transfer the passive Infrastructure
comprising of Wireless and Broadcasting towers to Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited also a significantly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Estimated amount of assets for passive infrastructure is Rs. 3,924.00 crore.

8 () The Company had made allotment of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) of US $ 50 crore on 9" May, 2006
having maturity period of 5 years and 1 day. Each FCCB is convertible into equity shares of the Company at the price of
Rs. 480.68 per share, representing a premium of 50% to the closing price of the shares on 21 March, 2006. In the
event of the FCCB are fully converted into equity, the equity share capital of the Company would increase by approximately
4.62 crore equity shares of Rs. 5 each. The premium payable on redemption of Rs. 91.39 crore as on 31t March, 2007
and issue expenses of Rs. 11.24 crore is charged to the Securities Premium Account.

n and at any time after 9" May, 2009 and on and prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may, subject to certain
s and conditions as per the offering memorandum, redeem the bonds in whole and not in part at their Early
ption Amount, provided that no such redemption may be made unless the Aggreqgate Value (as defined in the
and conditions) on each Trading Day during a period of not less than 30 consecutive Trading Days, ending not earlier
14 days prior to the date upon which notice of such redemption is given, was at least 130 percent of the Early
mption Amount.
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Notes on Accounts to Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account (Contd...)

(i) The Company had made allotment of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) of US $ 100 crore on 28" February,
2007 having maturity period of 5 years and 1 day. Each FCCB is convertible into equity shares of the Company at the
price of Rs. 661.23 per share, representing a premium of 28% to the closing price of the shares on 5% February, 2007.
In the event of the FCCB are fully converted into equity, the equity share capital of the Company would increase by
approximately 6.67 crore equity shares of Rs. 5 each. The premium payable on redemption of Rs. 18.51 crore as on 315
March, 2007 and issue expenses of Rs. 24.42 crore is charged to Securities Premium Account.

On and at any time after 28th February 2010 and on and prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may. subject to
certain terms and conditions as per the offering memorandum, having given not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days
notice to the Bondholders, redeem the bonds in whole and not in part at their Early Redemption Amount, provided that
no such redemption may be made unless the Aggreqate Value (as defined in the terms and conditions) on each Trading
Day during a period of not less than 30 consecutive Trading Days, ending not earlier than 14 days prior to the date upon
which notice of such redemption is given, was at least 130 percent of the Early Redemption Amount.

(i) Rs. 1,343.00 crore out of the proceeds of the above bonds have been used for capital expenditure in the Company's
operations. Pending utilisation, the balance Rs. 5,142.00 crore has been kept in bank deposits, through a wholly owned
subsidiary.

(iv) Unsecured Loan includes Rs.109.90 crore, being premium on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds, raised
during the current period.

9 a. Details of Project Development Expenditure (included under Capital Work-in-Progress) :
(Rs. in crore)
As at As at
315t March, 2007 31+ December, 2005

Additions on Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement 270.54 -
as on 31.03.2006

ADD: Expenditure incurred during the period (01.01.06 to 31.03.07)

Payments to & Provisions for Employees 5.26 -
Rent 20.40 -
Rates and Taxes 18.16 -
Repairs 1.73 -
Travelling Expenses 0.95 -
Professional Fees 2.05 -
Power, Water and Electricity 2.77 -
Network Setup Costs 12.74 -
General and Administrative Expenses 16.26 -
Interest on Term Loans 56.48 -
Bank Charges 0.01

136.81 -

407.35 -

LESS :

Capitalised during the period 221.06 -
Closing Balance 186.29 -

b. Borrowing Cost Capitalised during the period Rs. 56.48 crore (Previous period Rs.Nil)
10 Contingencies and Commitments

@™ Relidnce Infostreams Private Limited, Reliance Next Link Private Limited and the company's subsidiaries Reliance Webstore
f |m‘|‘c°?& eliance Infoinvestments Limited; Netizen Rajasthan Limited; Netizen Gujarat Limited; Reliance Infocomm Solutions
ited; shias given corporate quarantee in favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of Export Import Bank of United States
S EX @ . US EXIM Guaranteed Lenders and Export Development Canada, quaranteeing the repayment of the Buyers' Credit
ilit reqating to USS$ 44.58 crore (equivalent Rs.1,938.07 crore) (Previous Period Nil) availed by the company and also
ypothecation on its movable assets to additionally secure the aforesaid facility.
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11

12

13

Exceptional Item.

The Company has taken adequate steps for verification of customers and is spending reasonable amount while taking those
customers on board on due compliance of the then norms for customer verification. Department of Telecommunication (DoT)
has issued a directive for comprehensive address verifications of all customers. Accordingly total amount of Rs. 23.90 crore for
Customer Verification expenses has been provided as Exceptional item.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

1)

Provisions
Provisions include, Provision for Disputed Claims and Others of Rs.1,837.43 crore and Provision for Commission to Non
Executive Directors of Rs. 44.00 crore.

Provision for disputed claims consists of Provision for Disputed Claims of Rs. 1,813.53 crore and verification of customers Rs.
23.90 crore. Out of the provision of Rs. 1,837.43 crore an amount of Rs. 1,815.99 crore vested on account of Scheme
of Amalgamation and Arrangement.

During the period from 1<t January, 2006 to 31t March, 2007, an amount of Rs. 19.78 crore relating to sales tax liability
has been reversed. An amount of Rs. 17.32 crore has been provided towards Interconnect Usage Charges. No amount has
been utilised out of the provision.

Provisions shall be utilised on settlement of the claims. The liability aqainst provision for Commission to Non Executive
Directors will be paid during the year 2007-08.

Also refer note 8 (iv).
Contingent Liabilities
(Rs. in crore)

As at As at
315t March, 2007 31 December, 2005

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital accounts (net of advances) and not provided for 875.93 -

Disputed Liabilities in Appeal

- Sales Tax/VAT 33.68 -

- Excise/Service Tax 5.40 -

- Entry Tax/Octroi 5.38 -

Guarantees given to Banks/Company agqainst credit facilities

provided to Subsidiary Companies 1,023.48 -
1.943.87 -

The Company being in the business of Telecommunication Services is eligible for deduction u/s 80IA (Tax holiday) of the
Income tax Act, 1961. Since the Deferred Tax Liability in respect of timing difference is expected to reverse during the Tax
Holiday Period, the same is not recognised in books of accounts as at 31 March, 2007 as per the Accounting Standards
Interpretation (ASI) 3 read with Accounting Standard 22 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

Particulars (Rs. in crore)

As at As at
315t March, 2007 31 December, 2005

On account of timing difference of depreciation Nil 0.63

14 Auditor's Remuneration (Excluding Service Tax)

(Rs. in crore)

For fifteen months ended For nine months ended
31t March, 2007 31 December, 2005

4.08 0.02
0.25 -
1.81 -
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15

16

17

18

Expenditure in Foreign Currency on account of:

Professional and Technical Fees

Long Distance Operations

Interest on Foreign Currency Term Loans
Salary

Others

Earnings in Foreign Currency on account of:

Long Distance Operations

Value of Imports on CIF basis in respect of:

Capital Goods

i.  Managerial Remuneration:

Salaries
Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund
Commission to Non Executive Directors

Provision for Gratuity

i. ~Computation of Net Profit u/s 349 of Companies Act, 1956

Profit after Tax (For Twelve months ended 31 March, 2007)
Add:

Depreciation as per Companies' Act 1956

Provision for Taxation

Managerial Remuneration

Less:
Depreciation as per Companies ' Act 1956

reciation Charged to Provision for Business Restructuring

ulated as per Section 349

5 amount permissible @ 3 %

it
X

rovided there agqainst

For fifteen months ended

31t March, 2007
18.58

397.42

268.16

3.76

44.21

For fifteen months ended

31t March, 2007
1,687.71

For fifteen months ended

315t March, 2007
1,504.50

For fifteen months ended

31t March, 2007
0.47

0.02

44.00

0.01

44.50

(Rs. in crore)

2,394.30
1.834.10
11.20
44.00
1,889.30
1,834.10
660.52
2,494.62
1,788.98
52.11
44,00

(Rs. in crore)
For nine months ended
31t December, 2005

(Rs. in crore)
For nine months ended
31t December, 2005

(Rs. in crore)
For nine months ended
31t December, 2005

(Rs. in crore)
For nine months ended
31t December, 2005
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19 Finance Lease: (As a Lessor)

The following are lease rentals receivable as at 31st March 2007

Due

Within one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

Later than five years

Total

Note: Fiqures in brackets represent previous period's figures
General description of lease terms:

Gross Investment

14.39
(11.37)
32.19
(45.47)

(13.41)
46.58
(70.25)

- Lease rentals are charged on the basis of agreed rate of interest

- Assets are given on lease on a period of 10 years

Unearned
Finance Income

7.31
(6.35)
8.77
(17.19)
(1.95)
16.08
(25.49)

(Rs. in crore)

Present Value of
Minimum Lease
Payments

7.08
(5.02)
23.42
(28.28)
(11.46)

30.50
(44.76)

- The Company has leased the assets to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and is not charging lease rentals w.e.f. 1 July, 2006.

20 Particulars of Derivative Instruments

Particulars of Derivative Instruments acquired for hedging

Principal Only Swap
Currency Swaps
Interest rate Swaps-FC
Interest rate Swaps-INR
Options

Structured Derivatives

No derivative instruments are for speculation purpose.

No. of Instruments

26
20
27
63
22

2

(US 'S crore)
24.33
72.39
95.50
96.43
73.74

7.45

Value

( Rs. in crore )
1,057.76
3,147.05
4,151.39
4,192.00
3,205.70

323.94

In respect of Foreign exchange Swap and Interest rate Swap transactions, which are linked with LIBOR rates and exchange
rate during the binding period of contract, qains/ losses are recognized on the settlement day or the reporting day whichever
is earlier at the rate prevailing in the respective day. However, in the case of principal portion, gain is recognised only on

settlement day.

Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are USD 214.43 crore (equivalent

Rs. 9,321.48 crore.)

The unamortised premium of Buyers credit to be recognised is Rs. 12.59 crore (previous period Nil) for one or more subsequent

accounting periods.
21 Export Commitments

ompany has obtained licenses / authorisation under the Export Promotion Capital Goods ( EPCG ) Scheme for importing
at.goods at a concessional rate of custom duty agqainst submission of bonds.

% terms of the respective licenses / authorisation, the company is required to export gqoods of FOB value equivalent

obligations as on 31 March, 2007 under the aforesaid licenses / authorisation is Rs‘.ri!}OO crcge (‘E‘)'revious period Nil).
1]
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22 Segment disclosure as per Accounting Standard AS-17 - Seqgment Reporting, is reported in Consolidated Accounts of the
Company. Therefore, the same has not separately been disclosed in line with the provision of AS-17.

23 Employee Benefits

Gratuity : In accordance with the applicable Indian laws, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan
(Gratuity Plan) for all employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees, at retirement or
termination of employment, an amount based on respective employee's last drawn salary and for the years of employment
with the Company.

The following table set out the status of the gratuity plan as required under AS 15.
i) Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the present value of the defined benefit obligation

(Rs. in crore)

Particulars As at

31t March, 2007
Obligation at period beginning 10.06
Service Cost 2.91
Interest Cost 0.70
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 1.62
Benefits Paid (0.69)
Obligation at period end 14.60

Defined benefit obligation liability as at the balance sheet is wholly funded by the company
i) Change in plan assets

Plan assets at period beginning, at fair value 10.90
Expected return on plan assets 0.99
Actuarial (gain)/ loss (0.27)
Contributions 0.13
Benefits (0.69)
Plan assets at period end, at fair value 11.06

i) Reconciliation of present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the period 11.06
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the end of the period 14.60
Liability recognized in the balance sheet 3.54
iv) Gratuity cost for the period
Service Cost 2.91
Interest Cost 0.70
Expected return on plan assets (0.98)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss 1.88
Net Gratuity Cost 4.51

v) Investment details of plan assets
100% of the plan assets are invested in debt instruments
vi) Actual return on plan assets 0.71

vii) Assumptions

9%
9%
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24 Earnings per Share:

For the period of For the period of
fifteen months ended nine months ended
315t March, 2007 31t December, 2005
Basic and Diluted EPS
a) Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In crore)
(Numerator used for calculation) 2,408.85 5.65
b)  Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. In crore) 2,299.63 5.65
(Numerator used for calculation of Dilutive EPS)
c) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as 201,02,32,201 66,546
denominator for calculating Basic EPS
d) Add: Effect of potential equity shares to be issued under FCCB 377.,63.103 -
e) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as
denominator for calculating Diluted EPS 204,79,95,304 54,36,13,521
f)  Basic Earnings per Share of Rs. 5 each (in Rupees) 11.98 849.62
¢) Diluted Earnings per Share of Rs. 5 each (in Rupees) 11.23 0.10

25 Loans and Advances in the nature of loans

(Rs. in crore)

Sr.  Name of the Company As At As At Maximum
No. 315t March, 2007 315 Decembe,r 2005 Balance during
the year

a) Reliance Gateway Net Limited 977.67 - 977.67
b) Reliance Webstore Limited 1,128.09 - 1,128.09
c) Netizen Rajasthan Limited 7.20 - 7.20
d) Gateway Net Trading Pte. Limited 9.37 N 9.37
e) Reliable Internet Services Limited 175.30 - 175.30
f)  Reliance Telecom Limited 1,092.78 - 1,092.78
g) Campion Properties Limited 36.78 - 36.78
h) Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited 1,504.59 - 1,504.59
i) Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited 630.00 - 630.00
5,561.76 5561.76

Loans and Advances to subsidiaries are interest free loans, where there is no repayment schedule and are repayable on

mand.

Wy
rr%agement is currently in the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company
w

qualify under the definition of medium and small enterprises, as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

ﬁﬁlelo |§1 nt Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amounts payable to such micro, small and medium
Lepterpriges as at 371t March, 2007 has not been made in the financial statements. However, in view of the management, the
) interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.
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27 As per Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the disclosures of transactions with
the related parties as defined in the Acccounting Standard are given below :

A

List of Related Parties

Subsidiary companies (direct and/ step down subsidiaries) and companies over which it exercises control over
ownership and voting power.

Gateway Systems (India) Limited
Reliance Gateway Net Limited
Reliance Infoinvestments Limited
Reliance Infocomm Solutions Limited
Netizen Gujarat Limited

Reliance Webstore Limited

Netizen Rajasthan Limited

00 N oW

Reliance Communications Investment and Leasing Limited
9  Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited

10 Reliance Telecom Limited

11 Reliable Internet Services Limited

12 Campion Properties Limited

13 Reliance Telephones Limited

14 Reliance Mobile Limited

15 Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Ltd. (formerly Reliance Communications Rajasthan Limited)
16 Matrix Innovations Limited

17 Synerqy Enterpreneur Solution Private Limited

18 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited

19 Assam Network Private Limited (upto 12.01.2007)
20 Rajasthan Network Private Limited (upto 30.01.2007)
21 Reliance Infocom BV

22 Reliance Infocom Inc.

23 Reliance Communications (UK) Limited

24 Reliance Communications Hong Kong Limited

25 Reliance Communications Inc.

26 Reliance Communications Canada Inc.

27 Reliance Netway Inc.

28 Reliance Communications International Inc.

29 FLAG Telecom Group Limited

30 FLAG Telecom Belgium Network SA

31 FLAG Pacific Holdings Limited

32 FLAG Telecom Development Limited

33 FLAG Telecom Group Services Limited

FLAG Pacific Limited

FLAGWEB Limited
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39 FLAG Atlantic France SAS
40 FLAG Telecom France Services Eurl
41 FLAG Telecom France Network SAS
42 FLAG Telecom Deutschland GmbH
43 FLAG Telecom Deutschland Network GmbH
44 FLAG Telecom Hellas AE
45 FLAG Telecom Asia Limited
46 FLAG Access India Private Limited
47 FLAG Telecom Ireland Network Limited
48 FLAG Telecom Network Services Limited
49 FLAG Telecom Ireland Limited
50 FLAG Telecom Servizi Italia SpA
51 FLAG Telecom Japan Limited
52 FLAG Telecom Korea Limited
53 FLAG Telecom Singapore Pte. Limited
54 FLAG Telecom Espana SA
55 FLAG Telecom Espana Network SAU
56 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Services Limited
57 FLAG Telecom Taiwan Limited
58 FLAG Telecom Nederland BV
59 FLAG Telecom Nederland Network BV
60 FLAG Atlantic UK Limited
61 FLAG Telecom Limited
62 Gateway Net Trading Pte. Limited., Singapore (w.e.f. - 23.02.2006)
63 Reliance Communications (Singapore) Pte. Limited (w.e.f. - 22.08.2006)
64 Reliance Communications (New Zealand) Pte. Limited (w.e.f. - 17.08.2006)
65 Reliance Communications (Australia) Pty Limited (w.e.f. - 29.08.2006)
66 RCOM Malaysia SDN.BHD. (w.e.f. - 17.11.2006)
67 Reliance Globalcom Limited
68 Reliance National Communications Limited #
69 Reliance Communications Maharashtra Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
70 Reliance Communications Himachal Pradesh Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
71 Reliance Communications West Bengal Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
72 Reliance Communications Delhi Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
73 Reliance Communications Tamil Nadu Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
74 Reliance Communications Jammu and Kashmir Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
75 Reliance Communications Haryana Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
76 Karma Commercial Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
Gurukul Commercial Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
Parikrama Commercial Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
* Reliance Infosoft Private Limited (up to 01/01/2007) #
eliance Communications Technologies Limited (up to 12.09.2006) #
eliance Software Solutions Private Limited (up to 12.09.2006) #
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82 Reliance Communications Solutions Private Limited (up to 12.09.2006) #
83 Ambani Enterprises Private Limited (up to 12.09.2006) #
84 Netizen Madhya Pradesh Private Limited #

85 Netizen Maharashtra Private Limited #

86 Netizen West Bengal Private Limited #

87 Seoul Telenet inc. #

88 FLAG Holdings (Taiwan) Limited #

Holding Companies

89 AAA Communications Private Limited

90 Reliance Innoventures Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries of holding company

91 Reliance Capital Limited

92 Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

Other Related Parties

Name Relationship
93 Shri Anil D. Ambani Person having control at any time during the period
94 Shri Hasit Shukla Key Managerial person

#  Companies over which the Company exercises control over ownership and voting power.
Significant Related Party Transactions :

1

Fixed assets acquired during the period includes from Flag Telecom France limited Rs. 44.01 crore (previous period Rs. Nil),
Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Rs. 85.43 crore. (previous period Nil)

Loans and Advances include loan granted during the period of Rs. 175.30 crore to Reliable Internet Services Limited,
Rs. 1,283.49 crore to Reliance Telecom Limited, Rs. 933.99 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited, Rs.36.78 crore to Campion
Properties Limited, Rs. 9.37 crore to Gateway Net Private Limited, Rs. 630.00 crore to Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure
Private Limited, Rs. 6,342.95 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and loans repaid during the period of
Rs. 5,834.37 crore by Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Rs.190.70 crore by Reliance Telecom Limited, Rs.
0.06 crore by Reliance Infocomm Solutions Limited. (Previous period - Loans & Advance include loans granted during the period
of Rs. 3.30 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited and repaid during the period Rs. 1.09 crore by Reliance
Communications Infrastructure Limited, Rs. Nil of Reliance Infoinvestments Limited, Reliable Internet Services Limited, Reliance
Telecom Limited, Reliance Webstore Limited, Campion Properties Limited, Gateway Net Private Limited, Reliance Infocomm
Infrastructure Private Limited.

Sundry Debtors include from Reliance Communications Inc. Rs. 128.37 crore, Rs. 32.20 crore from Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited, Rs. 48.61 crore from Flag Telecom Limited (previous period Nil).

Deposits granted during the period includes Rs. 13,517.14 crore to Reliance Infoinvestments Limited. Deposits repaid during
the period include Rs. 7,802.79 crore by Reliance Infoinvestments Limited (previous period Nil).

Other Receivables includes Rs. 732.45 crore from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Rs.194.81 crore from
Reliance Infoinvestments Limited and Rs. 9.46 Crore from Reliance General Insurance Company Limited (previous period Nil).

Sundry Creditors includes Rs. 994.92 crore to Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited, Rs. 122.10 crore to Flag
Telecom Group Limited and Rs. 187.35 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited, Rs. 132.36 crore from Gateway Net Trading Pte.
Limited. (previous period Nil)

Turnover includes transactions with Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Rs. 185.11 crore, Reliance Communications
Inc Rs. 1,041.90 crore, Reliance Communications Int. Inc. Rs. 208.52 crore, Reliable Internet Services Limited Rs. 6.38 crore,
ce Telecom Limited Rs 78.29 crore, Flag Telecom France Rs. 13.05 crore, Reliance Communication Canada Inc.
crore, Gateway Systems (India) Limited Rs. 0.83 crore and Reliance Webstore Limited Rs. 45.35 crore. (previous
come includes from Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited Rs. 4.95 crore.)
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9  Expenditure includes Access Charges from Reliance Communications Inc. Rs. 89.81 crore, Reliable Internet Services Limited Rs.
2.46 crore, Reliance Telecom Limited Rs. 37.50 crore. Network Operation Expenses includes Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited Rs. 83.61 crore, Flag Telecom Ireland Rs. 20.93 crore, Reliance Communications Int. Inc. Rs. 7.36 crore, Reliance
Communications UK Rs. 6.01 crore . Selling and Marketing expenses includes Rs. 96.68 crore to Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited and Rs. 161.45 crore to Reliance Webstore Limited. Professional Fees includes to Reliance Infocom Inc.
Rs. 3.74 crore. Rent includes Reliance Capital Limited Rs. 4.41 crore, General and Administrative Expense includes Reliance
Communication Infrastructure Limited Rs. 111.82 crore, Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited Rs. 95.83 crore and
Reliance General Insurance Company Limited Rs. 2.83 crore, Financial Charges includes Rs. 24.69 crore to Reliance Communications
Infrastructure Limited,

10 Financial Guarantees issued include to Reliance Infocom BV Rs. 65.21 crore. (previous period Nil)

11 () The non executive directors are also proposed to be remunerated by way of commission not exceeding Rs. 44.00 crore for
the year commencing 1< April, 2006 to 31st March, 2007as may be decided by the Nomination / Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company, including allocation to individual directors.

(ii) Transactions with Related Parties during the period 15t January, 06 to 31 March, 07
(Rs. in crore)

Sr.  Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries  Associates Fellow Others Total
No. Subsidaries
A)  Investments
Balance as at 1¢ January, 2006 2.832.44 - - - 2,832.44
() (=) (-) (-) ()
Purchased/adjusted during the period 135.80 17.40 1,548.49 - 1,701.69

) () (-) (-) )
Purchased/adjusted during the period

on account of Revaluation 2,267.31 - - - 2.267.31

() ) -) -) )

Purchased/adjusted on account of Merger 140.35 - - - 140.35
(2,832.39) () (-) (-) (2.832.39)

Sold during the period - - 1,548.49 - 1,548.49

(-) (=) (-) (-) (-)

Balance as at 31t March, 2007 5,358.50 17.40 - - 5,375.90
(2,832.39) (-) (-) (-) (2,832.39)

B)  Purchase of Assets 85.43 - - - 85.43
) ) -) ) )

C)  Sundry Debtors as at 31t March, 2007 220.48 0.80 - - 221.28

(-) (-) (-) (-) (-)
D) Loans & Advances
(i) Loans Given

Balance as at 1* January, 2006 35.55 - - - 35.55
) ) ) ) )
Given during the period 9,411.88 0.51 - - 9,412.39
(3.30) ) -) ) (3.30)

Given during the period -
On Account of Merger 2,139.42 - - - 2,139.42
(33.34) (=) (-) (-) (33.34)
Repaid during the period 6,025.07 - - - 6,025.07
(1.09) () (-) -) (1.09)
alance as at 31 March, 2007 5,561.78 0.51 - - 5,562.29
(35.55) (=) (-) -) (35.55)
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(Rs. in crore)

Sr.  Nature of Transactions Subsidiaries  Associates Fellow Others Total
No. Subsidaries
(ii)  Deposits
Balance as at 1% January, 2006 - - - - -
) (=) (-) (-) )
Given during the period 13,517.14 - - - 13.517.14
) (=) (-) (-) )
Given during the period -
On Account of Merger 4,467.12 - - - 4,467.12
) (=) (-) (-) )
Returned during the period 7,802.79 - - - 7.802.79
) (=) (-) ) )
Balance as at 315t March, 2007 10.,181.46 - - - 10,181.46
) (=) (-) -) )
(iii) Other Receivables as on
31st March, 2007 927.26 - 9.46 - 936.72
(32.25) (-) (-) (=) (32.25)
E)  Sundry Creditors as at 315t March, 07 1,496.77 - - - 1,496.77
) (=) ) -) )
F)  Turnover 1,586.86 - - - 1,586.86
(9.90) (=) -) (-) (9.90)
G)  Other Income 93.49 - - - 93.49
) (=) -) -) )
H)  Expenditure
Access Charges 129.76 - - - 129.76
) (=) (-) (-) )
Network Operation Expenses 118.94 - - - 118.94
) (=) (-) (-) )
Selling and Marketing Expenses 258.12 - - - 258.12
) (=) -) -) )
General and Adminsitration Expenses 232.34 - 2.83 - 235.17
() (=) (-) -) )
Professional Fees 3.74 - - - 3.74
() (=) -) -) )
Rent Rates & Taxes - - 4.41 - 4.41
) ) (-) -) )
#anagerial Remunaration - - - 0.57 0.57
gite ) ) ) () )
‘& Fiquies|in brackets represent previous period's figures
.
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22 Additional information as required under Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956

Balance Sheet Abstract and Company's General Business Profile:

I. Registration Details:

Registration No. [ [ 1] 1] -] 1]4]7]s] 3] 1] state code LT T LT T ]
Balance Sheet Date: | 3| 1| -] o] 3] -] 2] o] o] 7|
1. Capital raised during the year: (Amount in Rs. Crore)
N S o O I R LA B Y
Bonus Issue: L] ] ] [ [ [ [IN] 1] L] Pivatepacement:| | [ [ | [ | [N]I] L]
III. Position of mobilisation and deployment of funds: (Amount in Rs. Crore)
Total Liabilities: | | [3]5]o]9]3]-]3]8]motatassetss | | [3][5]o][9]3]-]3] 8]
Sources of Funds: Application of Funds:
Paid up Capital: [ | | [1]o]2]2]-]3] 1] NetFixed Assets: | | [2]o]2]8]a]-]o] 5]
Reserves and Surplus: | | | 1] 9] 5] o] 3] -] 2] 3] mvestments: | | | [s]a[3]a]-]a] 3]
Share Application Money: | | | | | | | [ | | o] Netcumentpssets| | | [o[3]7]4a]-]9] 0o
Secured Loans: L | | [s]1]1]3]-]s] 7] Miscellaneous
expenditoes [T [ [ T [ T [ 1 [0
Unsecured Loans: L | | [9]4]5]4]-]2] 7] Profit and Loss
Account: | [ [T [ [T][od
IV. Performance of the Company:Performance of the Company: (Amount in Rs. Crore)
Net Turnover: L | 1] 76| 1] -] 9] 1] total expenditure:] | | [o|3]a]1]-]0] 6]
Profit /(-) Loss before tax: | | | | 2] 4] 2] o] -| 8] 5] Profit / (=) Loss
after tax: | |2]4]o]8]-]8] 5]
Earnings per Share in Rs:
- Basic L L L L L Ia[a] Jole]omvidendrate: [ T T T T T T T [1]9]
- Dites ERNENONREE
V. Generic Names of principal services of the company:
Item Code number L [ I ] [ | [ | |N]A| ProductDescription [T [E [L[E[c[o[m[m]u]|N]|
Cle[alr [ To W] [ 1]
GlelelvTele[s] 1]
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For_Chaturvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani
mErtansd, Accountants Chartered Accountants
haturvedi Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran
. Partner Directors S. P. Talwar
§/No. 45882  Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie
r@t 2007 Company Secretary & Manaqer Hasit Shukla
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For fifteen months

(Rs. in crore)
For nine months

ended 31 ended 371
March, 2007 December, 2005
A: CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 2,420.85 8.85
Adjusted for:
Provision for Doubtful Debts, Loans and Advances 138.58 -
Amortisation of Intan%ibles and Depreciation 1.836.12 274
Exceptional and Non Recurring items
- Customer Verification 23.90 -
Unrealised Exchange loss / (gain) (101.17) -
Loss on Sale of Assets 5.03 -
Profit on Sale of Investments (21.78) -
Interest Expenses 409.98 -
Rent Income (10.75) (4.19)
Interest Income (154.74) 6.79
212517 534
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 4,546.02 14.19
Adjusted for:
Receivables and other Advances 3,230.99 (12.64)
Inventories (32.54) -
Trade Payables 2,776.46 1.05
5,974.91 (11.59)
Cash Generated from Operations 10.520.93 2.60
Tax Paid (51.81) -
Net Cash from Operating Activities 10,469.12 2.60
B: CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to Fixed Assets £2.727.24; -
Purchase of Investments 8,417.23 -
Sale of Investments 9,160.31 -
Loans recovered from Subsidiaries 88.20 -
Investments in Subsidiary Companies (3,100.00) -
Rent Income 10.75 419
Interest Income 101.35 (6.79)
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (4,883.86) (2.60)
C: CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from Issue of Equity Share Capital - 0.04
Repayment of Short term Borrowings - net (340.97) -
Proceeds from Secured Term Loans 111.65 -
Repayment of Secured Term Loans (567.10) -
Proceeds from Unsecured Term Loans 7,519.07 -
Repayment of Unsecured Term Loans (1,646.99) -
Interest Paid (429.74) -
Net Cash from Financing Activities 4,645.92 0.04
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 10.231.18 0.04
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.05 0.01
Cash and Cash Equivalents acquired on Scheme of
Amalagamation and Arrangement 19.55 -
Effect ‘'of Exchange (Loss)/Gain on Cash and Cash Equivalents (0.87) -
Deposit with Subsidiaries Payble on Demand (10.181.46) -
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31t March, 2007 68.45 0.05

Notes

1)  Previous period's figures have been reqgrouped and recast wherever necessary to conform to the current year classification.
2) The Amalgamation of Group companies with the company as per the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement is a non cash

transaction. (Refer Note No.4 of Notes to Accounts)

For BSR & Co
Chartered Accountants

Natrajan Ramkrishna

Partner
Membership No. 32815

For and on behalf of the Board

Chairman Anil D. Ambani
J. Ramachandran

Directors S. P. Talwar
Deepak Shourie

Company Secretary & Manaqger
'I?HIIEC

Hasit Shukla
PY 3]
71
THIS ANNEXURE S THE TRUE COPY

OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT



876

imited

Reliance Communications L

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

SYieT SPieT dn-pied AnJ yaea O | sy Jo amea 9002 £002 paywn
N IN| £2°08Z'sYd 69'L0L6V'Sd %00 L 208} ay3 Jo sareys Aynb3 000'00'LZ | Aenuef«|| YR LE SIUBUNSIAUIOJUT dURNY | 6
(swe (swen dn-pied AnnJ yoea Q| sy Jo amea 900¢ £00¢
N IN|  200sd) L1'0'sYd) %001 a2ej auy Jo sareys Aunb3 000'0S | Kuenuef || 'UdIBN 5 LE paywr ieMo uaznanN | g
sye syxen dn-pred AnJ yoea Q| sy Jo anen aoe) 9002 1002 PaYLLI BUISLST X JUSUISIAU]
N N 28'Lsy 95'6'sy %001 a3 Jo saseys Aunb3 000'00°' L2 ‘Kienuef || YR s LE suonedlunuwwoy aouenay | £
(syre (syre dn-pred Anj yoea Q| 'sy Jo amea aoe} 9002 £002 pajwI (epur)
N IN| $8'88'SY) ¥9'0'sY) %001 a3 Jo sareys Aunb3 990'/8'9 | Atenuef || Yo L€ swaishs Aemanen | 9
pajIUI 2JN32NISeIJUT SUOIEIIUNWIWIOD)
aouenay Aq piay dn-pied
(syxe suye And yoea 0| 'sy Jo amen aoe) 9002 £002 PajyWI 81eAld SUORNOS
N IN| L8'E65'SY) O¥'L28'sy %001 a3 Jo saseys Aunb3 000'05'02 ‘Aienuef || YR s LE | (2 910N 993G) Inauaidiaaug AbiauAs | g
pajIWIT 21N3oN3SeIU]
SUOIEIIUNWWOY) 3duenay Aq play
(swe (swen dn-pied AnnJ yoea Q| sy Jo amea 900¢ £00¢
N IN[OLTEPI'SY) 2T'SLsY) %001 228} ayy Jo sareys Aynb3 000'0S | A1eNUB[ | 'YdIBIA L E | (2 ION 235)| PSIILLIT SUORRAOUUL XIABIN | F
pajIUIT 2JN30NISeLJU] SUOIBIIUNWIWIOD)
aouenay Aq piay dn-pied
(SYie (syre AnJ yoes | "oy Jo amen aoe) 9002 £002
N IN|  00°0'sd) 20'0'sy) %00 L a3 Jo saseys Aunb3 000'00'S AIBNUB[ || 'YIBIN 5 LE | (2 910N 93S)|  PaaWI] IOy dURN)Y | €
payun
3JN30N3SIJUT SUORRIIUNWWIOD)
2ouenay Aq piay dn-pied Apgnj
(swe sype Yoea QL 'sy Jo anjen adej a3 900¢ £00¢ pajiwr amomselju
N IN|  L00'sd) LT°E5Y %66 Jo sareys Aunb3 S6£'65'06'6 | ABNUB[ 1| YIRS LE| (L SION 235) wodsj3L 2dueny | ¢
dn-pied AnnJ
(swe (swe Uoea | sy Jo amen 928} auy Jo 900¢ £00¢ a1 aumoNAseur
IN IN | 69'5685'S) ££'26905'Y) %00 L saseys Aynb3 000'00'00'002 | ‘Auenue( || 'YoIBN s LE suopeauNWILIO) dduenay | |
Aielpisqns Kieipisqns
s,Auedwo) s Auedwo)
duipjoH HSuiploH ‘sajueduwio)
3y} aWwedaq 3y} awedaq sauelpisqns
Aayy aouis 1002| Aayy aduls 1002 | 2y Jo teak
sajuedwod yorey | saiuedwod yoley | 1eroueut) ayy saiuedwo) Aieipisqng ayy uo papus
Aseipisgns sLE|  Aepisgns 1€ | Jopusapae Jo teakjepueut ayy Jo pua sajuedwo)| saluedwo)
a1 Jo sieak papua| ap Jo sieak papua Auedwo) 33 3P SaLPIPISGNS AU Ul Keipisqng | Aleipisqng
1eueUl4 1eak|  jepueuly 1eak |  Bupioy Jo S9UILIOU SI UM pajiwl awedaq| oy Jo Jesp
snoinaud 1eueul) snoinaid 1eueut) 159193U] SUORRDIUNWILIOD 3dUenay | A3y3 yoiym 1eruUeUl4 s3j0N Jo ‘ON
2y} Jo4 ay3 Jo4 3y} Jo4 ayy Jo4 Jojuaixg Aq play saleys Jo JaquinN wolj ayeq ayl EREIEIEN] sieoped | S

'syunodae s Auedwo)
BUIPIOH U3 Ul am 3jeaq

sjunodoe s,Auedwo)
AUIPIOH a3 Ul yum 11eap 10N

Auedwod duipioy a3 Jo siaquiaw ayy
SUIB2U0D I Se Jej 05 (5507) / Wold saluedwo)
Aleipisqng ayy Jo Junowe 21eHaldbdHe 19U Ay

sajuedwo) Aieipisqng ayy ui 3saiajul s,Auedwo) 03 Sunejal ‘gge | 30y satuedwo) ayy Jo g |2 UoI3d3S 03 Juensin

§

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY

OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT

TRUE CORY




877

Reliance Communications L
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

imited

N

N

1IN

N

1IN

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

1IN

N

N

N

1IN

N

1N

N

1IN

1IN

1IN

N

N

N

(syre
L2'L'sd)
(PLS2L
0in3)
(syre
80°0°sY)

(sye
£6'220'L'sY)

(swie
10°0'sY)

syxe
00'765'G'sY
(swie
69'9¢ 1Y)
(swie
£0°0'sY)
(sweq
£105Y)
syxe]
¥0'£95'2'sY
(swpeq

PP EESSY)
31geonddy
10N

(swie
20°0sY)

(swfe
200'Y)

(swie
20°0'5Y)

(swie
20°0'Y)

(swie
Sb'e'sYy)

(syre
LSLLSY)
(££0'02
0in3)
(syre
00°0°sY)

(swfe
LY PE LsY)

swie
€00’y

sWie
06'SZL'LZ'sY
sue

SL0L'SY

suie

80°0'sY

swie

2rs LSy

swie

£E91sy
(swie
91'£9'5Y)
(SPR1 6992 L'SY)
(596'60'v ASN)
suie

5005y

(swfe
LLOSY)

swie
0505y

(swie
LL0sY)

(sie
55'5'Y)

%001

%00 L

%001

%001

%001

%001

%09

%0908

%001

%.666

%001

%001

%001

%001

%00 L

%00 L

'PI7 19N Aemaien) aouenay

Aq p1ay dn-pied AjInJ yoes oo L 03 Jo
saleys Aunba g00'0 L pue dn-pied ApnJ
4oea Q| 0.n3 Jo saleys Aunb3 2| ||
dn-pied AnJ yoea Q| 'sy Jo anea

32e} ayy Jo saseys Aunb3 000'0S

Pl W02313] 3duenay Aq play
dn-pied A)nJ yoea Q| 'sy Jo saleys A&unba
000'00°'0F pue dn-pied AInJ yoea L sy Jo
ameA 828} ay3 Jo saieys Aynb3 000'00'09
P WO02319] 3duenay

Aq p1ay dn-pred AInJ yoea g | sy Jo
anjeA aoe) ayy Jo saleys Aynb3 000'0S
pajIWI 31RALd 21MdNAseJul

wiwodojur asuenay Aq piay dn-pred AgnJ
yoea Q| 'sy Jo saseys Aunba 090’522
pue dn-pied A\nJ yoea Q| 'sy Jo anjea
928} ay3 Jo saseys Aunb3 0¥ 6'70'LS' L
dn-pred AnJ yoea | sy Jo anjea

328} aup Jo sateys Aunb3 000'00'05

(S 910N 295)

(¥ 0N 295)

dn-pred AnJ yoea Q| sy Jo anjea
a2e} ayy Jo saseys Aunb3 000'0S
dn-pied ANnJ yoea Q| sy Jo anea
908} au Jo saseys Aunb3 L09'€9'sE
dn-pred A)nJ yoea | *gsn Jo anjea
2op]) 2y Jo saseys AInb3 000'00' L
dn-pied AnnJ yoea Q| sy Jo anmea
a2e) ayy Jo saleys Aynb3 000'0S
payWwi] ueyiseley uaznaN

Aq p1ay dn-pred Annj yoea Q| 'sy Jo
aneA ade) ayy Jo sateys Aunb3 000’z
pajyiw] ueyisefley uaznan

Aq p1ay dn-pred AInJ yoea g | sy Jo
aneA ade) ayy Jo saseys Aunb3 000’z
pajiwl ueyisefey uaznan

Aq p1ay dn-pied Ajnj yoes Q| 'sy Jo
aneA ade) ayy Jo sateys Aunb3 000’z
PaYILLIT JUSLLIISIAUIOJU] dUenay

Aq p1ay dn-pied Annj yoea g | sy Jo
ameaA a2e} ayy Jo saseys A1Inb3 000'0S

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienue( |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Klenuef |
900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |
900¢
‘Kleniga €2

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

900¢
‘Kienuef |

£L00¢
"YU s LE
£00¢
YOIBIN s LE

£00¢
Yol s LE

£00¢
Yol s LE

£00¢
YOI s LE
£00¢
YOI 55 LE
£00¢
UoIBIN 55 L E
£00¢
"YoUBN s LE
£00¢
"YW ISLE
£00¢
"YoIRN s LE
£00¢
‘Kienuef L€
£00¢
"YoLBIN s L E

£00¢
Yol s LE

£00¢
Yol s LE

£00¢
YoIBIN 5L E

L002
YR 5 LE

(6 210N 935)

(8 230N 235)

(L 910N 295)

(9 ®10N 295)

(S 910N 295)

(¥ 310N 935)

AO | 920N wwmv

(81 910N 225)

(£ 30N 235)

(91 30N 235)

(€ 30N 335)

g WodoJur 22uenay | Gz
pajwiIT 39N
Kemaieo aouenay | ¢
pajIWI S3JIAISG
UL dqendy | £¢
pajwn
sauoydala] aouenay | ¢z
payWI Wod13| duenay | Le
PaNWIT 33BALd 2INJMISeLJU]
wwodojur duenay | 0z
Pa}IWIT UORRIIUNWWOD)
1euonen aduenay | 61
pajiwI wodjeqo) aduendy | g1
PaNWIT 2I0ISGIMN ddUensy | /L
paywi sanadoid uoidwe) | 9|
pajwi a1d
dulpel] 1aN Aemayen | G|
pajiur] suonmos
Wwwod0ojur aduenay | 1
pajiu a1eAlld
|ebuag 3saM UsziaN | €1
pajiu a1eAlld
BIYSBIRYR|A USZNAN | 2L
pajWwI] a3eAld E%IM_;.“
MEEM foN | T
/
=42 n
uepsel S L

Nt

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY

OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT



878

imited

Reliance Communications L

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

3)qeonddy PETOL G L'SY) "Ag WWOd0JU] 82uelay Aq play dn- 900¢ £00¢ (oz > paywir ‘Aid (enensny)
N N 10N (S18'cy anv) %00 L pred ANnJ yoea | any Jo aseys | | ISNONY (62| 'UDIBIA s LE |OL SPION 33S)| SUOREDIUNWILIO) dUBNSY | £
aigeonddy | (Syfel 8L'0Z'SY) ‘A WWOd0Ju] 2duelay Aq play dn- 9002 £002 L PajWIT (DUONHUOH)
N N 0N (S28'9% asn) %001 pred AInJ yoea | @yH Jo aseys | ‘Kienuef || 'YdJeIN 15 LE |OL SIION 99G)| SUOREIIUNUILIOD ddUeNdy | ZE
syyeq syyen
yZyelsy LgeelLsy
0Sv'ov'L SLS'SY'L 'AG Wwodoju] aduenay Ag play dn- 9002 £00¢ payw Mn
N N dg9 dg9 %00 L pred AInJ yoea | 4go Jo saseys 000" L ‘Kienuef || "YdJeIA 55 LE |(OL ION 93G)| SUOREIIUNUILIOD dduenay | LE
(swe (swe
SE0sY) zeesy)
(oL8 (EL¥'L "DUJ SUOREIUNWILIOY dduenay Aq piay dn- 900¢ £00¢
N N asn) asn) %001 | pred AN yoea 0oL SN Jo saseys 0O L Kienuef || "YdJeIN 55 LE |(Z L 910N 335) oup AemiaN aduenay | O€
syyeq
9295y
YE6'9L'L | SWeT Le'2y'sd "DUJ SUOREDIUNWWIOY ddueNay Aq pjay dn- 9002 £00¢ "duf epeue)
N N asn £0L'66 ASN %001 | pred AInj yoea 0O L SN Jo sareys 0O L Kienuef || "Y2JeIN 55 LE |(2 L 9ION 93G)| SUOREIIUNUILIOD ddUeNdy | 62
syyeq syren
¢y lLesy 995085y
SES'06'Y 162'69'81 U] SUOREDIUNWWIOY ddueNay Aq pjay dn- 9002 £00¢ "du jeuoneulau]
N N asn asn %001 | pred AN yoea 0O L SN Jo saseys O L Kienuef || "YoJeIN 15 LE |(2 L 9ION 93G)| SUOREIIUNUILIOD aduendy | 82
(swe syreq
£2°€6'5Y) £59¢9'sd
(cLgal'e Sv9'Le'eL "2U[ WWod0Ju] duenay Aq pay 9002 £00¢ UL
IN IN asn) asn %00 L dn-pred ApnjJ yoea SN Jo saseys 0O L | Auenuef | | 'YUBIA LE |(L L 9ION 99S)| SUONEIIUNWWIO) 0UeNdy | /g
(swe (swe
86'%2'SY) £9'€85'Y)
(196'LS (LyL'yS'EL "Ag Wuwodojur sduenay Aq pay 9002 £00¢
IN IN asn) asn) %001 | dn-pied AnJ yoes gsn Jo saieys 000" L | Aenuef x| "YaIBN s LE [(OL 10N 995) UL Wodojur dueN3y | 92
Jeipisqns Alelpisqns
s, Auedwo) s,Aueduwo)
buIp1oH buipjoH ‘sajuedwo)
3y} awedaq 3} awedaq salelpisqng
Aayy aduis /002 | Asyy aduls /002 | ayy Jo ieak
saiuedwod yosey | saiuedwod Yoleyl | 1e1oueut) ayy saiuedwo) Aleipisqng ayy uo papua
Aielpisqns wLE€|  Aepisgns 1€ | Jopusayyie Jo 1eakepueut) ayy Jo pua sajuedwo) | saluedwo)
ayy Jo sieak papua | ap Jo sieak papua Auedwo) 33 3B SaLeIPISgNS a3 Ul Aeipisqng | Ateipisgng
1eloueUl4 1eak 1e1duURUl 1eak | dupioy Jo S93aUIWIOU S YHM pajiull awedaq| oyl Jo Jeap
snoinaid Jerdueul) snoinaid 1erpueul) Jsa1au] SUONPIILUNWIWIOY) adUeNay Aauy yaiym 1elueuUl4 $310N Jo ON
a3 104 a3 104 a3 Jo4 a3 Jo4 Jouaixg Aq play saieys Jo Jaquinp wolj ajeq ayl ESVEIEIEN] SieINdNnJed S

's;Unodoe s ,Auedwo)
dUIPIOH ay3 Ul yum ead

syunodoe s Auedwo)
BUIPIOH BU3 Ul YIM Yjeap 10N

Auedwod duipjoy ay3 Jo siaquiaw ayy
SUJS2U0D VI Se 1) 05 (5507) / Wjoid saiueduio)
Aleipisgns ayy Jo Junowe a1epaIdde 19U ay |

sajuedwo) Aieipisqng ayy ui 3saiajul s,Auedwo) 03 Sunejal ‘gge | 30y satuedwo) ayy Jo g |2 UoI3d3S 03 Juensin

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY

OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT

TRUE CORY




879

Reliance Communications L
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

imited

/002 "Mdy w0¢€ epiNYs seH  1adeuely ¥ A1eyaidas Auedwo)

alinoys yedaaq

lemie] °‘d 'S S10129l1(Q
uelpueyoewey _‘
luequy ‘Q vy uewIRY)
pleog 9ayy Jo Jieyag uo pue 104
LY ZLSYd=dAW L L¥'82's4=09S1L G8'0E5Y=0ZNL €£6'vEsd=AdNYL ¥8'¥8'sd=dd91L 79°£G54=04N3 L OlLey'sd=asnt £00Z 'WdIBW ;sLE Jo se ajey abueydxy
900¢ J9qUIAAON v/ | Uo pajesodiodur uaaq sey Auedwo) ay]  €g
900 ISNdNY pug g Uo pajelodiodul usaq sey Auedwo) ayl ¢z
9002 I1SNdNY / | uo pajelodiodul usaq sey Auedwo) ayl |z
9002 3SNdNY w62 Uo pajelodiodul usaq sey Auedwo) ayl 0z
900¢ A1eniga4 £z uo pajesodiodul usaq sey Auedwo) ayl 61
PajWIT 91RAL USapeld BAUPR|N USZNSN pue pajilil a1eAld enyseleyeln uaznan Aq pjay Alenba dn pied Ajnj yoes o |'sy Jo ateys Anba (%08) 000'8 81
pa)IWI 21BALd 1ebUSg 1S3\ USZNAN PUB pajiull] a1eAld Usapeld eAUpe|y uaznaN Aq p1ay Alenba dn pied Ajn) yosea g |'sy Jo ateys Ainba (908) 000'8 £ 1
P 31BALI] 1BAUSG ISSM USZNSN PUP Palilll] 1AL BNyseieye|y uaznaN Aq play Alenbs dn pied AynJ yoes Q| 'sy Jo aseys Aunba (9%08) 000'8 91
'SOLBIPISQNS S3I 1B SUIPMOUI SIUSWSILIS eIDURUL Paiepnosuod st payiwi] dnois) wodaid) Sey4 ayy Jo jepueul{ ayl G|
/002 Y2Je|A IS L€ 03 900Z Alenue[3s| Wwol) syjyuow G| JoJ si Aleipisgns ayy Jo Jeak jerpueut) ayl 4|
‘pajwI 39N Aemalen aouenay Jo sauelpisqns %001 €1
'OU] SUOIRPDIUNWILIOD) 92UeNaY JO SaueIpIsqns 9001 2L
"2U Wod0Ju] 2duenay Jo A1eipisqns 9001 L1
‘A'g WOD0Ju 3dUeN3y Jo Salelpisans %001 Ol
Auedwo) ayy Jo Aleipisans 900 | S YaIym panwir 39N Aemaien aouenay Aq piay dn-pied Annj yoes Q| 0.3 Jo saseys Aunba (%06) 800'0L 6
‘Auedwo) ayy Jo AseIpisqns 9500 L S YdIym pajiul wodaa) aduenay Aq pjay dn-pied Ajnj yoea g |'sy Jo saseys Aunba (9%0%) 000'00'0y 8
paYWIT WodaJ3] dduenay Jo Aleipisqns %001 £
Auedwo) a3 Jo AIBIPISGNS 900 | S| YaIym paHWIT 83eALd 21MONASBIU] WWOdoJu] aduenay Aq piay dn-pied Annj yoea 0 |'sy Jo saieys Aunba (9%02°12) 090'S2'2y 9
Auedwo) ay Jo sauelpisgns ale yaiym Ajgandadsal payiur] jelelns uaznaN 'payiwi] uelaseley uaznaN 'pallwl] (eIpU]) sSWalsAs Aemales) 'pajiwii] suonnos
WWod0Ju] 82ueNay ‘PN s2103sqap aduenay Aq piay dn-pied Ajinj yoea g | 'sy Jo anjea ade} ayy Jo saieys Aunb3 (%2) 000' L (%) 000'L (%9 1) 000'S '(%02) 000'01 (%02) 000'0L S
Auedwo) auy Jo sauelpisqns aie yoiym Ajaandadsal payiwi Jeselng usznan 'payuwli] ueyiseley UsznaN 'payiur] (IPUL) SWa1sAS Aemales) 'pajilll SUoRNI0S WWOoJ0Juf
20UeN3Y 'PaNWI 103G d2UeNaY Ag p1ay dn-pred Annj yoea g | *sy Jo anjea ae} au Jo saseys AINb3 (%02°€ 1) 009'9 '(%08°E L) 006'9 '(%09'S L) 008'Z '(%09'81) 00E'6 '(%OY'61) 00L'6 ¥
Pa)WI SIUSWISSAUIOJU] 9DUBNSY JO AIBIpISQNS 95001 €
payiw m\_juu_‘ﬁmm\_u_E suonRedIuNWWOo)) adueloy LO \A‘_m__u_mn_jm %001 Z
PajWIT 2JN30N3SeLJu] SUORBIIUNWWOYD) 3dURNaY JO AlBIpISqNS %66 L
'S9I0N
'$s0) Juasaldal 1a3el1q Ul saIndli4
(swie
S/4'€90€'sy)
a1qeonddy (LLY'80'LL P¥1 189N Aemaren aduenay Aq pjay dn-pied 9002 L00z| (SL®vl pawI
IN IN 10N asn) %001 | AnnJ yoea | asn Jo saseys Anb3 000'z L | Atenuel L | "YIIBN s LE | 'E L SAON 995) dnoig wodsieL 9y 14 | LE
a1qeonddy /A WwodoJup aouenay Aq piay 9002 L002 (cz® QHg 'Nas
IN IN 10N IN %00 L dn-pied Annd yoes | Wy Jo saieys g |19QUISNON w/ L | "YDJBIN s LE |OL SPION 335) eiskele WOJY | 9€
aigeonddy 'Ag Wwodojuy aouenay Ag play 9002 £00¢ (zz®| poww a1d (lodeduiqr— |
N IN 10N IN %001 dn-pied AN yoea | oS Jo ateys | | “ISNBNY puZZ | 'YDIBIN s LE [OL SAION 33G)| SUOReduNUILIOo) \:..&:Luﬁ
(swieq &/
82'L'sd) =
a1qeonddy (6SL'y '’Ag Wwodojur aduenay Aq piay 9002 L002 (Lz 9| pawn ad (P
N IN 10N azN) %001 dn-pred AnJ yoea | gzN Jo aseys | | "IsndNY /L | 'YdIBNLE QL SIION 33S)| suopedunuiw

TRUE CORY

9

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY

OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT

75



Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

880

Auditors' Report on Consolidated Financial Statements

To

The Board of Directors,

Reliance Communications Limited

(formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

We have audited the attached consolidated balance sheet of
Reliance Communications Limited (formerly known as Reliance
Communication Ventures Limited) (‘the Company') and its
subsidiaries and associates (collectively called 'the Group') as at
315t March 2007, the consolidated profit and loss account and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the fifteen month
period ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in India. Those Standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our

opinion.

1 We have audited the financial statements of the parent
company, Reliance Communications Limited, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 27,746.17
crore as at 31t March, 2007, total revenue of
Rs. 10,164.24 crore and cash inflows amounting to
Rs. 48.86 crore for the fifteen months period ending 31
March 2007. Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the
amounts included in respect thereof, is based on our Report.

2 We did not audit the financial statements and other financial

information of certain subsidiaries. The financial statements

of these subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March, 2007

have been audited by other auditors whose reports have

been furnished to us, and the financial statements of these

subsidiaries for the three month period ended 31t March

2006 have been certified by other auditors and our opinion,

in so far as it relates to the amounts included in respect of

subsidiaries, is based solely on these reports and certificates.

The attached consolidated financial statements include

assets of Rs. 8,001.34 crore as at 315 March, 2007,

revenues of Rs. 3,068.08 crore and cash outflows amounting

__to Rs. 288.23 crore in respect of the aforementioned
E}m@iﬂj;aries for the fifteen month period then ended.

N ial statements of certain subsidiaries for the year

March, 2007 have been audited by one of the

ors, Chaturvedi & Shah, Chartered Accountants

inancial statements of these subsidiaries for the

three month period ended 315t March, 2006 have been
certified by them. The attached consolidated financial
statements include assets of Rs. 20,465.61 crore as at
31t March, 2007, revenues of Rs. 4,187.19 crore and
cash inflows amounting to Rs. 4,711.65 crore in respect
of the aforementioned subsidiaries for the fifteen month
period then ended.

We have relied on the unaudited financial statements of
the subsidiaries whose financial statements reflect total
assets of Rs. 312.32 crore as at 31t March, 2007, total
revenue of Rs. 20.75 crore and cash inflows amounting to
Rs. 180.99 crore for the fifteen month period ending 31
March 2007. These unaudited financial statements as
approved by the respective Board of Directors of these
companies have been furnished to us by the management,
and our report in so far as it relates to the amounts included
in respect of the subsidiaries is based solely on such approved
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
by the Company's management in accordance with the
requirements of Accounting Standard 21 - Consolidated
Financial Statements and Accounting Standard 23 -
Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated
Financial Statements, issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

As more fully explained in Note 5 of Schedule Q to the
consolidated financial statements, the Company has
computed goodwill on consolidation by comparing the cost
of investments with the equity of subsidiaries as on date
on which investments were made by Reliance Industries
Limited (' the transferor company') prior to demerger instead
of considering the date of demerger as the date of
investment.

As more fully explained in Note 15 of Schedule Q to the
consolidated financial statements, in case of certain
subsidiaries, the management has in the financial statements
accounted for the loss on provision of handsets, including
subsidies/commission given to distributors and dealers,
amounting to Rs. 159.50 crore as part of Sales & Distribution
Expenses on the basis that these costs are incurred in order
to attract and enroll new subscribers as a part of an
introductory package at a discount to the acquisition price
of the handsets and that buying and selling of such handsets
is in substance a marketing activity rather than a trading
operation. The same treatment has been adopted in those
consolidated accounts.

In respect of the above matter however, there may be
another view whereby, in accordance with AS - 9 'Revenue
recognition’, sale of handsets should be reported as a part
of turnover and purchases of the Group since one of the
group companies is buying and selling the handsets which
is an essential part of the activities of the Group. Had the
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Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

invoiced value of sale of handsets at discounted prices to
dealers by the Company for onward sales to customers
been accounted for as income from sale of goods, 'Sale of
goods and services' in the consolidated profit and loss account

Auditors' Report on Consolidated Financial Statements (Contd...)

read with matters stated in paragraphs 6 and 7 above, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

would have been higher by Rs. 2,540.83 crore (being sale 0)
of handsets) and 'Cost of goods sold' would have been
higher by Rs. 2,700.33 crore (being purchases). However,
there would be no impact on the profit for the year and
the reserves as at the balance sheet date.

in the case of the consolidated balance sheet, of the
state of affairs of the Group as at 31t March, 2007;

(i) in the case of the consolidated profit and loss account,
of the profit of the Group for the fifteen months period

ended on that date; and
In order to resolve the issue the guidance is being sought

by the Company from the Expert Advisory Committee of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') on
the appropriateness of its current accounting policy. Pending
receipt of expert opinion from the ICAI in these consolidated
financial statements, handset subsidies have been recognized
on a net basis as marketing costs instead of sales and
purchases on a gross basis.

(i) in the case of the consolidated cash flow statement,
of the cash flows of the Group for the fifteen month
period ended on that date.

For Chaturvedi & Shah For BSR & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Rajesh D. Chaturvedi Natrajan Ramkrishna
8 Based on our audit as aforesaid, and on consideration of Fartner Fartner
reports and certificates of other auditors and accounts ~ Membership No: 45882 Membership No: 32815
approved by the Board of Directors as explained in
paragraphs 2, 3 and 4 above, and to the best of our Mumbai
information and according to the explanations given to us, 30 April 2007
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31t March, 2007

(Rs. in crore)

Schedule As at 31st
March, 2007
SOURCES OF FUNDS
Shareholders' Funds
Share Capital A 1,022.31
Reserves and Surplus B 21,908.34 22,930.65
Minority Interest 5.61
Loan Funds
Secured Loans C 5113.57
Unsecured Loans D 12,324.76 17,438.33
Deferred Tax Liability 2.60
TOTAL 40,377.19
APPLICATION OF FUNDS S
Fixed Assets E
Gross Block 3494416
Less: Depreciation 5,592.60
Net Block 29,351.56
Capital Work-in-Progress 3,690.68 33,042.24
Goodwill 2,658.75
(Refer Note 5, Schedule Q)
Investments F 7.711.40
Current Assets, Loans and Advances
Current Assets G
Inventories 482.12
Sundry Debtors 1.831.61
Cash and Bank Balances 7,200.64
Other Current Assets 1,388.36
10,902.73
Loans and Advances H 2,210.31
13,113.04
Less: Current Liabilities and Provisions I
Current Liabilities 11.433.36
Provisions 4,714.88
16,148.24
Net Current Assets (3.035.20)
TOTAL 40,377.19
Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
rvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani
Chartered Accountants
Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran
Partner Directors S. P. Talwar
Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie
Company Secretary & Manaqer Hasit Shukla
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account for the period ended 31t March, 2007

(Rs. in crore)

Schedule For fifteen
months ended
31st March, 2007

INCOME
Services Revenue and Other Operating Income J 17,190.37
Other Income K 249.88
17.440.25
EXPENDITURE

Access Charges, License Fees and Network Expenses L 6.807.73

Payment to and Provisions for Employees M 1,128.80

Sales and General Administration Expenses N 2,810.91 10.747.44
Profit before Financial Charges, Depreciation, Amortisation, -
Exceptional Items and Adjustments. 6,692.81

Financial Charges (Net) (o] 64.68
Profit before Depreciation, Amortisation, Exceptional
Items and Adjustments. 6,628.13

Depreciation and Amortisation 3,969.08

Amount of depreciation adjusted aqainst Provision for Business

Restructuring (Refer Note 4 (e) (iv), Schedule Q) (660.52)

Transfer from General Reserve (Refer Note 13, Schedule Q) (389.28) 2,919.28
Profit before Adjustments pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation / -
Arrangement, Tax, Exceptional Items 3,708.85
Exceptional Items (Refer Note 10, Schedule Q) 109.32
Adjustments Pursuant to the Scheme of Amalgamation / Arrangement
inter alia for Merger of Reliance Infocomm Limited into the Company

Investment in Reliance Infocomm Limited written off 9,239.77

Equivalent amount withdrawn from Reserve arising (not created) on vesting

inter alia of the said investments on demerger from Reliance Industries Limited. (9,239.77)

(Refer Note 4 (e) (ii), Schedule Q) -
Profit Before Tax 3,599.53

Provision for - Current Tax 52.91

- Fringe Benefit Tax 19.16
- Deferred Tax 1.03
73.10
Profit After tax (before adjustment of Minority Interest / Associate) 3.526.43

Add: Share of Loss transferred to Minority 4.92

Less: Share of Loss of Associates 0.53
Profit after Tax (after adjustment of Minority Interest / Associate) 3.530.82

Add:Balance brought forward from previous period as per Unconsolidated

Profit and Loss Account 5.65

Less:Transferred to General Reserve (Net) 186.73

(Refer Note 4(e) (iv), Schedule Q) (181.08)
Amount Available for Appropriations 3,349.74
APPROPRIATIONS

Transferred to Statutory Reserve Fund 100.16

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 102.23

Tax on Proposed Dividend 17.37 219.76

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 3,129.98

Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share of face value of
Rs. 5 each (in Rupees) (Refer Note 19, Schedule Q)

- Basic 17.56
- Diluted 16.71
Significant Accounting Policies P
Notes on Accounts Q
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
turvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani
ccountants Chartered Accountants
D %Ehaturvedi Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran

Partner Directors S. P. Talwar

L]
e‘rshE No. 45882 Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie

07 Company Secretary & Mana?gr Hasit Shukla
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

SCHEDULE A
SHARE CAPITAL
Authorised :
300,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs 5 each 1,500.00
1,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
204,46,14,990 Equity Shares of Rs.5 each fully paid up 1,022.31
1,022.31

Notes:

1) Out of the above 130,81,10,172 equity shares are held by the holding Company, AAA Communication Private Limited and
1.15,29,001 equity shares are held by the ultimate holding Company, Reliance Innoventures Private Limited.

2) Equity shares allotted as fully paid up without payments being received in cash.
Number of Shares
a) Pursuant to Demerger of Telecom Undertaking of Reliance Industries Limited into the Company 122,31,30,422
b) Pursuant to Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement ( Refer Note 4(e) (iii) of Schedule Q) 82.,14,84,568

204,46,14,990
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31+t March, 2007

SCHEDULE B
RESERVES AND SURPLUS
Statutory Reserve Fund *

As per Unconsolidated Balance Sheet of subsidiary of the Company as at 1st January 2006. 0.27

Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 100.16 100.43
Capital Reserve 0.06
(Refer Note Below)
Exchange Fluctuation Reserve (57.64)
Securities Premium

On Account of Scheme of Amalgamation & Arrangement 9,030.63

(Refer Note 4 (e) (iv), Schedule Q)

Less: Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds issue Expenses 35.66

Less: Premium Payable on redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

(Refer Note 7 (i) & (i), Schedule Q) 109.90 8,885.07
General Reserve - 1

As per Unconsolidated Balance Sheet as at 1st January 2006 14.777.77

Less: Transfer to Profit and Loss account

(Refer Note 4(e) (ii), Schedule Q) 9,239.77 5,538.00
General Reserve- II

On Account of Scheme of Amalgamation & Arrangement 2,625.89

(Refer Note 4 (e) (iv ), Schedule Q)

Add: Transferred from Profit and Loss Account 186.73

(Refer Note 4(e) (iv) , Schedule Q) T 2.812.62

Less: Transferred to Profit & Loss Account ( Refer Note 13, Schedule Q ) 389.28

Less: Provision for Leave Encashment & Gratuity

(As per Accounting Standard - AS 15 ( Revised ) - Employee Benefits ) 27.41 2,395.93
General Reserve- III

As per Unconsolidated Balance Sheet of subsidiaries of the Company. 1,918.54

Less: Provision for Leave Encashment & Gratuity

(As per Accounting Standard - AS 15 ( Revised ) - Employee Benefits ) 2.03 1,916.51
Profit and Loss Account 3.129.98

21,908.34

*Created pursuant to Reserve Bank of India (Amendment) Act 1997 in respect of Reliance Infoinvestments Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company.

Note:

In terms of the scheme of arrangement under section 3971 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme ") between Reliance

ing, @nd Telecommunications Undertaking to four separate transferee Companies.

u
Ca Res § includes Rs.0.05 crore being Equity Share Capital (1,00,000 Shares of Rs.5 each) of the Company before the
sl o merger as aforesaid, which have been cancelled and transferred to Capital Reserve account.
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE C
SECURED LOANS
Term Loans from Financial Institutions

Foreign Currency Loans
(Refer Note 9, Schedule Q )

Term Loans from Banks
Rupee Loans

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

1,938.07

3.175.50
5,113.57

The Company has Secured Term Loans referred to above, inter alia, by way of first pari passu mortgage / charge / assignment in
favour of the Security Trustee for the benefit of Financial Institutions and Banks, on its investments, immovable, movable and
intangible assets / properties (but excluding goodwill, brand name and certain other excluded assets) including Intellectual Property
Rights, all revenues, accounts receivables both present and future and assignment of rights under specified Project Documents and

the Telecom Licence Agreements.

SCHEDULE D
UNSECURED LOANS
Long Term Loans

Foreign Currency Loans from Banks
(Repayable within one year: Rs. 215.62 crore)

Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds
(Repayable within one year: Rs. Nil)
(Refer Note 7, Schedule Q)

Short Term Loans
From Banks - Foreign Currency Loans

From Others

2,173.50

6.630.40

1,972.41

1,548.45

8.803.90

3,520.86

12,324.76
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Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

SCHEDULE F
INVESTMENTS
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
Trade Investment
In Equity Shares of Companies - Unquoted, Fully Paidup
4,97,25,000 Warf Telecom International Private Ltd - 1 MRf each

Less: Share of loss of Associate

69,524  World Tel Holding Limited, Bermuda of USD 0.05 each

5,94,000 Swan Connet Communications Private Limited
(formerly known as Cheetah Corporate Services Private Limited)
of Rs. 10 each

1,00,000 Standard Composite Insurance Brokers Private Limited of Rs. 10 each

1,07,91,000 Swan Telecom Private Limited of Rs. 10 each
In Preference Shares of Companies - Unquoted, Fully Paidup

560,000 8 % Redeemable Non Cumulative Non Convertible Preference

shares of Swan Connet Communications Private Limited

(formerly known as Cheetah Corporate Services Private Limited)
of Re. 1 each

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

17.40
0.53 16.87

1.93
0.59

0.10
10.79 13.41

56.00

1,00,00,000 9% Redeemable Preference share of Reliance Infostreams Private Limited

of Re 1 each

99,20,000 8% Redeemable Preference shares of Swan Telecom Private Limited
of Re 1 each

2,50,010 1% Redeemable Preference shares of Luxfield Enterprises Limited
of USD 100 each

Other Investment
In Government Securities - Unquoted

6 Year National Savings Certificates
(Deposited with Sales Tax Department)

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Other Investment

rnment and other Securities - Quoted

(S i
~.%0,00,000 11.99% GOI Bonds -2009

5
0,000 8.35 % GOI Bonds - 2022

5.00
992.00

108.68 1.161.68

0.02

10.12 20.88
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

SCHEDULE F (Contd...)

In Bonds and Debentures - Quoted

20,00,000 5.75% Exim 2008 19.08
35,00,000 5.85% HDFC 2009 32.64
10.,00,000  Tier II Bond of ICICI Bank -2011 9.21
45,00,000 8.38% HDFC Bank Bond - 2008 38.99
90,00,000 8.55% Citi Financial Consumer Finance (India) Limited-2009 88.28

2,00,00,000 8.40 % HDFC Bond -2008 195.80 384.00

In Bonds and Debentures - Unquoted

1,40,00,000 8.65% Citi Financial Consumer Finance (India) Limited-2009 136.54
50,00,000 8.25% Citicorp Finance India Limited -2009 49.96
50,00,000 8.50% Citicorp Finance India Limited -2009 49.77
75,00,000 8.10% GE Capital Services -2007 74.53
25,00,000 8.50% GE Countrywide Consumer Financial Services -2008 24.72
50,00,000 11.35% Citicorp Finance India Limited 50.00 385.52

In Certificate of Deposits - Unquoted

50,00,000 ABN Amro Bank 48.21
1,00,00,000  Corporation Bank 98.04
25,00,000 Punjab National Bank 24.41
75,00,000 ING Vysya Bank Limited 73.98
1,25,00,000 State Bank of Hyderabad 122.74
1,30,00,000  State Bank of Bikaner and Jaipur 127.46
50,00,000 State Bank of Patiala 48.55
2,35,00,000 State Bank of India 232.24
1.00,00,000 UCO Bank 98.54

25,00,000 UTI Bank Limited 24.29 898.46

In Pass through Certificates - Unquoted
150 ICICI Bank Limited (PTC-XV) of Rs. 97,92,416 each 96.13
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

SCHEDULE F (Contd...)

In Units of Mutual Funds - Unquoted

68,73,53,884.12  Reliance Liquidity Fund - Growth of Rs. 10 each 771.43
40,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF Series 3 - AP 2 - IP-Dividend of Rs. 10 each 400.00
2,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF - Plan C - Series 2 - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 20.00
25,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF 3 - AP - Series 1 - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 250.00
215,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF Series 3 - AP 3 - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 2,150.00
14,86,072.59  Reliance Liquid Fund - TP - Retail - Growth of Rs. 10 each 2.65
25,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF 2 - AP - Series 6 - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 250.00
5,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF Series 2 - AP 1 - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 50.00
15,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF Series 3 - AP 1 - Growth of Rs. 10 each 150.00
20,00,00,000.00 Reliance FHF Series 4 - AP 1 - Growth of Rs. 10 each 200.00
20,00,00,000.00  Reliance FHF Series 1 - AP 2 - IP - Dividend of Rs. 10 each 200.09

1,00,00,000.00 Standard Chartered Fixed Maturity Plan - YS 1 - Growth of Rs. 10 each ~ 10.00

1,00,00,000.00 Kotak FMP - 16Month - Series 1 - Growth of Rs. 10 each 10.00
3.,00,00,000.00 Kotak FMP - 14Month - Series 2 - Inst.plan- Growth of Rs. 10 each 30.00
8,92,87,316.06 JM High Liquidity - Super I P - Growth of Rs. 10 each 105.39

36,519.57  PRINCIPAL Cash Mgmt Fund LO- Inst Prem. Plan - Growth of Rs. 10 each ~ 0.04
75,52,399.24  Reliance Liquid Fund - TP - IP - Growth of Rs. 10 each 12.31

38,352.00 Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury Plan Institutional Option Growth Option
Plan of Rs. 10 each 0.07

59,527.00 Reliance Floating Rate Fund - Daily Dividend Reinvestment
Plan of Rs. 10 each 0.06

27,493.95 Reliance Liquid Fund Treasury Plan Retail Option -
Growth Option - Growth Plan of Rs. 10 each 0.05

550.67  BGI Euro Liquidity First Fund - Institutional Share Class of
Euro 1 each ( Rs.31,906.98) 0.00

1,934.10 BGI Sterling Liquidity First Fund - Institutional Share Class of GBP 1 each 0.02

1,34,838.73 BGI US Dollar Liquidity First Fund - Institutional Share Class of
UsD 1 each 122.32 4,734.43

7.711.40

ue of Quoted Investments - Rs. 404.73 crore.
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)

As at
313t March, 2007

SCHEDULE G
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Stores and Spares * 156.26

Communication Devices and Accessories 325.86 482.12

Sundry Debtors (Unsecured)
More than Six months

Considered Good 284.20
Considered Doubtful 513.84
798.04
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 513.84
284.20
Others
Considered Good 1.547.41
Considered Doubtful 107.79
1,655.20
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 107.79
1,547.41 1.831.61
Cash and Bank Balances
Cash on hand 0.33
Cheques on hand 66.70
Balance with Banks
In Current Accounts with Scheduled Banks 194.77
In Current Accounts with Other Banks 86.13
Export Earning in Foreign Currency Accounts with Scheduled Banks 15.19
In Fixed Deposits with Banks 6,837.52 7.200.64
Other Current Assets
Interest Accrued on Investments 264.69
Deposits 1.111.15
Others 12.52 1,388.36

10,902.73

crore ( being 1.68% ) is determined based on the First In First Out method of Inventory valuation and the balance is
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet

(Rs. in crore)
As at
315t March, 2007
SCHEDULE H
LOANS AND ADVANCES
(Unsecured and Considered good - Unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

Considered Good 2,208.01
Considered Doubtful 1,388.83
3,596.84
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advance
(Includes Subsidy receivable: Rs. 286.98 crore) 1,388.83 2,208.01
Balance with Customs, Central Excise Authorities, etc 2.30
2.210.31
SCHEDULE I

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
Current Liabilities

Sundry Creditors -Small Scale Industrial Undertakings 12.08

Sundry Creditors - Others* 4,430.25

Liability for Leased Assets 0.49

Interest accrued but not due on Loans 40.92

Other Liabilities 2,838.63

Advance from Customers and Unearned Income

(Includes subsidy deferred: Rs. 201.53 crore) 4,110.99 11,433.36
Provisions

Provision for Income Tax 52.26

Provision for Fringe Benefit Tax 2411

Provision for Wealth Tax 0.92

Provision for Disputed Claims and others 1.837.43

(Refer Note 11 (a), Schedule Q )

Provision for Retirement Benefits 88.02

Provision for Commission to Non-Executive Directors 44.00

Provision for Business Restructuring 2,310.95

(Refer Note 4 (e) (iv) , Schedule Q)

Provision for Assets Retirement Obligations 237.59

(Refer Note 11 ( b ), Schedule Q)

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 102.23

Proposed Dividend 17.37 4,714.88

16,148.24
112,214.55 crore for Capital Expenditure
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Reliance Communications Limited

(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE )
SERVICE REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME
Service Revenue

Less: Service Tax

Other Operating Income - Subsidy

SCHEDULE K
OTHER INCOME
Profit on Sale of Investments

Miscellaneous Income

SCHEDULE L
ACCESS CHARGES, LICENSE FEES AND NETWORK EXPENSES
Access Charges
License Fees
Rent, Rates and Taxes
Network Repairs and Maintenance
Stores and Spares Consumed
Power, Fuel and Utilities

Other Network Operating Expenses

SCHEDULE M

PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES
(Including Managerial Remuneration)*

Salaries
Commission to Non-Executive Directors
Contribution to Provident Fund, Gratuity Fund and Superannuation Fund

ee Welfare and Other Amenities

emuneration - Rs. 45.22 crore.

(Rs. in crore)

For fifteen months ended
31t March, 2007

18.412.81
1,493.83

- 16,918.98

271.39

17,190.37

115.62
134.26
249.88

3,530.50
1.243.81
125.97
397.62
106.89
396.00
1,006.94
 6807.73

928.61
44.00

60.42

95.77
112880
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

(Rs. in crore)

For fifteen months ended
315t March, 2007

SCHEDULE N
SALES AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES
Selling Expenses

Commission 485.64

Selling and Marketing Expenses 45411

Advertisement 383.25

Customer Acquisition and Customer Care 249.46

Cost of Handsets and Accessories 2,700.33

Less: Sales Realisation

(Refer Note 15, Schedule Q) 2,540.83 159.50

1,731.96

Provision for Doubtful Debts, Loans & Advances 112.46
General Administration Expenses

Insurance 26.40

Rent, Rates and Taxes 147.45

Repairs and Maintenance

-Machinery 0.63

- Building 16.43

- Others 39.20

Travelling Expenses 118.40

Professional Fees 185.18

Loss on Sale of Assets 5.46

Other General and Administrative Expenses 417.56

Wealth Tax 0.44 957.15
Payment to Auditors 9.34

2,810.91

SCHEDULE O
FINANCIAL CHARGES (NET)

Interest and Other Charges on Term Loans 547.71

Interest on Other Loans 239.22 786.93

Other Financial Cost 77.55

Income from Investments and Interest Income (715.76)

(Tax deducted at source Rs.8.87 crore)

ign Currency Exchange Fluctuation loss / (gain) - Net (84.04)
ey

64.68
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account

SCHEDULE P
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to Reliance Communications Limited (‘the Company') and all of it's subsidiary
companies and companies controlled, that is, companies over which the Company exercises control over ownership and voting
power, associates (herein after collectively referrred to as "Group"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the following bases:

a

The financial statements of the Company, its Subsidiaries are combined on a line-by-line basis by adding together the
book values of like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after fully eliminating intra-group balances and intra-
group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or losses in accordance with the Accounting Standard-21 "Consolidated
Financial Statements" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

In case of foreign subsidiaries and companies controlled by the Company, revenue items are consolidated at the average
exchange rate prevailing during the period. All monetary assets and liabilities are converted at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the year and non-monetary assets and liabilities at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction/closing rate. Any exchange difference arising on consolidation of integral foreign operation is recognised in the
profit and loss account and non-integral foreign operation is recognised as Exchange Fluctuation Reserve.

Investments in Subsidiaries are eliminated and differences between the costs of investment over the net assets on the date
of investment, or on the date of the financial statements immediately preceding the date of investment, in Subsidiaries
are recognised as goodwill or capital reserve, as the case may be.

The difference between the proceeds from disposal of investment in a subsidiary or in a company, controlled by the
Company, and the proportionate carrying amount of its assets less liabilities as of the date of disposal is recognised in the
consolidated Profit and Loss Account as the profit or loss on disposal of investment in Subsidiaries.

Minority Interest's share of net profit or loss of consolidated Subsidiaries for the period is identified and adjusted against the
income of the Group in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the Company.

Minority Interest's share of net assets of consolidated Subsidiaries is identified and presented in the consolidated balance
sheet as a separate item from liabilities and the shareholders' equity.

In case of Associates, where the Company directly or indirectly through Subsidiaries holds 20% or more of equity,
investments in associates are accounted for using equity method in accordance with Accounting Standard - 23 "Account-
ing for investments in associates in consolidated financial statements" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. The Company accounts for its share in the change in the net assets of the associates, post acquisition, after
eliminating unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and its associates to the extent
of its share, through its Profit and Loss account to the extent such change is attributable to the Associates' Profit and Loss
Account, based on available information.The difference between the cost of investment in the associates and the share of
net assets at the time of acquisition of shares in the associates is identified in the financial statements as Goodwill or
Capital Reserve as the case may be.

As far as possible, the consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented in the same manner as the Company's stand alone financial
statements.

Investments other than in Subsidiaries and Associates are accounted as per Accounting Standard 13 - “Accounting for Invest-
ments" issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Significant Accounting Policies

a

Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles in India and the provisions of the Companies Act,1956, except for fixed assets which are revalued.

ration and presentation of consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be made that
the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial
st ents and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Difference between the
@&Q L results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known / materialised.
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Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Schedules forming part of the Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account (Contd...)

[o

Fixed Assets

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Fixed Assets are stated at cost net of modvat / cenvat/ value added tax and include amount added on revaluation
less accumulated depreciation, amortisation and impairment loss, if any.

Net charges of foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to fixed
assets acquired from a country outside India, are capitalised.

Expenses incurred relating to projects prior to commencement of commercial operation are considered as project
development expenditure and shown under Capital Work-in-Progress.

Entry Fees paid for Telecom Licenses and Indefeasible Right of Connectivity are stated at cost for acquiring the same
less accumulated amortisation.

Lease

0]

(if)

(i)

In respect of Operating Leases, rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations in
compliance with the provisions of the Accounting Standard - 19 "Leases" issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, except for rentals pertaining to the period up to the date of commencement of commercial
operations, which are capitalised.

Finance leases prior to 1°t April, 2001: Rentals are expensed with reference to lease terms and other considerations

Finance Leases on or after 1t April, 2001: The lower of the fair value of the assets and present value of the minimum
lease rentals is capitalised as Fixed Assets with corresponding amount shown as Liabilities for Leased Assets in
compliance with the provisions of the Accounting Standard - 19 "Leases" issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The principal component in the lease rental in respect of the above is adjusted against Liabilities
for Leased Assets and the interest component is recognised as an expense in the year in which the same is incurred
except in case of assets used for capital projects where it is capitalised.

Depreciation / Amortisation
(i)

Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on Straight Line Method at the rates and in the manner prescribed in
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except in case of the following assets which are depreciated as given
below :

Ducts and Cables - 18, 20 years

Telecom Electronic Equipment - 7, 10 years

Furniture, Fixtures and Office Equipment - 5, 10 years

Customer Premises Equipment - 3 years

Vehicles - 5 years

Leasehold improvements - Shorter of the remaining lease term or useful life
Cable systems- the shorter of 15 years or remaining useful life

In case of Falcon project, Sub-marine cable network asset life is estimated at 25 years and the terresterial network
asset is estimated at 15 years

In certain subsidiary, Depreciation on Fixed assets is provided on Written down value method and the depreciation
rates are as given below:

Buildings-10%, Electrical installations-10%, Office Equipment and Furniture & Fixtures -10%, Computers- 60%,
Vehicles - 15%

Depreciation on assets taken on finance lease on or after 1<t April, 2001 is provided over the remaining period of lease
from commencement of commercial operations.

e lease term.

easehold Land is depreciated over the period of the lease term.
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(v) Intangible Assets , namely entry fees for Telecom Licenses and Indefeasible Right of Connectivity are amortised
equally over the balance period of Licenses and Indefeasible Right from the date of commencement of commercial
services or acquisition whichever is later. The rights in Cinematography Films are treated as Intangible Assets and are
amortised over the balance period of rights remaining after commencement of commercial exploitation. The period
of amortisation of the Intangible Assets are as follows:

a) Telecom Licenses - 10, 20 years

o

Indefeasible Right of Connectivity - 15, 20 years

0

)
) Brand License - 10 years
d) Software - 5 years

f  Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO)

Asset Retirement Obligation (ARO) relates to the removal of cable systems and equipment when they will be retired.
Provision is recognised based on manangement's best estimate of the eventual costs (net of recovery) that relate to such
obligation and is adjusted to the cost of such assets.

q Impairment of Assets

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. An impairment loss is
charged to the Profit and Loss Account in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired. The impairment loss
recognised in prior accounting period is increased/ reversed where there is change in the estimate of recoverable value. The
recoverable value is higher of net selling price and value in use.

h  Investments

Current Investments are carried at lower of cost and quoted / fair value. Long Term Investments are stated at cost.
Provision for diminution in the value of long-term investments is made only if such a decline is other than temporary in the
opinion of the management.

i Inventories of Stores, Spares and Communication Devices

Items of inventories of stores, spares and communication devices are accounted for at costs, determined on weighted
average basis, or net realisable value whichever is less except in case of certain subsidiaries, where cost is determined on
First in First out basis.

j  Employee Retirement Benefits
(i) Contribution to Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to Profit & Loss Account as incurred.

(i) Gratuity and Leave Encashment benefits are charged to Profit & Loss Account on the basis of Actuarial valuation as
at Balance Sheet date.

k  Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs, that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the
cost of such assets upto the commencement of commercial operations. A qualifying asset is the one that necessarily takes
substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as expense in the year in
which they are incurred.

The difference between the issue price and maturity value of non-convertible non-interest bearing debentures is amortised
equitably over the tenure of the debentures.

L Issue Expenses & Premium on Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds

The Premium payable on redemption and issue expenses on issue of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds is charged to
Securities Premium Account.

m  Foreign Currency Transactions

'ﬂmi) Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are normally recorded at the exchange rates prevailing at the time of
-~ %, the transaction.

N

onetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of monetary
ems which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and the rate on
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(i) Non-monetary foreign currency items are carried at cost.

(iv) Any income or expense on account of exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is recognised in the
profit and loss account except in cases where they relate to acquisition of fixed assets, in which case they are
adjusted to the carrying cost of such assets.

n Revenue Recognition

(i) Revenue is recognised as and when the services are provided on the basis of actual usage of the Company's network.
Revenue on upfront charges for services with lifetime validity and fixed validity periods of one year or more are
recognised over the estimated useful life of subscribers and specified fixed validity period, as appropriate. The esti-
mated useful life is consistent with estimated churn of the subscribers.

(i) Capacity contracts for Indefeasible Right of Use relate to specific assets and are accounted for as deferred revenue as
leqal title does not pass to the customer. Revenue (exclusive of Value Added Taxes) is recognised over the term of the
contract. Billing to customers are based on satisfaction of the relevant criteria for revenue recognition and are included
in deferred revenue. Certain customers have committed to purchase capacity from the Company at a future date
under signed capacity credit agreements. Amounts received under these agreements and the capacity credits granted
to suppliers are recorded at fair value as deferred revenue until the date the credits are utilised, at which time the
deferred revenue is recognised as earned. Amounts receivable under these capacity agreements are reflected within
sundry debtors in the accompanying balance sheets.

(i) Standby maintenance charges are invoiced separately from capacity sales. Revenues relating to standby mainte-
nance are recognised over the period in which the service is provided. Any amounts billed prior to providing of service
are included in deferred revenue.

(iv) Network revenues are revenues derived from the sale of managed bandwidth leases and Internet Protocol ("IP")
services. Revenue associated with short-term utilisation of capacity to customers is recognised as operating revenue.
Restoration revenues are derived for repairs and restoration of damaged network which are recovered from the
customer on the agreed basis and are reflected in the Profit and Loss Account for the period.

o  Provision for Doubtful Debts and Loans and Advances

Provision is made in the Accounts for doubtful debts and Loans and Advances in cases where the Management considers
the debts, loans and advances, to be doubtful of recovery.

p Miscellaneous Expenditure
Miscellaneous Expenditure is charged to the Profit and Loss Account as and when they are incurred.
q Taxes on Income and Fringe Benefit Tax

Provision for Income Tax is made on the basis of estimated taxable income for the year at current rates. Tax expense
comprises of Current Tax, Fringe Benefit tax and Deferred Tax at the applicable enacted or substantively enacted rates.
Current tax represents the amount of Income Tax payable / recoverable in respect of the taxable income / loss for the
reporting period. Deferred tax represents the effect of timing difference between taxable income and accounting income
for the reporting period that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods. The
deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable certainty that the asset
will be realised in future. However, where there is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation laws,
deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of assets.

r  Government Grants

Subsidies granted by Government for providing telecom services are recognised as Other Operating Income in accordance
with the relevant terms and conditions of the scheme and agreement.

s Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement are recognised when there is a present obligation as
a result of past events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. Contingent Liabilities are not recognised
but are disclosed in the Notes on Accounts. Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial
statements.

t  Earnings Per Share

comprises the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also the weighted
e number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
ive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later date.
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SCHEDULE Q
NOTES ON ACCOUNTS TO CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AND PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1 Prior to the Scheme (as referred in Note 4 below) being effective, the Company held less than fifty percent of the equity
shares of each of its key investee companies viz, Reliance Infocomm Limited (“RIC"), Reliance Communications Infrastructure
Limited ("RCIL") and Reliance Telecom Limited ("RTL") and did not have any subsidiary. Consequently the Company was not
required to prepare the consolidated financial statements for the previous period. Accordingly corresponding previous period
figures are not forming part of these consolidated financial statements.

2 As an integral part of the Scheme as referred in Note 4 below, RIC and its Subsidiaries, RCIL, RTL and FLAG Telecom Group
Limited became subsidiaries of the Company with effect from the appointed date 1st January 2006. RIC merqged with the
Company under the Scheme with effect from 31st March, 2006. However, the accounts of RCIL, RTL and Other Subsidiaries,
Companies controlled, that is, Companies over which the Company exercises control over ownership and voting power (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "Subsidiaries"), are consolidated in these audited financial statements from 1st January, 2006.

3 Consequent to fresh Certificates of Incorporation dated 7th June, 2006 received from the Reqistrar of Companies Maharashtra,
Mumbai, name of the Company has been changed from Reliance Communication Ventures Limited to Reliance Communications
Limited.

4 In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement ("the Scheme") under sections 391 to 394 of the Companies Act,
1956 sanctioned by order dated 21 July, 2006 and dated 10™ August, 2006 (revised) of Hon'ble High Court of Judicature at
Bombay, and the Order dated 18 July, 2006 of the Hon'ble High Court of Gujarat, with effective date 12" September, 2006,

a) Ambani Enterprises Private Limited ("AEPL"), Reliance Business Management Private Limited ("RBMPL"), Formax Commercial
Private Limited("FORMAX"), Reliance Communications Technologies Limited ("RCTL"), Reliance Software Solutions Private
Limited("RSSPL") , Reliance Communications Solutions Private Limited (“RCSPL"), (hereinafter referred as " Transferor
Companies"), whose core activity is holding group company shares, have been amalgamated with the Company from the
appointed date 1° January, 2006, and

b) Panther Consultants Private Limited (herein after referred as "PCPL" or " Transferor Companies"), whose core activity is
holding group company shares, have been amalgamated with the Company from the appointed date 15t March, 2006, and

c) Reliance Infocomm Limited (herein after referred as "RIC" or "Transferor Companies"), whose core acitivity was provision of
Telecommunication services, have been merged with the Company from the appointed date 31t March, 2006 and

d) Network division of Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited ("RCIL") having telecom infrastructure, has been
demerged to the Company from the appointed date 31t March, 2006 . Consequently, with effect from 31t March,
2006, the Indefeasible Use of Connectivity (IRC) agreement between RIC and RCIL has been terminated.

e) In accordance with the said Scheme and as per the Hon'ble High Courts' approvals :

i) The assets, properties, liabilities, rights and obligations of:

- AEPL, RBMPL, FORMAX, RCTL, RSSPL, RCSPL have been vested in the Company with effect from 1 January,
2006,

- PCPL has been vested in the Company with effect from 1 March, 2006,

- RIC has been vested in the Company with effect from 31t March, 2006,

- The Network Division of RCIL has been vested in the Company with effect from 31t March, 2006,

and have been recorded in accordance with the provisions of the Scheme as follows:
i) Al the assets recorded in the books of Transferor Companies and the Network Division of RCIL are recorded by the
Company at their respective fair values and all the liabilities recorded in the books of Transferor companies are
recorded by the Company at their respective book values as appearing in the books of Transferor companies. Rs.9,239.77
crore representing the investments in equity shares of RIC held by the Company. prior to amalgamation is written off
through the Profit and Loss Account of the Company and an equivalent amount has been drawn from General
Reserve arising on and pursuant to Demerger of " Telecommunication Undertaking” of Reliance Industries Limited into
the Company.

The Company has issued and allotted 55,63,29,165 equity shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up to the equity
hareholders of AEPL and 26,51,55,403 equity shares of Rs.5/- each fully paid up to the equity shareholders of
CPL. The same is recorded as Share Capital in the books of the Company. Upon the said allotment, the paid up
& quity Share Capital of the Company has increased to Rs. 1,022.31 crore divided into 204,46,14,990 equity shares
d; of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up.
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iv)

vi)

vii)

The Excess of Fair value of Assets of Rs. 23,207.60 crore over the loan liabilities of Rs. 7,953.61 crore and
consideration paid in the form of allotment of Equity shares of value Rs.410.74 crore being Rs. 14,843.25 crore has
been dealt with as under:

Rs.3,000.00 crore is credited to and held as Provision for Business Restructuring to meet the increased depreciation,
cost, expenses and losses including on account of impairment or write down of assets which may be suffered by the
Company, pursuant to the Scheme or otherwise in course of its business or in carrying out such restructuring of
operations of the Company or its Subsidiaries. During the period ended 315t March, 2007 additional depreciation on fair
valuation of assets of Rs.660.52 crore and expenses relating to the Scheme of Rs.28.53 crore have been adjusted
aqainst the aforesaid provision.

Rs.9,030.63 crore, representing Securities Premium shown in the books of RIC, attributable to RIC shares other than
those being cancelled under the Scheme has been credited to Securities Premium Account.

The balance of excess of Rs. 2,812.62 crore as above is shown under General Reserve - II Account.

Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment, an amount of Rs. 14,843.25 crore would have been credited to
Capital Reserve as required by the Purchase Method prescribed by Accounting Standard 14 on "Accounting for
Amalgamation” issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

During the period an amount of Rs. 326.84 crore, being the Profit for the period from 1< January, 2006 to 31 March,
2006 in Reliance Infocomm Limited, which is a part of the aforesaid excess credited to General Reserve of Rs.2,812.62
crore is shown as part of Profit and Loss account. Accordingly an amount of Rs.186.73 crore (being the aforesaid
Rs.326.84 crore less intercompany adjustments of Rs. 140.11 crore) is tranferred to General Reserve from Profit and
Loss account

The Book value of the Equity Shares and Preference Shares held by RCIL in RIC as on the Appointed date, being 1<
January, 2006 amounting to Rs. 2,960.67 crore was cancelled and debited to the Securities Premium account of
RCIL. Accordingly the balance of Rs. 31.95 crore in the Premium receivable on Preference Shares in the books of
RCIL as on the said date was transferred to Profit and Loss Account.

The Book Value of the Equity shares held by RCIL in RCTL, RCSPL, RSSPL, as on the Appointed date, being 1+
January 2006 amounting to Rs. 0.15 crore was debited to the Profit and Loss account of RCIL.

The debit balance in the Profit and Loss account of RCIL as on 31t March, 2006 amounting to Rs. 1,521.33 crore
was adjusted aqainst the balance in Securities Premium Account.

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement under section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Scheme") between

Reliance Industries Limited (‘RIL), the Company and other three transferee Companies, RIL has re-organized and segreqated by
way of a demerger, its business and undertaking engaged in Coal based Enerqy Undertaking, Gas based Enerqy Undertaking,
Financial services Undertaking and Telecommunication Undertaking to four separate transferee companies. All the assets and
liabilities are transferred pursuant to approval by order of the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai dated 9th December, 2005 and
same has been filed with Registrar of Companies on 21t December, 2005 and the appointed date as per the Scheme is 15
September, 2005.

As per the said Scheme:

a. Al the properties, investments, assets and liabilities relatable to Telecommunication Undertaking' of RIL are transferred and
vested in the Company on a going concern basis.

b. In consideration of the demerger, the Company issued and allotted 1,22,31,30,422 Equity Shares amounting to Rs.611.57
crore to the shareholders of RIL (except the specified shareholders) in the ratio of one equity share of face value of Rs.5
each fully paid up in the Company for every one equity share of Rs.10/- each fully paid up held by the shareholders of

RIL

c) Excess of net assets so recorded, over the amount of share capital to be issued amounting to Rs.14,777.77 crore is
recognised in these financial statements, and as stipulated in the Scheme, is disclosed as a reserve with the nomenclature
‘General Reserve - 1

Pursuant to the demerger as explained above, investment of Rs 2,331 crore in Reliance Communications Infrastucture

imited ('RCIL) and Rs 57 crore in Reliance Telecom Limited ('‘RTL) vested with the Company.

Company has computed goodwill arising on consolidation using step-up method based on date of original investment
L prior to demerqer instead of considering the date of demerqer as the date of investment in absence of specific
ines in AS-21 in a demerger scenario.

ompany has accordingly accounted for Goodwill arising on consolidation at Rs.2,658.75 crore which is determined on
January, 2006 after adjusting Rs.1,171.56 crore of Capital Reserve arising out of consolidation.
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6  Consolidation
(a) The following companies which have become subsidiaries as per the scheme, are consolidated in the Consolidated Financial

Statements.
Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Country of Proportion of
No. Incorporation ownership interest
1 Gateway Systems (India) Limited ‘A India 100%
2 Reliance Communications Investment & Leasing Limited India 100%
3 Reliance Infoinvestments Limited ‘B' India 100%
4 Netizen Rajasthan Limited India 100%
5 Reliance Infocomm Solutions Limited India 100%
§ Netizen Gujarat Limited India 100%
7 Reliance Webstore Limited India 100%
8 Reliance Gateway Net Limited ' India 100%
9 Reliance National Communications Limited India 60%
10  Reliance Globalcom Limited India 80.60%
11 Reliance Infocom BV "D’ Netherlands 100%
12  Reliance Infocom Inc. USA 100%
13 Reliance Communications Inc. USA 100%
14  Reliance Communications International Inc. USA 100%
15 Reliance Communications Canada Inc. Canada 100%
16  Reliance Netway Inc. USA 100%
17  Reliance Communications UK Limited United Kingdom 100%
18  Reliance Communications (Hongkong) Limited Hongkong 100%
19  FLAG Telecom Group Limited 'E' Bermuda 100%
20  FLAG Telecom Belgium Network SA Belgium 100%
21 FLAG Pacific Holdings Limited Bermuda 100%
22  FLAG Telecom Development Limited Bermuda 100%
23 FLAG Telecom Group Services Limited Bermuda 100%
24 FLAG Pacific Limited Bermuda 100%
25 FLAGWEB Limited Bermuda 100%
26  FLAG Telecom USA Limited USA 100%
27  FLAG Telecom Network USA Limited USA 100%
28  FLAG Telecom Development Services Company LLC Eqypt 100%
29  FLAG Atlantic France SAS France 100%
30  FLAG Telecom France Services Eurl France 100%
31  FLAG Telecom France Network SAS France 100%
32  FLAG Telecom Deutschland GmbH Germany 100%
33  FLAG Telecom Hellas AE Greece 100%
34 FLAG Telecom Asia Limited (rep office in China) Hong Kong 100%
FLAG Access India Private Limited India 100%
"BLAG Telecom Ireland Network Limited Ireland 100%
*AG Telecom Network Services Limited Ireland 100%
Telecom Ireland Limited Ireland 100%
G Telecom Servizi Italia SpA Italy 100%
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Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Country of Proportion of
No. Incorporation ownership interest
40  FLAG Telecom Japan Limited Japan 100%
41  FLAG Telecom Korea Limited Korea 100%
42  FLAG Telecom Singapore Pte. Limited Singapore 100%
43 FLAG Telecom Espana SA Spain 100%
44 FLAG Telecom Espana Network SAU Spain 100%
45  FLAG Telecom Taiwan Services Limited Taiwan 100%
46  FLAG Telecom Taiwan Limited Taiwan 60%
47  FLAG Telecom Nederland BV Netherlands 100%
48  FLAG Telecom Nederland Network BV Netherlands 100%
49  FLAG Atlantic UK Limited United Kingdom 100%
50 FLAG Telecom Limited United Kingdom 100%
51  Reliable Internet Services Limited India 100%
52 Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited India 100%
53  Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited "F" India 100%
54  Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited $ India 99%
55  Reliance Mobile Limited India 100%
56  Matrix Innovations Limited India 100%
57  Synerqy Entrepreneur Solutions Private Limited India 100%
58  Reliance Telecom Limited ‘G India 100%
59  Reliance Telephones Limited India 100%
60  Campion Properties Limited India 99.97%

(b) The Company also consolidates the following companies as it exercises control over ownership and voting power / Composition
of Board of Directors

Sl Name of the company Country of Proportion of
No. Incorporation ownership interest
1 Seoul Telnet Inc. Korea 49%
2 FLAG Holdings (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan 50%
3 Netizen Maharashtra Private Limited India 100%
4 Netizen Madhya Pradesh Private Limited India 100%
5 Netizen West Bengal Private Limited India 100%
(c) The associate companies considered in the consolidated financial statements are:
Sl Name of the company Country of Proportion of
No. Incorporation ownership interest
1 Warf Telecom International Private Limited Maldives 20%
(d) The following subsidiaries were incorporated during the period:
Sl Name of the company Country of Proportion of
No. Incorporation ownership interest
Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited Singapore 100%
iance Communications (Singapore) Pte. Limited Singapore 100%
iance Communications (New Zealand) Pte Limited New Zealand 100%
3 nce Communications (Australia) Pty Limited Australia 100%
M Malaysia SDN.BHD. Malaysia 100%
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(e) The following subsidiaries /companies controlled were disposed off during the period $$

Sl
No.

1

~N o o W

9

10
11
12
13
14
15

Name of the company Country of Proportion of
Incorporation ownership interest
Reliance Communication Haryana Private Limited India 100%
Parikrama Commercial Private Limited India 100%
Karma Commercial Private Limited India 100%
Gurukul Commercial Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication Maharashtra Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication Himachal Pradesh Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication West Bengal Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication Delhi Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication Tamil Nadu Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Communication Jammu and Kashmir Private Limited India 100%
Reliance Infosoft Private Limited India 100%
NIS Sparta Limited India 91.75%
Reliance Digital World Limited India 100%
Paradox Studios Limited India 100%

Assam Network Private Limited and Rajasthan Network Private Limited acquired during the period, since merged with Synergy
Entrepereneur Solutions Private Limited, subsidiary of the Company with effect from appointed date 1< April, 2005

With effect from 30™ March, 2007, Reliance Next Generation Technology Limited was merged with Reliance Telecom
Infrastructure Limited

- Holding Company of company listed in serial number 2 of 6 (a) above

- H
- H

olding Company of company listed in serial number 4 of 6 (a) above

olding Company of company listed in serial number 11 & 19 of 6 (a) above

- Holding Company of companies listed in 6 (a) serial number 12 to 18 and 6 (d) serial number 2 to 5, above

- Holding Company of companies listed in 6 (a) serial number 20 to 50 above

- Holding Company of companies listed in 6 (a)serial number 54 to 57 above

- Holding Company of company listed in 6 (a) serial number 59 above
Refer Note 10 (iii)

(i)

The Company had made allotment of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) of US $ 50 crore on 9% May, 2006
having maturity period of 5 years and 1 day. Each FCCB is convertible into equity shares of the Company at the price of
Rs. 480.68 per share, representing a premium of 50% to the closing price of the shares on 21<t March, 2006. In the event
the FCCB are fully converted into equity, the equity share capital of the Company would increase by approximately 4.62
crore equity shares of Rs. 5 each. The premium payable on redemption of Rs.91.39 crore and issue expenses of Rs.11.24
crore as on 31t March, 2007 is charged to the Securities Premium Account.

On and at any time after 9" May, 2009 and on and prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may, subject to certain
terms and conditions as per the offering memorandum, redeem the bonds in whole and not in part at their Early
Redemption Amount, provided that no such redemption may be made unless the Aggreqate Value (as defined in the
terms and conditions) on each Trading Day during a period of not less than 30 consecutive Trading Days, ending not earlier
than 14 days prior to the date uponwhich notice of such redemption is given, was at least 130 percent of the Early
Redemption Amount.

The Company had made allotment of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds (FCCB) of US $ 100 Crore on 28" February,
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On and at any time after 28" February, 2010 and on and prior to the Maturity Date, the Company may, subject to certain
terms and conditions as per the offering memorandum, having given not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days notice
to the Bondholders, redeem the bonds in whole and not in part at their Early Redemption Amount, provided that no such
redemption may be made unless the Aqqregate Value (as defined in the terms and conditions) on each Trading Day during
a period of not less than 30 consecutive Trading Days, ending not earlier than 14 days prior to the date upon which notice
of such redemption is given, was at least 130 percent of the Early Redemption Amount.

(i) Rs.1,343 crore out of the proceeds of the above bonds have been used for capital expenditure in the Company's
operations. Pending utilisation the balance Rs.5,142 crore has been kept in bank deposits.

(iv) Unsecured Loan includes Rs.109.90 crore, being premium of redemption of Foreign Currency Convertible Bonds, raised
during the current period.

8  Details of Project Development Expenditure (included under Capital Work-in-Progress) :
(Rs. in crore)

For the period of
fifteen Months ended
31t March, 2007
Opening balance on 1< January, 2006 as per Unconsolidated financial statements

of the Subsidiaries as per Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement 537.17
Add:
Project Development Expenditure Transferred from Profit & Loss account 189.12
Interest:
Term Loans 59.90
Others 0.06
Amortisaltion of Discount 19.25
268.33
805.50
LESS :
Capitalised during the period 503.84
Sale of Scrap 2.46 506.30
Closing balance as on 31t March, 2007 299.20

Borrowing cost capitalised during the period Rs.79.21 crore.

9  Reliance Infostreams Private Limited and Reliance Next Link Private Limited have given corporate quarantee in favour of the
Security Trustee for the benefit of Export Import Bank of United States (US EXIM), US EXIM Guaranteed Lenders and Export
Development Canada, quaranteeing the repayment of the Buyers' Credit Facility aggreqating to USS 44.58 crore (equivalent
to Rs. 1,938.07 crore) availed by the Company and also created hypothecation on its movable assets to additionally secure
the aforesaid facility.

10 Exceptional Items
The details of the Exceptional items made during the period are as follows:

(i) The Company has taken adequate steps for verification of customers and is already incurring reasonable amount while
taking those subscribers on board on due compliance of the then norms for customer verification. Department of
Telecommunication (DoT) has issued a directive for comprehensive address verifications of all customers. Accordingly, total
amount of Rs.30.24 Crore for customer verification expenses has been incurred / provided as Exceptional Item.

Unsold inventories of telecom operations related items including refurbished handsets and claims agqreqating to Rs. 78.46 crore.

TRUECOPY )

THIS ANNEXURE |S THE TRUE COPY
OF THE ORIGINAL DOCUMENT



907

Reliance Communications Limited
(Formerly known as Reliance Communication Ventures Limited)

Notes on Accounts to Consolidated Balance Sheet and Profit and Loss Account (Contd...)

12

13

14

During the period from 1st January 2006 to 31 March, 2007, an amount of Rs.19.78 crore relating to sales tax liability
is reversed. An amount of Rs.17.32 crore has been provided towards Interconnect Usage Charges ( IUC ). No Amount has
been utilised out of the provision.

b. Provision for asset retirement obligation made by the Company's subsidiary in respect of undersea cables and equipment
is Rs.237.59 crore

The aforesaid provisions shall be utilised on settlement of the claims

c.  Provision for Commission to non-executive directors during the period is Rs. 44 crore. The liablity against the said provision
will be paid during the year 2007-08.

d. Also refer note number 7 (iv)
Contingent Liabilities
(Rs. in crore)

As at
31t March, 2007

a. Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on

capital accounts (net of advances) and not provided for 1,926.53
b. Disputed Liabilities in Appeal

- Sales Tax / VAT 40.75

- Entry Tax / Octroi 11.88

- Excise / Service Tax 6.28
¢ Claims aqainst the Company not acknowledged as debts 51.97

During the period the Company's subsidiaries, viz. Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL), Reliance Infocomm
Infrastructure Private Limited (RIIPL) and Flag Telecom Group Limited (FTGL) based on the report by Valuers, have revalued
tangible fixed assets by an amount of Rs.797.53 crore, Rs.1,007.92 crore and Rs.1779.11 crore respectively. An equivalent
amount has been credited to Revaluation Reserve Account in respective Company's accounts. Consequent to revaluation, for
the period ended 31 March, 2007, there is an additional depreciation of Rs.52.27 crore, Rs.100.79 crore and Rs.236.22
crore respectively in the books of RCIL, RIIPL and FTGL for the period and an equivalent amount has been withdrawn from
Revaluation Reserve and credited to the Profit & Loss Account in their respective accounts. In Consolidated Accounts the
revaluation reserve is taken into account for arriving at the Goodwill on Consolidation and accordingly depreciation and
amortisation charged to Profit and Loss Account is net of Rs. 389.28 crore drawn from General Reserve - I This has no impact
on the profit for the period.

(i) In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 sanctioned
by Order dated 31 March, 2006 of the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay with effective date 27 June, 2006, order dated
15% December, 2006 of the Hon'ble High Court of Rajasthan with effective date 30™ January, 2007 and Order dated 5%
January, 2007 of the Hon'ble High Court of Gauhati with effective date 12% January, 2007, with effect from the
appointed date as per the Scheme being 1 April, 2005, wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company's subsidiary, Synergy
Enterpreneur Solutions Private Limited (SESPL) , namely, Synergy Infocomm Solutions Private Limited (SISPL), Assam
Network Private Limited (ANPL) and Rajasthan Network Private Limited (RNPL) whose core activities are holding Group
company's shares, have been amalgamated with SESPL.

In accordance with the aforesaid Scheme and as per the Hon'ble High Courts' approval:

(a) Al the assets and liabilties as appearing in the books of accounts of SISPL, ANPL and RNPL are recorded in the books
of SESPL, at their book values and the excess of the net assets value of Rs.8.34 crore is credited to General Reserve
in SESPL. The investments in equity share capital of SISPL, ANPL and RNPL as appearing in the books of SESPL of
Rs.2.07 crore and intercompany balances of Rs. 68.31 crore were cancelled.

(b) Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment, an amount of Rs. 8.34 crore would have been credited to Capital
Reserve as required by the Pooling of Interest Method prescribed by Accounting Standard (AS) 14 on "Accounting for

In\tetms of the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement (“the Scheme") under section 391 to 394 of the Companies
Ac § 956 sanctioned vide Order dated 23 March, 2007 of Hon'ble High Court of Bombay with effective date 30%
, 2007, Reliance Next Generation Technology Private Limited. (RNGTPL), "the Transferor Company" has been
gamated with Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited (RTIL).
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15

16

In accordance with the aforesaid Scheme and as per Hon'ble Court approval :

a) All the assets and liabilities as appearing in the books of accounts of RNGTPL are recorded in the books of RTIL at their
respective fair values and excess of the net assets value of Rs.0.29 crore is credited to General Reserve in RTIL.

b) Had the Scheme not prescribed this treatment, an amount of Rs.0.29 crore would have been credited to Capital
Reserve as required by the Purchase Method prescribed by Accounting Standard (AS) 14 on Accounting for Amalgamation
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

(ii) In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation ("Scheme") under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956,vide order
dated 237 April, 2007, the Hon'ble High Court of Bombay, with effect from the appointed date 1°t April, 2006, has
approved the amalgamation of wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company, Synerqy Enterpreneur Solutions Private Limited
(SESPL) and Reliance Infoinvestments Limited (RIIL) with Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited (RCIL), subsidiary
of the Company. The Scheme will be effective when a copy of the Order of the court is filed with the Reqistrar of
Companies.

(iv) Reliable Internet Service Limited ("RISL"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, is proposed to be merged with
Reliance Telecom Limited (RTL) another wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, in terms of a Scheme of Arrangement
under Section 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956, with effect from 15t April, 2006, pursuant to which the business of
RISL will be consolidated with the business of RTL and a petition for sanction by the High Court of Judicature of Bombay
has been filed. Pending approval of the Scheme from the High Court, no effect has been given of the Scheme in the
Financial Statements.

—
<
—

In terms of the Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") under Section 391 to 394 of the Companies Act, 1956 as approved
by the High Court of Judicature at Bombay vide Order dated 16% March, 2007, (with effective date from 10" April,
2007), the Company and Reliance Telecom Limited , 100% subsidiary of the Company shall transfer the passive
infrastructure comprising Wireless and Broadcasting towers to Reliance Telecom Infrastructure Limited, also a significantly
owned subsidiary of the Company. The estimated amount of assets relating to passive infrastructure for the Company is
Rs.3,924 crore and for Reliance Telecom Limited is Rs.820 crore.

One of the main businesses of the Group is operating Mobile Telecom Network. The Group is not engaged in the business of
trading in Handsets required for accessing the Mobile Telecom Network and consequently, Purchases and Sales of Handsets and
accessories are not reflected as a Trading Activity. However, the Group is required to provide such Handsets and accessories to
its customers as a part of the marketing activity related to the Mobile Telecom Network. The Group, therefore, provides such
Handsets and accesssories after purchasing them, the provision normally, being at a discount to the Acquisition Price. The Net
loss on provision of Handsets and accessories, including subsidies/commission given to Distributors and Dealers, amounting to
Rs.159.50 crore is included as part of Selling Expenses (Refer Schedule N).

The Company and its subsidiaries RCIL, RTL, RISL, being in the business of Telecommunication Services, Broadband Network
and Internet Services are eligible for deduction u/s 80IA (Tax holiday) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Since the Deferred Tax
Liability in respect of timing difference is expected to reverse during the Tax Holiday Period, the same is not recognised in books
of accounts as at 31t March, 2007 as per the Accounting Standards Interpretation (ASI) 3 read with Accounting Standard 22
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Deferred Tax Liability (Rs. in crore)
The deferred tax liability relates to the Company's Subsidiaries and comprises of the following: As at
31t March, 2007

a  Deferred Tax Liability

Related to timing difference on depreciation on Fixed assets 19.32

Related to timing difference on revenue recognition 1.16 20.48
Deferred Tax Asset
Related to Carried Forward Loss 1711
isallowance under the Income Tax Act, 1961 0.77 17.88

et Deferred Tax Liability 2.60
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17

18

Particulars of Derivative Instruments

Particulars of Derivative Instruments acquired for hedging No. of Instruments Value

USD in crore Rs. in crore
Principal Only Swap 26 24.33 1,057.76
Currency Swaps 20 72.40 3,147.05
Interest rate Swaps-FC 27 95.50 4,151.39
Interest rate Swaps-INR 63 96.43 4,192.00
Options 22 73.75 3,205.70
Structured Derivatives 2 7.45 323.94

No derivative instruments are for speculation purpose.

In respect of Foreign Exchange Swap and Interest Rate Swap transactions, which are linked with LIBOR rates and exchange
rate during the binding period of contract, qains/ losses are recognized on the settlement day or the reporting day, whichever
is earlier at the rate prevailing on respective day. However, in the case of principal portion, gain is recognised only on settlement
day.

Foreign Currency exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise are USD 219.77 crore (equivalent
Rs. 9,554.01 crore)

The unamortised premium of Buyers credit to be recognised is Rs.14.20 crore for one or more subsequent accounting periods.
Leases

Finance Lease ( As Lessee)

) Minimum Lease rentals outstanding as of 31t March, 2007 in respect of Fixed assets acquired on or after 1< April, 2001

(Rs. in crore)

Due Gross Investment Unearned Present Value of
Finance Income Minimum Lease

Payments

Within one year 0.20 0.04 0.16
Later than one year and not later than five years 0.36 0.03 0.33

Later than five years - - -

Total 0.56 0.07 0.49
i)  General description of the significant leasing arrangements is as mentioned below:

a) The lease agreement is valid for a fixed non-cancellable period from the date of commencement of rentals

b) Upon termination of the agreement the Company shall return the assets to the lessor.

c) In the event lessor's claim for depreciation is disallowed partly or fully in their tax assessment, the lease rentals will
increase to the extent of depreciation disallowed to the lessor.

Operating Lease (Rs. in crore)

Estimated future minimum payments under non-cancellable operating leases
Not later than one year 16.85
52.93

263.08
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19

20

21

Earnings Per Share:

Basic and Diluted EPS ( not annualised )

a) Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs crore.)
(Numerator used for calculation)

b) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as
denominator for calculating Basic EPS

c) Profit / (Loss) attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs. crore)
(Numerator used for calculation of Diluted EPS)

d) Weighted average number of Equity Shares used as
denominator for calculating Diluted EPS

e) Basic Earnings per Share of Rs.5 each (in Rupees.)

f)  Diluted Earnings per Share of Rs.5 each (in Rupees.)

(Rs. in crore)

For the fifteen months
ended 315t March, 2007

3,530.82

201,02,32,201

3.421.60

204,79,95,304

17.56
16.71

The management is currently in the process of identifying enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Group and
which qualify under the definition of medium and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006. Accordingly, the disclosure in respect of the amount payable to such Micro, Small and Medium
enterprises as at 31t March, 2007 has not been made in the financial statements. However, in view of the management, the
impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act is not expected to be material.

As per the Accounting Standard 18, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the disclosure of transactions
with the related parties as defined in the Accounting Standard are given below.

A List of related party relationships:
Name of the Related Party
i) Reliance Innoventures Private Limited
i) AAA Communication Private Limited
i) Reliance Capital Limited
iv) Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
v) Shri Anil D. Ambani
vi) Shri Hasit Shukla
B  Transactions during the period with related parties

(
(
(
(
(
(

1 Reliance Capital Limited
i. Debentures issued
Balance as on 1* January, 2006
As per the Company's Subsidiaries
as on 1 January, 2006
Add : Addition during the period
Add : Discount accrued during the period

Less : Repayment during the period

Balance as on 31 March, 2007

Relationship

Ultimate Holding Company

Holding Company

Fellow Subsidiary

Fellow Subsidiary

Person having control at any time during the period

Key Managerial Personnel

(Rs. in crore)

Fellow Key Management Total
Subsidiaries Personnel
1.364.82 1,364.82
183.63 183.63
1,548.45 1,548.45
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(Rs. in crore)

Fellow Key Management Total
Subsidiaries Personnel

ii. Unsecured loan

Balance as on 1% January, 2006 - -

Add : Loan taken during the period 1,548.45 1,548.45

Less : Repayment during the period - -

Balance as on 315t March, 2007 1,548.45 1,548.45
iii. Lease liability

Balance as on 1*t January, 2006 - -

As per the Company's Subsidiaries

as on 1 January, 2006 1.18 1.18

Add : Liability on assets taken on lease during the period - -

Less : Repayment during the period 1.18 1.18

Balance as on 31 March, 2007 - -
iv. Amortisation of Discount 183.63 183.63
v. Interest Expenses 4.20 4.20
vi. Lease Rental Expenses 0.04 0.04
vii. Rent, Rates & Taxes 4.41 4.41

2 Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
i. Advances
Balance as on 1+ January, 2006 - -
Add : Advances made during the period 9.46 9.46
Less : Repayment during the period - -

Balance as on 31t March, 2007 9.46 9.46

ii. General & Administration Expenses 2.83 2.83
3 Key Managqerial Personnel

i) Shri Anil D. Ambani - Sitting fees 0.08 0.08

i) Shri Hasit Shukla - Remuneration 0.49 0.49

C. The non-executive directors are also proposed to be remunerated by way of commission not exeeding Rs.44.00 crore for
the year commencing 1 April, 2006 to 31t March, 2007 as may be decided by the Nomination / Remuneration
Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company including allocation to individual Directors.

22 Consolidated Segment Information:

The Company has identified five reportable primary segments viz. Wireless, Broadband, Global, Investment and Others. Segments
have been identified and reported taking into account nature of services provided, the differing risks and returns and the internal
iness reporting systems. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policy of the

with following additional policies for segment reporting:

ue and expenses have been identified to a segment on the basis of relationship to operating activities of the
nt. Revenue and expenses which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not allocable to a segment on
nable basis have been disclosed as "Unallocable”
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b) Segment assets and liabilities represent assets and liabilities in respective segments. Tax related assets and other assets and
liabilities that cannot be allocated to a segment on reasonable basis have been disclosed as "Unallocable".

As per Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (AS-17), issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, the
Company has reported segment information on consolidated basis including businesses conducted through its subsidiaries and
companies controlled by the Company

(i) Primary Segment Information (Rs. in crore)

Particulars Wireless Broadband Global Investment Others Unallocable Eliminations Total

Segment Revenue

External Revenue 12,472.53 802.58 3,775.92 130.18 259.04 - - 17.,440.25
Inter Segment Revenue 34590  510.40 3,274.87 - 159.53 - (4,290.70) -
Net Revenue 12,818.43 1,312.98 7,050.79 130.18 418.57 - (4,290.70) 17.440.25
Segment Result before

Exceptional items,

interest & taxes 2,737.21 349.90 861.61 111.13 (351.00) 64.68 - 3,773.53
Less: Finance Expense 864.48 864.48
Add : Finance Income

(Including Net Foreign Currency

Exchange Fluctuation Loss/(gain)) 799.80 799.80
Segment Result before

exceptional and non

recurring items & taxes 2,737.21 349.90 861.61 111.13 (351.00) - - 3,708.85
Less: Provisions, Exceptional

and Non-Recurring items 109.32 109.32
Less: Provision for Taxation 73.10 73.10
Segment Result

after Tax 2,737.21 349.90 861.61 111.13 (351.00) (182.42) - 3.526.43
Other Information

Segment Assets 20,032.50 3,490.14 11,764.19 14,494.94 2,245.65 27,031.74 (22,533.73) 56,525.43
Segment Liabilities 4,386.33 460.31 6,079.54 0.23 12834 18,115.52 (13,019.43) 16,150.84
Capital Expenditure 3,719.87 795.00 1,727.08 146.03 6,387.98
Depreciation 2,035.25 188.64 635.66 - 216.95 0.33 (157.55) 2,919.28

The reportable primary segments are further described below:

- The Wireless seqment includes wireless operations of the Company, Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited,
Reliance Telecom Limited and Reliable Internet Services Limited.

- The Broadband segment includes broadband operations of the Company, Reliance Communications Infrastructure Limited
and Gateway Systems (India) Limited.

- The Global segment includes National Long Distance and International Long Distance operations of the Company and the
operations of its subsidiaries viz FLAG Telecom Group Limited and its subsidiaries and Reliance Infocom BV and its subsidiaries.

e Investment Segment includes investment activities of Group Companies, Reliance Infoinvestments Limited, Reliance
unications Infrastructure Limited, Reliance Globalcom Limited, Reliance Webstore Limited, Synergy Entrepreneur
ns Private Limited, Reliance Infocomm Infrastructure Private Limited and Gateway Systems (India) Limited.

usinesses, which were not reportable seqments during the period, have been grouped under the "Others" segment.
mainly comprises of customer care activities of Reliance Webstore Limited.
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(i) Secondary Segments Information

The Secondary Segments relates to geographical segments viz. Operations Within India and Outside India.

Within India
1. Segment Revenue - External Turnover 14,389.25
2. Seqgment Assets 49,463.23
3. Segment Liability 10,978.03
4.  Segment - Capital expenditure 4,750.98

The reportable secondary segments are further described below:

Outside India
3,051.00
7,062.20
5172.81
1.637.00

Rs. in crore
Total
17.440.25
56,525.43
16,150.84
6,387.98

- The "Outside India" segment includes the operations of the Company's subsidiaries, viz. FLAG Telecom Group Limited and
its subsidiaries, Reliance Infocom BV and its subsidiaries and Gateway Net Trading Pte Limited

- The "Within India" segment includes the operation of the Company and its subsidiaries in India.
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(Rs. in crore)
For fifteen months ended

31st March, 2007
A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Profit before tax as per Profit and Loss Account 3.599.53
Adjusted for:
Provision for Doubtful Debts, Loans and Advances 112.46
Amortisation of Intangibles & Depreciation 2,919.28
Exceptional and Non-Recurring items 109.32
Unrealised Exchange Differences - Net (148.27)
Loss on Sale of Assets- Net 5.38
Profit on Sale of Investments (115.62)
Financial Expenses 864.48
Financial Income (715.76)
- 3,031.27
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 6,630.80
Adjusted for:
Receivables and other Advances 3,474.88
Inventories (156.48)
Trade Payables 3,022.53
- 6,340.93
Cash Generated from Operations 12,971.73
Tax Paid (115.29)
Net Cash from Operating Activities 12,856.44
B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Additions to Fixed Assets (5.250.90)
Sale of Fixed Assets 1
Purchase of Investments (52,758.37)
Sale of Investments 47,314.74
Financial Income 655.01
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (10,037.41)
C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net Proceeds from Short term Borrowings 2,629.40
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 9,010.49
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (9.152.14)
Financial Charges (653.51)
Net cash from financing activities 1.834.24
Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4,653.27
Opening Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 0.05
Cash and Cash Equivalents of the subsidiaries acquired
as per the Scheme of Amalgamation and Arrangement. 2,551.70 2,551.75
Effect of Exchange (Loss)/Gain on Cash and Cash -
Equivalents (4.38)
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,200.64
Note:-
Cash and Cash Equivalent includes cash on hand / cheques on hand and bank balance including Fixed Deposits
with banks
As per our Report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
For_Chaturvedi & Shah For BSR & Co Chairman Anil D. Ambani
ased, Accountants Chartered Accountants
Natrajan Ramkrishna J. Ramachandran
Partner Directors S. P. Talwar

Membership No. 32815 Deepak Shourie

Company Secretary & Manag‘er Hasit Shukla
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Shareholder Satisfaction Survey 2007

We have been constantly endeavouring to extend the best possible services to our shareowners and we seek
your feedback on the same. Kindly, therefore, return this response form duly filled in to our R & T agents, Karvy
Computershare Private Limited.

Itisindeed our privilege to have you as our shareowner and to continue to receive your trust and confidence.

To.

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit : Reliance Communications Limited
Plot No. 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar
Madhapur

Hyderabad 500 081

Req:  Shareholder Satisfaction Survey-2007-Response Form

[}{, Name of Sole/First holder : (}f

FolioNo. [ [ [ [ T[] STDCode [ [ [T TT]

oppD [ [[[[[T]] Telephone No.[ [ [ [ [ [ [ []

ClentlD [ [ [ [[[[TTTTTTTTT]]e-mai

oo Kindly rate our services in following areas et
Excellent  Good Needs
Improvement

1. Responses to queries/complaints |:| |:| |:|
Your overall rating of our investor service [] [] []
Presentation of information on Company's l:’ D D
website www.reliancecommunications.co.in/www.rcovl.com

4. Quality and contents of Annual Report 2006-07 |:| |:| |:|

Do you have any grievance which has not been addressed so far:[J Yes [JNo
If yes, please furnish details in brief

6. Your sugqgestions and comments for improvement in our services

cut here

Date Signature of member cx)
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Postage will
be paid by
the
Addressee

Business Reply Inland Letter Card

BRP No. HDC/B-447
Cyberabad Post Office
Hyderabad 500 081

To,

Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit: Reliance Communications Limited
Plot No. 17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar,
Madhapur

Hyderabad - 500 081

No postage
stamp
necessary if

posted in
INDIA
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Book Post

To

If undelivered please return to :
Karvy Computershare Private Limited
Unit: Reliance Communications Limited
Plot No.17-24, Vittal Rao Nagar,
Madhapur, Hyderabad 500 081
Tel. : 91-040 - 2342 0815 - 25

: 91-040 - 2342 0859
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